
(next page)→ 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors Meeting 
Thursday, September 19, 2019 – 7 pm 

General District Courtroom – Sussex Judicial Center 
15098 Courthouse Road, Sussex VA 23884 

==================================================================== 
 
1. Commencement 
1.01 Call to Order/Determine Quorum 
1.02 The Invocation 
1.03 The Pledge of Allegiance 
1.04 Agenda Amendment(s) 
1.05 Approval of Regular Agenda 
 
2. Approval of Consent Agenda 
2.01 Minutes of July 18, 2019 regular Board meetings  
2.02 Warrants and Vouchers 
2.03 Acceptance & Appropriation of Department of Criminal Justice Services Victim Witness 

Grant #20-W9574VW18 - $105,474 
2.04 Recognition of September 2019 as Hunger Action Month 
 
3. Recognitions/Awards/Presentation  
3.01 Resolution:  Recognizing the Late Thomas Morgan Thornton  
3.02 Proclamation:  Union Hill United Church of Christ – 150th Anniversary 
 
4. Public Hearing 
4.01 Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Sussex County and the Historical 

Society 
 Public Comments 
 Board Comments 
4.02 Ordinance Amendment:  Sussex County Code of Ordinance - Chapter 12 Emergency 

Management & Emergency Services, §12-1  
 Public Comments 
 Board Comments 
4.03 Action on Public Hearing Items  
 
5. Appointments 
5.01 Appointment to Planning Commission 
 
6. Action Items  
6.01 Presentation and Acceptance of Department of Forestry Funds 
6.02 Sussex County Public Schools’ Request for Local Cash Balance Overage - $302,126.25 
6.03 Performance Agreement between the County of Sussex, Three Brothers’ Distillery & 

Sussex Industrial Development Authority 
6.04 Appropriate Funds to Sussex Industrial Development Authority (IDA) for Distribution to 

Three Brothers’ Distillery 
6.05 Section 15.2232 Review Application, Application Instructions, & Review Fee 
6.06 Federal Uniform Guidance Policy (Administration) 



6.07 Federal Uniform Guidance Conflict of Interest Policy 
 
7. Report of Departments 
7.01 Treasurer’s Report – for information only  
7.02 Animal Services Report – for information only 
7.03 Public Safety Report – for information only 
7.04 Community Development Report – for information only 
7.05 Environmental Inspections Report – for information only 
7.06 Housing Department Report – for information only 
7.07 Sheriff’s Department Monthly Report – for information only 
  
8. Citizens’ Comments (8 pm) 
 
9. Unfinished Business  – none 
 
10. New Business – none 
 
11. Board Members Comments 
11.01 Blackwater District 
11.02 Courthouse District 
11.03 Henry District 
11.04 Stony Creek District 
11.05 Wakefield District 
11.06 Waverly District 
 
12. Closed Session - none 
 
13. Recess/Adjournment  
13.01 Recess/Adjournment 
13.02 Regular Meeting, October 17, 2019 @ 7 p.m., General District Courtroom – Sussex 

Judicial Center, 15098 Courthouse Road, Sussex VA 23884 
 



1 | Page – Minutes of the July 18, 2019 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

At a Regular Meeting of the  
Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

Held in the General District Courtroom on 
Thursday, July 18, 2019 at 7 pm 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 
Keith C. Blowe  
C. E. Fly, Sr.
Alfred G. Futrell
Susan B. Seward
John A. Stringfield
Steve White, Tie Breaker

BOARD MEMBER ABSENT 
Rufus E. Tyler, Sr. 

STAFF PRESENT: 
Vandy V. Jones, III, County Administrator 
Millard D. Stith, Independent Consultant 
Mark Flynn, County Attorney 
Deste J. Cox, Treasurer 
Brenda H. Drew, Housing Coordinator 
Ernest Giles, Sheriff 
Andre M. Greene, Director of Community Development 
Cecil Stainback, Senior Animal Control Officer 
Lorenzo D. Turner, Assistant to the Director of Community Development 
Shilton R. Butts, Assistant to the County Administrator/ 
      Deputy Clerk to the Board 

1. Commencement

1.01  Call to Order/Determine Quorum (7:10 p.m.) 

The July 18, 2019 meeting of the Sussex County Board of Supervisors was called to order by 
Chairman Seward. 

1.02  The Invocation 

The Invocation was offered by Supervisor Blowe. 

1.03  The Pledge of Allegiance 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all. 

1.04  Agenda Amendments 



2 | Page – Minutes of the July 18, 2019 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

County Administrator Jones requested to (1) delete under Item 6. Action Items, Items 6.04 and 
6.05, Federal Uniform Guidance Policy (Administration) and Federal Uniform Guidance Conflict 
of Interest Policy, respectively; and (2) add under Item 6. Action Items, as Item 6.04 Appropriation 
for National Night Out Appropriation. 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BLOWE, seconded by SUPERVISOR STRINGFIELD and 
carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the following 
amendments to the July 18, 2019 agenda inclusive of: (1) deleting under Item 6. Action Items, 
Items 6.04 and 6.05 Federal Uniform Guidance Policy (Administration) and Federal Uniform 
Guidance Conflict of Interest Policy, respectively; (2) add under Item 6. Action Items, as Item 6.04 
Appropriation for National Night Out Appropriation. 
Voting aye:  Supervisors Blowe, Fly, Futrell, Seward, Stringfield  
Voting nay:  none 
Absent:  Supervisor Tyler 

1.05  Approval of Agenda 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BLOWE, seconded by SUPERVISOR STRINGFIELD and 
carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the July 18, 
2019 regular agenda inclusive of: (1) deleting under Item 6. Action Items, Items 6.04 and 
6.05Federal Uniform Guidance Policy (Administration) and Federal Uniform Guidance Conflict 
of Interest Policy, respectively; and (2) add under Item 6. Action Items, as Item 6.04, Appropriation 
for National Night Out Appropriation. 
Voting aye:  Supervisors Blowe, Fly, Futrell, Seward, Stringfield  
Voting nay:  none 
Absent:  Supervisor Tyler 

2. Approval of Consent Agenda

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BLOWE, seconded by SUPERVISOR STRINGFIELD and 
carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the consent 
agenda inclusive of the following:  (a) Minutes of the June 20, 2019 Regular meeting; (b) Approval 
of Warrants and Vouchers; (c) Drug & Asset Forfeiture - $28,439.31/Dare Appropriation FYE19 
- $1,269.00; and, (d) Cancellation of the Board of Supervisor August 15, 2019 regular meeting.
Voting aye:  Supervisors Blowe, Futrell, Seward, Stringfield
Voting nay:  Supervisor Fly
Abstained:  Supervisor Tyler

3. Recognitions/Awards/Presentation

3.01 RECOGNITION:  Ms. Kathy P. Beale’s Retirement, Sussex County Sheriff’s Department 

At the May 16, 2019 Board meeting, staff advised that a request was received from Sheriff Giles 
to prepare a resolution for adoption by the Board of Supervisors in recognition of Ms. Kathryn P. 
Beale’s retirement.  Ms. Beale retired May 1, 2019—after working over 40 years in various 



3 | Page – Minutes of the July 18, 2019 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

positions with the Sussex County Sheriff’s Department.  Ms. Beale wasn’t present at that meeting. 
As a result, it was requested that the resolution be adopted and presented at a later Board meeting. 

Again, the Sheriff’s Department and their staff, the Board, County Administration and fellow co-
workers on the complex and the citizens are most appreciative of Ms. Beale’s years of dedicated 
services and hard work.  Ms. Beale has and will be missed by all.  We all want to wish her a happy 
retirement and hope she enjoys the time with her grandchildren and the next chapter in her life.  

Ms. Beale was present to accept the resolution.  A copy of the resolution and Sheriff Giles request 
were included in the Board packet. 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BLOWE, seconded by SUPERVISOR STRINGFIELD and 
carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves and adopts 
the resolution in recognition of Mrs. Kathy P. Beale on her retirement, to-wit: 

WHEREAS, Kathryn “Kathy” Beale  retired on May 1, 2019, after dedicating 40 years of 
service to the Sussex County Sheriff’s Department; and 

WHEREAS, Ms. Beale began her employment with the Sussex County Sheriff’s Department 
on April 9, 1979 under Sheriff Kitchen’s Administration; and 

WHEREAS. She began her career as a deputy sheriff working as the Civil Process Deputy; 
and 

WHEREAS, She was promoted to Secretary I in 1989, and 

WHEREAS, through the years Ms. Beale was promoted to Secretary II and, finally, 
Administrative Assistant; and 

WHEREAS, Ms. Beale served under three Sheriffs—Sheriff E. S. Kitchen, the Sheriff R. R. 
Bell, and Sheriff E. L. Giles, Jr.;   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby 
takes great pleasure in recognizing and honoring Ms. Kathryn “Kathy” P. Beale on her retirement 
after many years of dedicated service to the Sussex County Sheriff’s Department, the County and 
its citizens.  This Resolution is presented as a token of Sussex County’s appreciation; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this Resolution be spread upon the minutes of 
this Board meeting this 18th day of July, 2019. 
Voting aye:  Supervisors Blowe, Fly, Futrell, Seward, Stringfield  
Voting nay:  none 
Absent:  Supervisor Tyler 

3.02 Blackwater Regional Library – Mrs. Jenny Bakos, Director 

County Administrator Jones stated that after reviewing one (1) of the Blackwater Regional Library 
reports, Vice Chairman Blowe had some concerns regarding the lack of service in the Courthouse 



4 | Page – Minutes of the July 18, 2019 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

and Stony Creek areas.  Vice Chairman Blowe requested a report of activities and services 
provided to these areas. 

Mrs. Jenny Bakos, Director of the Blackwater Regional Library, gave a brief presentation.  Mrs. 
Bakos reported that Blackwater Regional Library’s Outreach staff and book mobile visit the St. 
John’s Day Care Center in Stony Creek every Tuesday.  Story Time Programs, arts and crafts 
activities, and the opportunity for students to check out books are offered at these visits.  Mrs. 
Bakos also reported that one of the book mobile stops, every other Thursday, includes Stony Creek 
at the Department of Social Services building.  This stop is one of the most popular locations.   

Mrs. Bakos stated that one of their stops included the Waverly Nursing and Rehabilitation Center, 
as well as other permanent locations.  Blackwater Regional Library also offers the Book by Mail 
Program available to homebound and visually disabled patrons. 

There was discussion of the MiFi hot spots, tracking usage, and potentially having a library in 
Stony Creek. 

3.03 Recognition:  Early Childhood Learning and Head Start Day – August 28, 2019 

County Administrator Jones stated that although the Improvement Association (the “Association”) 
has operated in Early Childhood and Head Start program since 1991, the Association held its grand 
opening of the new Early Childhood Learning and Workforce Development Center in Waverly, 
Virginia on August 28, 2018—in which Governor Northam made a special visit and performed 
the dedication and ribbon cutting ceremony. 

The Association serves as the first Early Childhood and Work Development Center in Virginia. 
During a Head Start Transition Ceremony here in Sussex County, a Certificate of Recognition was 
issued by Governor Northam declaring August 28, 2019, as Early Childhood Learning and Head 
Start Day for the counties of Sussex, Surry, Greensville, Brunswick, and Dinwiddie, and the city 
of Emporia.  The Certificate of Recognition was presented by the 75th District Virginia House of 
Delegates representative, Delegate Roslyn Tyler. 

County Administrator Jones read the Certificate of Recognition.  County Administrator Jones 
asked that the County recognized August 28, 2019 as Early Childhood Learning and Head Start 
Day in the County of Sussex. 

A copy of the Certificate of Recognition – Early Childhood Learning and Head Start Day – August 
28, 2019 issued by Governor Ralph Northam was included in the Board packet. 

County Administrator Jones noted that the information was taken from the July 10, 2019 edition 
of the Sussex-Surry Dispatch of which further detail could be found. 

4. Public Hearing

Chairman Seward entered Public Hearing. 



5 | Page – Minutes of the July 18, 2019 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

4.01 Zoning Ordinance Amendment #2019-13, Article III, Section 34-217 (Use Regulations), 
Subsection #33 

County Administrator Jones provided the staff report for Zoning Ordinance Amendment #2019-
13, Article III, Section 34-217 (Use Regulations), Subsection #33. 

County Administrator Jones stated that on April 1, 2019, the Sussex County Board of Supervisors 
referred the proposed amendment of the Zoning Ordinance to the Planning Commission for further 
study and recommendation.  The proposed amendment would remove the requirement of a 
conditional use permit for towing/wrecker operations located in the A-1, General Agricultural 
District. Towing/wrecker operations would be allowed “by-right” in the A-1 Zoning District.  If 
the amendment is approved, towing/facilities would be allowed anywhere in the County that is 
zoned Agricultural.   

As stated at the Board of Supervisors and Planning Commission joint public hearing held on April, 
1, 2019, the removal of the requirement of a conditional use permit is requested in part to 
accommodate Butler’s Towing which has been operating under a Conditional Use Permit since 
2006 (approximately 13 years).  If the Zoning Ordinance Amendment is approved, any conditional 
use permit regulating the operation of a towing/wrecker business will become null and void.   

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on June 3, 2019 to consider this matter. 

The Planning Commission voted unanimously (9-0) to forward the item to the Board of 
Supervisors with a recommendation for approval. 

Copies of Staff Report for Zoning Ordinance Amendment #2019-03 Use Regulations, Article III, 
General Agricultural District, Section 34-217, Use Regulations, Subsection #33, and the Notice of 
Public Hearing were included in the Board packet. 

There was no Public Comment. 

There was no Board Comment; however, Vice Chairman Blowe stated for the record that the 
Zoning Ordinance Amendment does not eliminate the requirement for any business to procure and 
have a business license.  Every business is still required to have a business license if they are 
operating. 

4.02 Action on Public Hearing Item 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BLOWE, seconded by SUPERVISOR STRINGFIELD and 
carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby accepts the Planning 
Commission recommendation for approval and adopts Zoning Ordinance Amendment #2019-03, 
Article III, Section 34-17, Use Regulations, Subsection #33 to remove the requirement of a 
conditional use permit for towing/wrecker operations located in the A-1, General Agricultural 
District. Towing/wrecker operations would be allowed “by-right” in the A-1 Zoning District.  If 
the amendment is approved, towing/facilities would be allowed anywhere in the County that is 
zoned Agricultural; and 

FURTHER RESOLVED that any Conditional Use Permit(s) imposed on existing towing/wrecker 
operations will be null and void.  



6 | Page – Minutes of the July 18, 2019 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

Voting aye:  Supervisors Blowe, Fly, Futrell, Seward, Stringfield 
Voting nay:  none 
Absent:  Supervisor Tyler 

5. Appointments

There were no appointments. 

6. Action Items

6.01 Appropriation and Transfer from General Fund to Reserve Fund (135) 

County Administrator Jones stated that staff received a request from Ms. Deste Cox, Treasurer, 
that the Board consider an appropriation and transfer of $2 million from the General Fund to the 
Reserve for Capital Projects Fund (135).  

Ms. Cox gave a brief overview.  Ms. Cox advised that on a cash basis, the General Fund ended 
FYE 2019 with a balance of $6,362,998 which is an increase of $2.87 million over last year’s 
balance on June 30, 2018.  A large portion of this increase is due to the overage in landfill tipping 
fees.  This is also reflected in the General Fund current fund balance for FYE 2019 of $2,788,927.   
This would increase the Reserve Fund to $5.604 million, while maintaining a General Fund 
operating balance of over $4.36 million. This operating balance would leave the County in good 
standing for the FYE20 budget, while allowing for encumbrances and designated use of Fund 
balance.   

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FUTRELL, seconded by SUPERVISOR BLOWE and carried: 
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby appropriates and transfers 
$2,000,000 from the General Fund (100) to the Reserve Capital Project Fund (135). 
Voting aye:  Supervisors Blowe, Fly, Futrell, Seward, Stringfield  
Voting nay:  none 
Absent:  Supervisor Tyler 

6.02 PERSONNEL POLICY – Employee Training and Certification 

County Administrator Jones stated that at its June 30, 2019 Board meeting, the Board approved 
the recommended changes to the County’s Personnel Policy from the Personnel Committee and 
County Attorney’s Mark Flynn, with an effective date of July 1, 2019. 

In order to not delay the approval of the changes and the dates the changes would be effective of 
the previous amendments to the Personnel Policy at the June meeting, Vice Chairman Blowe 
wanted to consider employee training and certification at this meeting. Vice Chairman Blowe 
requested that the County employees that are required to receive training that keeps their licenses 
and certificates current, continues.  Also, all employees are encouraged to participate in training 
related to their job requirements. This training will include, but not limited to workshops, seminars, 
conferences, as well as academic courses through an approved college or university. Approvals 
for professional training must be approved by the employee’s supervisor.  



7 | Page – Minutes of the July 18, 2019 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

County Administrator Jones stated that this would also apply to the County’s Boards and 
Commissions in regards to any required trainings.  It was also encouraged that Board and 
Commission members, as well as employees, consider other avenues for improving their 
knowledge for their particular Board/Commission. 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BLOWE, seconded by SUPERVISOR STRINGFIELD and 
carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the Policy 
that all County employees that are required to receive training to keep their licenses and certificates 
current, continues; and 

FURTHER RESOLVED that all employees are encouraged to participate in training related to 
their job requirements to include, but not limited, to workshops, seminars, conferences, as well as 
academic courses through an approved college or university; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all approvals for professional training must be approved by 
the employee’s supervisors. 
Voting aye:  Supervisors Blowe, Futrell, Seward, Stringfield  
Voting nay:  Supervisor Fly 
Absent:  Supervisor Tyler 

6.03 Corrected April 18, 2019 Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes 

County Attorney Mark Flynn stated that at the April 18, 2019 Board of Supervisors meeting, the 
Board actually voted to adopt a resolution that the Board authorized the County to request the 
Circuit Court to order a referendum to consider adopting a meals tax 4% in order to address public 
education and Public Safety’s capital needs of Sussex County, which was the vote the Board 
actually held.  However, in the production of minutes the incorrect wording was entered.  County 
Attorney Flynn stated everything was the same with exception of ordering a Special Election.  It’s 
not a Special Election; it’s a referendum.  County Attorney Flynn stated that all this does is correct 
what the minutes showed to what the Board actually voted on in April 18, 2019. 

County Attorney Flynn stated that there will be two (2) parts.  The first part would be a motion to 
correct the minutes of April 18, 2019 to reflect that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors adopt 
a resolution authorizing the County to request the Circuit Court to order a referendum to consider 
adopting a meals tax 4% in order to address the public education and Public safety capital needs 
of Sussex County. 

Supervisor Fly made a secondary motion to correct the April 18, 2019 Board of Supervisors regular 
minutes and the motion to approve the meals taxes be reconsidered for the purpose of clarification. 

Point of order was called by Vice Chairman Blowe.  Vice Chairman Blowe deferred to the County 
Attorney.  He stated that the meals tax issue is not the question for the motion presented; it is the 
correction of the minutes. 

County Attorney Flynn advised that you can have an action to reconsider a resolution; however, 
the person making the motion have to have been in the majority in the first vote.  



8 | Page – Minutes of the July 18, 2019 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

County Attorney Flynn noted that he wasn’t in attendance at that meeting; however, he understands 
that Supervisor Fly was not in the majority. 

Supervisor Fly asked a member of the Board on the prevailing side to make the motion to 
reconsider.  No motion was made.  The secondary motion made by Supervisor Fly was not in 
order.   

A copy of the corrected minutes were included in the Board packet. 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BLOWE, seconded by SUPERVISOR STRINGFIELD and 
carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby corrects the April 18, 
2019 Board of Supervisors regular meeting minutes to reflect that the Sussex County Board of 
Supervisors adopts a resolution authorizing the County to request the Circuit Court to order a 
referendum to consider adopting a meals tax 4% in order to address the public education and public 
safety capital needs of Sussex County. 
Voting aye:  Supervisors Blowe, Futrell, Seward, Stringfield  
Voting nay:  Supervisor Fly 
Absent:  Supervisor Tyler 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BLOWE, seconded by SUPERVISOR STRINGFIELD and 
carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the corrected 
minutes of the April 18, 2019 Board of Supervisors regular meeting. 
Voting aye:  Supervisors Blowe, Futrell, Stringfield  
Voting nay:  Supervisor Fly, Seward 
Absent:  Supervisor Tyler 

6.04 Appropriation for National Night Out 

County Administrator Jones stated that August 6, 2019, the Sheriff’s Department will hold 
National Night Out.  County Administrator Jones stated that Sheriff has received donations from 
the community and local businesses to offset the costs and expenses of this event.  On April 24, 
2019, the Treasurer’s office received and receipted a donation of $800 for this event; however, it 
had not been appropriated to the Sheriff’s budget.  

County Administrator Jones stated that the Sheriff also anticipates receiving additional funds 
through August.  It has been requested that the $800 from the last fiscal year and any additional 
funds for this event be appropriated to the Field Operations Miscellaneous Other Account to allow 
for purchases as needed.  County Administrator Jones noted that the Sheriff keeps detailed records 
of donations and expenses that will satisfy any financial reporting for auditors.  It was noted that 
it was the Sheriff’s intention to spend all donations prior to the end of FY20. 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BLOWE, seconded by SUPERVISOR STRINGFIELD and 
carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby appropriates $800 from 
the General Fund Balance to Line Item 4-100-51100-299-512-510 Field Operations Miscellaneous 
Other; and 



9 | Page – Minutes of the July 18, 2019 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

FURTHER RESOLVED that the Treasurer is authorized to appropriate any additional funds 
received in FY20 from the National Night Out Event gifts and donations to the Sheriff’s 
Department to Line Item 4-100-51100-299-512-510 Field Operations Miscellaneous Other. 
Voting aye:  Supervisors Blowe, Fly, Futrell, Seward, Stringfield  
Voting nay:  none 
Absent:  Supervisor Tyler 

7. Reports of Departments

7.01 Atlantic Waste Disposal, Inc. – Mr. Jason Williams, Sr. District Manager 

Mr. Jason Williams, Senior District Manager of Atlantic Waste Disposal, Inc., gave a brief update. 
He noted that June 24th was 25th Anniversary of the date that waste was first accepted at Atlantic 
Waste.   Mr. Williams stated that through June of 2019, Atlantic Waste has accepted approximately 
782,000 tons in comparison to 605,000 tons accepted in 2018, with 2017 being in the 575,000 
range.   

He stated that Atlantic Waste has no current issues at the time. 

7.02 Treasurer’s Report – included in Board packet – included in Board packet 

7.03 Animal Services Report – included in Board packet 

7.04 Public Safety Report – included in Board packet 

7.05 Community Development Report – included in Board packet 

7.06 Environmental Inspections Monthly Report – included in Board packet 

7.07 Housing Department Monthly Report – included in Board packet 

7.08 Sheriff’s Department Report – included in Board packet 

8. Citizens’ Comments (8:00 p.m.)

There were comments heard from: 

• Angela McPhaul (Waverly Mayor) – Meals Tax.
• Rex Davis (Davis Oil Co.) – Meals Tax; growth in County.
• William Ricks (Sussex County Youth & Adult Recreation Association) – Status of request

made to County; update of submittal of documents. 
• Sylvia Jackson (Stony Creek Town Council Member) – Meals tax.
• Anne Joyner (Wakefield District) – Animal Shelter; new shelter; donations.
• Ernest Giles (Waverly District) – National Night Out in Jarratt & Town of Wakefield August

6th, 5 pm to 8 pm; thanked Mr. Davis for support.
• Frank Jackson (Stony Creek Mayor) – Oppose Meals Tax.



10 | Page – Minutes of the July 18, 2019 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

9. Unfinished Business

There was no Unfinished Business. 

10. New Business

There was no New Business. 

11. Board Member Comments

11.01 Blackwater District – Riverside Regional Jail; commended Sheriff Giles for Sussex County 
Jail. 

11.02 Courthouse District –   Petition for senior citizen tax relief; appreciative of help received 
at the 4-H Center; Parks and Recreation Department Study – Dr. Urd (Radford University); 
waiting for apologies regarding conversation of Courthouse citizen and Board member. 

11.03 Henry District –   Absent 

11.04 Stony Creek District – Passing of Mr. Morgan Thornton – resolution; check on neighbors. 

11.05 Wakefield District – Senior citizen tax relief; Parks & Recreation; summer meals; 
Chambliss Elementary School. 

11.06 Waverly District –   Thanked Mr. Jones, Mr. Irving, Sussex’s Community Development 
Department & staff of Housing Oversight Board for Waverly resident living situation; 
Social Services fans for seniors. 

12. Closed Session

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BLOWE, seconded by SUPERVISOR STRINGFIELD and 
carried: RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby convenes to Closed 
Session for Consultation with legal counsel and briefings by staff members or consultants 
pertaining to actual or probable litigation, where such consultation or briefing in open meeting 
would adversely affect the negotiating or litigating posture of the public body, applicable Va. Code 
Section §2.2- 3711(A)7, pertains to a private road in the county. 
Voting aye:  Supervisors Blowe, Fly, Futrell, Seward, Stringfield 
Voting nay:  none 
Absent:  Supervisor Tyler 

12.02/3  Reconvene to Open Session/Certification 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BLOWE, seconded by SUPERVISOR STRINGFIELD and 
carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby reconvened to Open 
Session. 



11 | Page – Minutes of the July 18, 2019 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

WHEREAS, the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves adoption of resolution for 
certification, to-wit: 

WHEREAS, that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors convened a Closed Meeting on this date 
pursuant to an affirmative recorded vote in accordance with the provisions of the Virginia Freedom 
of Information Act; and 

WHEREAS, Section 2.2-3712 of the Code of Virginia, as amended, requires a certification by the 
Board that such Closed Meeting was conducted inconformity with Virginia law. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors hereby certifies that, to 
the best of each member’s knowledge (i) only public business matters lawfully exempted from 
Open Meeting requirements by Virginia law were discussed in the Closed Meeting to which this 
certification resolution applies, and (ii) only such public business matters as were identified in the 
motion convening the Closed Meeting were heard discussed or considered. 
Voting aye:  Supervisors Blowe, Fly, Futrell, Seward, Stringfield 
Voting nay:  none 
Absent:  Supervisor Tyler 

12.04 Action Resulting from Closed Session 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BLOWE, seconded by SUPERVISOR STRINGFIELD and 
carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby amends the agenda to 
add Sussex County Youth and Adult Recreation Association (SCYARA) to the agenda. 
Voting aye:  Supervisors Blowe, Fly, Futrell, Seward, Stringfield 
Voting nay:  none 
Absent:  Supervisor Tyler  

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BLOWE, seconded by SUPERVISOR STRINGFIELD and 
carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby amends the July 18, 
2019 regular meeting agenda to add Sussex County Youth and Adult Recreation Association to 
the agenda. 
Voting aye:  Supervisors Blowe, Fly, Futrell, Seward, Stringfield 
Voting nay:  none 
Absent:  Supervisor Tyler  

Ms. Deste Cox, Treasurer, stated that the information that was requested from Sussex County 
Youth and Adult Recreation Association (SCYARA) was provided. 

It was noted that there was $7,000 in donations receipted in SCYARA’s account for the month of 
June.   

There was discussion of SCYARA’s account, funds, costs, and the status of the Waverly Pool, as 
well as the anticipated date of the opening of the pool. 

Mr. William Ricks, President of SCYARA, was present. 



12 | Page – Minutes of the July 18, 2019 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

There was discussion of providing funds based on a reimbursement program.  There was also 
discussion that if SCYARA did not do what it is supposed to do with pool, the Board has every 
right, in the future, to not honor any funding.  There was also discussion of reimbursement to the 
County, if the pool didn’t open. 

Supervisor Fly offered a secondary motion that the $10,000 be allocated with the stipulation that 
if the pool does not open, the $10,000 must be reimbursed to the County.  Due to the lack of second 
for the motion, the motion failed.  The original motion was back on the floor. 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BLOWE, seconded by SUPERVSOR STRINGFIELD and 
carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby appropriates $10,000 
to Sussex County Youth and Adult Recreation Association (SCYARA). 
Voting aye:  Supervisors Blowe, Futrell, Seward, Stringfield 
Voting nay:  Supervisor Fly 
Absent:  Supervisor Tyler 

13. Adjournment

Chairman Seward reminded everyone that the August 15, 2019 regular Board of Supervisors 
meeting was cancelled.  The next regular Board meeting would be September 19, 2019. 

13.01 Adjournment 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BLOWE, seconded by SUPERVISOR STRINGFIELD and 
carried:  RESOLVED that the July 18, 2019 meeting of the Sussex County Board of Supervisors 
hereby adjourned at 10:02 p.m. 
Voting aye:  Supervisors Blowe, Fly, Futrell, Seward, Stringfield 
Voting nay:  none 
Absent:  Supervisor Tyler 

13.02 Next Meeting 

The next regular Board of Supervisors meeting will be held on Thursday, September 19, 2019 at 
7 p.m. in the Sussex Judicial Center - General District Courtroom, 15098 Courthouse Road, 
Sussex, VA 23884. 



TOTAL ALL WARRANTS FOR APPROVAL $663,936.39

TOTAL ALL VOID CHECKS FOR APPROVAL $14,767.61

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE WARRANTS: CHECK NO. AMOUNTS PROCESS DATE

FOR MONTH OF  JULY 2019
213667-213745 441,432.83$   RUN DATE 7/11/19
213746-213752 210.00$          RUN DATE 7/15/19
213753-213788 63,527.51$     RUN DATE 7/17/19
213789-213811 36,510.54$     RUN DATE 7/17/19
213812-213814 5,196.51$       RUN DATE 7/24/19

Total Regular Warrants $546,877.39

PAY. DEDUCTION WARRANTS:
213658-213666 58,112.70$     RUN DATE 7/16/19
213815-213823 58,946.30$     RUN DATE 7/31/19

Total Deduction Warrants: $117,059.00

TOTAL VOUCHERS & WARRANTS FOR APPROVAL $663,936.39

VOID CHECKS See attached 14,767.61$     

August 15, 2019

      WARRANTS & VOUCHERS SUMMARY

2.02

sricks
Highlight



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
CHECKS 





































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

PAYROLL 
DEDUCTION 

CHECKS 







TOTAL ALL WARRANTS FOR APPROVAL $1,244,008.02

TOTAL ALL VOID CHECKS FOR APPROVAL $30,375.00

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE WARRANTS: CHECK NO. AMOUNTS PROCESS DATE

FOR MONTH OF AUGUST 2019
213824-213830 7,190.16$       RUN DATE 8/1/19
213831-213899 220,812.67$   RUN DATE 8/1/19
213900-213954 318,045.11$   RUN DATE 8/8/19
213964-214022 166,872.39$   RUN DATE 8/15/19
214023-214026 4,734.30$       RUN DATE 8/15/19
214027-214060 204,826.92$   RUN DATE 8/22/19
214071-214123 207,515.87$   RUN DATE 8/29/19

Total Regular Warrants $1,129,997.42

PAY. DEDUCTION WARRANTS:
213955-213963 56,070.53$     RUN DATE 8/16/19
214061-214070 57,940.07$     RUN DATE 8/30/19

Total Deduction Warrants: $114,010.60

TOTAL VOUCHERS & WARRANTS FOR APPROVAL $1,244,008.02

VOID CHECKS See attached 30,375.00$     

September 19, 2019

      WARRANTS & VOUCHERS SUMMARY



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
CHECKS 

 

































































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

PAYROLL 
DEDUCTION 

CHECKS 







BOARD FORM 

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda Item #2.03 

Subject: Acceptance and Appropriation of Department of Criminal Justice Services Grant #20-
W9574VW18 - $105,474 

Board Meeting Date:   September 19 2019 

============================================================================== 
Summary: Staff is in receipt of the FY20 Statement of Grant Award (SOGA) and Budget Narrative 
for the Department of Criminal Justice Services Grant #20-W9574VW18 for the Sussex County 
Victim/Witness Assistance Grant Program. 

Federal funds were approved in the amount of $79,106 and $26,368 in State Special Funds for a 
total award of $105,474.00 for the Victim Witness Program. 

The Finance Department is requesting that the Board of Supervisors accepts and appropriates 
Victim Grant #20-W9574VW18 for FY2020 from the Virginia Department of Criminal Justice in 
the amount of $105,474.00.  There is no local match. 

Recommendation:  That the Board accepts Victim Witness Grant #20-W9574VW18 from the 
Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Services (DCJS) in the amount of f $79,106 in Federal 
Funds and $26,368 in State Special Funds for a total award of $105,474.00 and appropriates the 
same. 

Attachment: Copy of FY2020 Statement of Grant Award & Budget Narrative for Sussex County 
Victim/Witness Assistance Program for Grant #20-W9574VW18 

============================================================================== 

ACTION:  That the Board accepts Victim Witness Grant #20-W9574VW18 from the Virginia 
Department of Criminal Justice Services (DCJS) in the amount of f $79,106 in Federal Funds and 
$26,368 in State Special Funds for a total award of $105,474.00 and appropriates the same. 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Blowe ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Stringfield ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

Consent Agenda - Page 1



Consent Agenda - Page 2



Consent Agenda - Page 3



Consent Agenda - Page 4



Consent Agenda - Page 5



Consent Agenda - Page 6



Consent Agenda - Page 7



Consent Agenda - Page 8



Consent Agenda - Page 9



Consent Agenda - Page 10



Consent Agenda - Page 11



Consent Agenda - Page 12



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Consent Agenda #2.04 

Subject:     Recognizing September 2019 as Hunger Action Month 

Board Meeting Date: September 19 2019 

============================================================================== 
Summary: When Feeding America and member food banks ask everyone take action to fight hunger 
in their community, all month long, Hunger Action Month is your opportunity to join a movement 
that has a real and lasting impact on our effort to feed more Americans than ever before. Whether 
it’s by advocating and raising awareness, making donations, or volunteering, you can find the way 
that’s right for you to make a difference during Hunger Action Month.  

For the past several years, Sussex County Administration has collected non-perishable food items 
and canned good items to help feed our local residents. All County employees, citizens and even 
Board members are asked to donate items to make the movement a success.  

County Administration began collecting non-perishable and canned good items this month.  All items 
collected will be donated to one of the local agencies or non-profit organization in Sussex County. 

Recommendation: That the Sussex County Board of Supervisors recognizes September as Hunger 
Action month and encourage County employees and citizens to assist in this endeavor. 

============================================================================== 
ACTION: That the Sussex County Board of Supervisors recognizes September as Hunger Action month 
and encourage County employees and citizens to assist in this endeavor. 

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY:  

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Blowe Seward 

Fly Stringfield 

Futrell Tyler 

Consent Agenda - Page 13



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Recognition #3.01 

Subject: Resolution in Recognition of the Late Thomas Morgan Thornton 

Board Meeting Date:  September 19 2019 

============================================================================== 
Summary:   Mr. Thornton served the citizens of Sussex County for many years as the Postmaster 
at the Post Office and the owner of the T. E. Thornton Store on the Courthouse Complex. 

At the July 18, 2019 Board meeting, Vice Chairman Blowe advised the Board and staff that Mr. 
Thomas Morgan Thornton had passed and requested that a resolution be prepared in recognition 
of Mr. Thornton.   

Mr. Thornton will be missed by the employees of the Courthouse and its citizens. 

Recommendation: That the Board approves and adopts the resolution in recognition of the Late 
Thomas Morgan Thornton. 

Attachment:     A copy of the Resolution in Recognition of the Late Thomas Morgan Thornton 

============================================================================== 

ACTION:  That the Board approves and adopts the resolution in recognition of the Late Thomas 
Morgan Thornton. 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Blowe ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Stringfield ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

Recognition – Page 1 



  Resolution 

In Recognition and Profound Appreciation of 
Thomas Morgan Thornton 

WHEREAS, on Thursday, July 18, 2019, Sussex County loss one its 
beloved citizens, Thomas Morgan Thornton; and 

WHEREAS, Mr. Thornton was a lifelong resident of Sussex County with a 
deep love for animals, especially unwanted kittens and cats; and 

WHEREAS, Mr. Thornton was a graduate of Waverly High School, 
Richard Bland College and Virginia Commonwealth University; and 

WHEREAS, in May of 1979, he was appointed and served for a total of 47 
years as both Assistant Postmaster and Postmaster. 

WHEREAS, Mr. Thornton was the owner of the T. E. Thornton Store 
located at Sussex Courthouse, which was started by his grandfather in 1913, that 
served many Sussex County employees and citizens; and, 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of 
Supervisors, by this resolution, recognizes the late Thomas Morgan Thornton for 
his contribution to the County and its citizens;  

FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution be placed, recorded 
and retained in the Minutes Book of Sussex County. 

Adopted:  September 19, 2019 

          Susan B. Seward, Chair       Keith C. Blowe, Vice-Chairman 
             Board of Supervisors  Board of Supervisors 

Recognition – Page 2 



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Recognition #3.02 

Subject: Proclamation:  Union Hill United Church of Christ – 150th Year Church Anniversary 

Board Meeting Date:  September 19 2019 

============================================================================== 
Summary:   Staff received a request from Ms. Katrina Faltz for a proclamation for Union Hill 
United Church of Christ, located in Sedley, Virginia.  Their request is to commemorate Union Hill’s 
150th Year Church Anniversary.  This joyous occasion will be held Sunday, October 13, 2019 at 
2:00 p.m. 

Recommendation:  That the Board approves and adopts the proclamation commemorating 
Union Hill United Church of Christ 150th Church Anniversary 

Attachments: (1) A copy of the Proclamation for Union Hill United Church of Christ – 150th 
Church Anniversary 

(2) Ms. Katrina Faltz’s request, dated August 1, 2019

============================================================================== 

ACTION:  That the Board approves and adopts the proclamation commemorating Union Hill 
United Church of Christ’s 150th Church Anniversary 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Blowe ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Stringfield ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

Recognition – Page 3 



 PROCLAMATION 

Union Hill United Church of Christ 
150th Anniversary 

WHEREAS, Union Hill United Church of Christ, with a very rich and proud history, 
is commemorating its 150th church anniversary on October 13, 2019; and 

WHEREAS, it has been determined that Union Hill United Church of Christ was 
established in or around 1869; and 

WHEREAS, a group of former slaves, devoted and dynamic trailblazers, (Henry 
Hamlin, William Henry Hamlin, and Lewis Thomas), grew frustrated with tired of worshipping 
in the back of Barrett’s Church—a white church down the road; and 

WHEREAS, for the price of one dollar, these men were given one acre of land by Mr. 
James S. Nosworthy, and  

WHEREAS, they established a bush harbor across the street from the present church, 
and chose the name Union Hill Christian Church, pastored by Reverend Aaron Peddler; and 

WHEREAS, during the tenure of Reverend Allen Copeland (1927-1936), his vision 
was of a permanent place of worship, ultimately purchasing the land for their first permanent 
structure that was built on the present site; and 

WHEREAS, later the current leader, Roy A. Stokes was installed as interim pastor in 
2006; and  

WHEREAS, Reverend Stokes was ordained and installed in October 2008, wherein 
Union Hill continues to advance and grow, as he ministers to the church family and community; 
and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of 
Supervisors by this proclamation, hereby honors the 150th anniversary of Union Hill United 
Church of Christ and urge all citizens to pay tribute to this church on October 13, 2019, 

Adopted:  September 19, 2019 

          Susan B. Seward, Chair       Keith C. Blowe, Vice-Chairman 
 Board of Supervisors  Board of Supervisors 

Recognition – Page 4 



August 1, 2019 

Sussex County Board Of Supervisors 
P.O. Box 1397 
Sussex, VA  23884 

Dear Honorable Susan B. Seward, 

My name is Katrina Faltz, residing in Sussex County (Wakefield VA).  I attend Union Hill United Church of Christ in Sedley 
Virginia.  On October 13, 2019 @ 2:00 pm.   We will be celebrating our 150th year church anniversary.  I'm requesting a letter 
of proclamation from your office to commemorate our years of service and fellowship.  It will also appear in our church anniversary 
souvenir booklet. 

Additionally, I'm cordially inviting you or your designee to join us for this joyous occasion. For your convenience, I have provided the 
church address and my contact information below.  Feel free to contact me, should you have any additional questions or concerns. 
It is with great hope you will attend our program. 

I have included several highlights about the church’s history. 

* Union Hill has a very rich and proud history.

* It has been determined that Union Hill was established in or around 1869.

* God gave a group of devoted and dynamic trailblazers (Henry Hamlin, William Henry Hamlin, and Lewis Thomas).  These men
were former slaves who had grown tired of worshipping in the back of Barrett's Church (A white church just down the road).  They
were given one acre of land for the price of one dollar by Mr.  James S. Nosworthy.   They established a bush harbor across the
street from our present church.  They chose the name Union Hill Christian Church. The pastor of this group was Reverend Aaron
Peddler.

*During the tenure of Reverend Allen Copeland (1927-1936) he was given a vision to establish a more permanent place of
worship.  Ultimately the land was purchased and the 1st permanent structure was built on the present site.

*In later years with each new pastor that came through Union Hill United Church of Christ, it appeared that God gave each pastor a
vision to do something that would improve and enrich the church and community.

* Under the leadership of the Holy Spirit, the church's current leader Roy A. Stokes was installed as interim pastor in 2006.  He was
ordained and installed in October 2008.  Under his leadership Union Hill has continued to advance and grow and minister to the
church family and community

Thank you in advance for your time and consideration. 

Regards, 
Katrina Faltz 
Katrina Faltz 

Union Hill United Church Of Christ / Att:  Mrs. Graves 
16192 Union Hill Road 
Sedley, Va. 23878 
609-968-0170

Recognition – Page 5 



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Public Hearing Item #4.01 

Subject:   Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Sussex County and the Historical 
Society 

Board Meeting Date:  September 19 2019 

============================================================================== 
Summary:  The purpose of this Public Hearing is to renew the Memorandum of Understanding 
between Sussex County and the Sussex County Historical Society (“Society”). 

This agreement is a long term partnership for the preservation of the Sussex County Historic 
Courthouse Building and to describe a working agreement between Sussex County and the 
Historical Society for the establishment of a lease and maintenance agreement for the Society.   

Further details are provided in the MOU included in the Board packet. 

Recommendation:  That the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves and agrees to 
the renewal of the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Sussex County, a political 
subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia, located at Post Office Box 1397, 20135 Princeton 
Road, Sussex, Virginia 23884 and the Sussex County Historical Society, a 501(C)(3) charitable 
organization duly recognized by the Internal Revenue Service, located at Post Office Box 1361, 
Sussex, Virginia 23884. 

Attachments: (1)  Copy of the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Sussex County 
and the Sussex County Historical Society. 

(2) Copy of Public Hearing Notice

============================================================================== 
ACTION:   That the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves and agrees to the 
renewal of the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Sussex County, a political 
subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia, located at Post Office Box 1397, 20135 Princeton 
Road, Sussex, Virginia 23884 and the Sussex County Historical Society, a 501(C)(3) charitable 
organization duly recognized by the Internal Revenue Service, located at Post Office Box 1361, 
Sussex, Virginia 23884. 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Blowe ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Stringfield ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

Public Hearing - Page 1



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
By and Between  

Sussex County, Virginia  
and 

Sussex County Historical Society  

This Memorandum of Understanding is made this ___ day of ____________, 2019. The parties 
involved are SUSSEX COUNTY, VIRGINIA, a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of 
Virginia (hereinafter referred to as “County”), located at Post Office Box 1397, 20233 Thornton 
Square, Sussex, Virginia 23884 and the SUSSEX COUNTY VIRGINIA HISTORICAL 
SOCIETY, a 501(c) (3) charitable organization duly recognized by the Internal Revenue Service 
(the “Society”), located at Post Office Box 1361 Sussex, Virginia 23884. 

I. PURPOSE

The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding is for the parties herein to immediately enter 
into a long term partnership for the preservation of the Sussex County Historic Courthouse 
Building (the “Building”) and to describe a working agreement between the parties for the 
establishment of a lease and maintenance agreement for the Society, eventually assuming a 
tenancy and occupancy of the Sussex County Historic Courthouse for the public purpose of 
providing a permanent display of the history of Sussex County and to allow all segments of the 
public to have a central educational teaching and learning center for the generations of Sussex 
County citizens and other individuals now and in the future. This Memorandum of 
Understanding may be terminated at any time by either party, provided such termination notice is 
in writing, with cause, providing ninety (90) days’ notice for relocation of Society property. It 
may also be modified at any time by joint agreement in writing between the parties.  

Because the parties herein intend to maintain an open, collaborative and cooperative working 
relationship, the parties agree to the following points with respect to the previously stated and 
previously stated and previously designated Sussex Historical Courthouse building.  

II. PROCEDURE FOR EFECTUATION OF LEASING AND MAINTENANCE
AGREEMENT

This Memorandum of Understanding sets forth a process that Sussex County and the Society 
agree to follow.  

1. The Historical Courthouse building is presently serving as a facility housing important
governmental and public safety offices and work areas to enable the County to perform
its mandated duties and responsibilities for the health, safety and welfare of the County’s
citizens and suitable and adequate replacement facilities must be secured prior to any
leasing and maintenance agreement with the Historical Society being effectuated.

2. The Society, during the interim period herein, shall make all reasonable efforts to identify
and secure governmental, charitable grants and monetary contributions from corporate,
business and individual contributors and other funding sources for needed restoration of
the building.

Public Hearing - Page 2



3. Consistent with the recommendations of the Board of Supervisors’ Building and Grounds
Committee with the advice and participation of the Society and thereafter confirmed by
the entire Board of Supervisors, all professional consultants, plans and specifications
must be approved by the Board of Supervisors. After necessary preliminary planning and
feasibility studies and evaluations have been completed by the Society, a proposed
schedule for restoration and construction, including funding options, shall be provided to
the Board of Supervisors for review and approval.

4. During the feasibility study for uses, renovations and restorations of the building,
consideration will be given to the Society for the use of portions of the building for
meetings, museum, welcome/tourist center, research library for genealogy research, and
other public purposes.

III. PROCESS FOR IMPLEMENTATION

5. The lease and maintenance agreement is envisioned to cover the historic two story
portion of the Courthouse (the “Building”). However, the Board of Supervisors, may
upon the request of the County Administrator or a Board of Supervisors member, after
consultation with the Society, and prior to the leasing of the entire two story portion of
the Historic Courthouse, lease a designated portion of the Historic Courthouse to the
Historical Society or allow specified access and specified use privileges to the Society for
public historical events and society meetings and tours and other public activities of the
Historical Society.

6. The County envisions being responsible for the structural concepts of maintaining the
building and the Society envisions that they will be responsible for ongoing wear and tear
and day-to-day maintenance and operation of said building. The County would reserve
the right to enter said building at any time for any inspection of the said building or any
public or emergency circumstance which may arise.

7. The County would continue to pay utilities and insurance on the building. Property and
liability insurance would be paid by the County. However, should the County determine,
in consultation with the Historical Society, that sufficient monetary funds have become
available to the Society to assume payment of the utilities and insurance on the building,
the Society agrees to reimburse the County, in whole or part to be determined by the
County.

8. The duration of this lease is for ten (10) years and it is understood and agreed by the
parties that this lease shall automatically renew each ten (10) years unless one party to the
lease gives notice of cancellation or proposal for amendment at least ninety (90) days in
advance of the renewal date.

9. The approval of the County Administrator would be required for any sublease, by the
Society, of more than 24 hours. The lease statement would require payments of one
($1.00) dollar per year.

10. A public hearing on the proposed lease agreement, as may then be required under the
Code of Virginia, shall be properly advertised and conducted prior to the execution of
any lease and maintenance agreement by the Board of Supervisors.

Public Hearing - Page 3



IV. LEGAL EFFECT

Nothing in the Memorandum of Understanding is intended to diminish or otherwise affect the 
author of the County to implement its statutory functions, nor is it intended to create any right or 
benefit, substantive or procedural enforceable at law by the Society against Sussex County or its 
agencies, its officers, or any other person. This Memorandum of Understanding is effective upon 
signature by both parties.  

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE SUSSEX COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

_______________________       _____________________ 

Vandy Jones        Effective Date  

[Sussex County Administrator] 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE SUSSEX COUNTY VIRGINIA HISTORICAL SOCIETY 

________________________ ______________________ 

________________________  Effective Date  

(Print name) 

Sussex County Virginia Historical 

Society 

Public Hearing - Page 4



Public Hearing - Page 5



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Public Hearing Item #4.02 

Subject:   ORDINANCE AMENDMENT:  Sussex County Code of Ordinance - Chapter 12 Emergency 
Management & Emergency Services, Article I.,§12-1 

Board Meeting Date:  September 19 2019 

============================================================================== 
Summary:  The purpose of this Public Hearing is to consider amending the County Ordinance, 
Chapter 12 Emergency Management and Emergency Services, Article I. General, Section 12-1 
Recognition of Volunteer Rescue Squads and Fire Departments, to add the Stony Creek Volunteer 
Rescue Squad, Inc. to Emergency Medical Services. 

A copy of §12-1 Recognition of Volunteer Rescue Squads and Fire Departments of the Sussex 
County Code of Ordinance was included in the Board packet. 

Recommendation:  That the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves and adopts 
the amendment to the County Ordinance, Chapter 12 Emergency Management and Emergency 
Services, Article I. General, Section 12-1 Recognition of Volunteer Rescue Squads and Fire 
Departments, to add the Stony Creek Volunteer Rescue Squad, Inc. to Emergency Medical 
Services. 
. 

Attachments: (1)  Copy of §12-1 of the Sussex County Code of Ordinance Chapter 12 
(2) Draft Copy of §12-1 of the Sussex County Code of Ordinance Chapter 12

including Stony Creek Volunteer Rescue Squad, Inc.
(3) Copy of Public Hearing Notices

============================================================================== 
ACTION:   That the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves and adopts the 
amendment to the County Ordinance, Chapter 12 Emergency Management and Emergency 
Services, Article I. General, Section 12-1 Recognition of Volunteer Rescue Squads and Fire 
Departments, to add the Stony Creek Volunteer Rescue Squad, Inc. to Emergency Medical 
Services. 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Blowe ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Stringfield ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

Public Hearing - Page 6



Public Hearing - Page 7



CD12:1 

Chapter 12 

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AND EMERGENCY SERVICES* 

Article I. In General 
Sec. 12-1. Recognition of volunteer rescue squads and fire departments. 
Sec. 12-2. Off-duty employment of deputy sheriffs. 
Secs.  12-3—12-22.  Reserved. 

Article II. Emergency Management (Reserved) 

*State law references—Commonwealth of Virginia Emergency Services and Disaster
Law of 2000, Code of Virginia, § 44-146.13 et seq.; fire and EMS departments and 
companies, Code of Virginia, § 27-6.1 et seq.; sheriffs, Code of  Virginia, § 15.2-1609 et 
seq. 

Public Hearing - Page 8



EMERGENCY  MANAGEMENT  AND EMERGENCY SERVICES § 12-22 

ARTICLE I.  IN GENERAL 

Sec. 12-1. Recognition of volunteer rescue squads and fire departments. 

The following volunteer rescue and fire squads are hereby recognized as an integral part 
of the official safety program of this county and state: 

(1) Jarratt Volunteer Fire Department, Inc.

(2) Old Hickory Volunteer Fire Department.

(3) Stony Creek Volunteer Fire Department.

(4) Stony Creek Volunteer Rescue Squad

(5) . Sussex Courthouse Volunteer Fire Department.

(6) Wakefield Volunteer Fire Department.

(7) Waverly Rescue Squad, Inc.

(8) Waverly Volunteer Fire Department. 
(Code 1991, § 2-2; Ord. of 1-18-1973) 

State law reference—Fire and EMS departments and companies, Code of Virginia, § 27-
6.1  et seq. 

Sec. 12-2. Off-duty employment of deputy sheriffs. 

Pursuant to Code of Virginia, § 15.2-1712, upon individual application to, and approval 
by the sheriff, in the sole discretion of the sheriff, deputy sheriffs may engage in off-duty 
employment, including employment which may occasionally require such officers to use 
their law enforcement powers in the performance of such employment. Such off-duty 
employment shall be subject to such rules, regulations and conditions as the sheriff may 
prescribe. 
(Code 1991, § 2-3; Ord. of  5-15-1986) 

State law reference—State compensation board generally, Code of Virginia, § 15.2-1636.5 
et seq. 

Secs.  12-3—12-22. Reserved. 

ARTICLE II.  EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT (RESERVED)* 

*State law reference—Commonwealth of Virginia Emergency Services and Disaster Law of
2000, Code of  Virginia, § 44-146.13.

Public Hearing - Page 9



Public Hearing - Page 10



Public Hearing - Page 11



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Appointment #5.01 

Subject:  Appointment to Planning Commission 

Board Meeting Date: September 19 2019 

============================================================================== 
Summary:  Mr. Jeffrey Gary was a member of the County’s Planning Commission, representing the 
Stony Creek District.  Mr. Gary was hired as the County’s new Building Official, starting August 19, 
2019.  Due to his employment with the County, Mr. Gary submitted his resignation from the 
Planning Commission, effective August 20, 2019.  Mr. Gary’s term was due to expire June 30, 2022. 

The Board will need to make an appointment to fill vacancy to complete the unexpired of expiring 
June 30, 2022, created by Mr. Gary’s resignation, if it is the Board’s desire.  

Recommendation: That the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby appoints __________ to 
the Planning Commission to fill the unexpired term ending June 30, 2022. 

Attachments:  (1) Copy of Mr. Gary’s Resignation Letter 
(2) Copy of Planning Commission Members

============================================================================== 
ACTION:  That the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby appoints ___________________ 
to the Planning Commission to fill the unexpired term ending June 30, 2022. 

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY:  

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Blowe Seward 

Fly Stringfield 

Futrell Tyler 





 
 
 
SUSSEX COUNTY         
PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS       
(Updated September 2019)            
                    
J. Lafayette Edmond, Chair (Courthouse)        Ms. Terry Massenburg,Vice-Chair (Henry) 
Waverly, Virginia 23890          Post Office Box 330 
Home: 804-834-2610           Stony Creek, VA 23882 
Mobile: 804-387-9330           Cell: 804-898-4283 
Term expires: 6/30/23          Work: 434-246-2701 
jlebigfoot@gmail.com         Term expires: 04/30/2020 
                     
             Roger King (Wakefield) 
                                            Post Office Box 349 
                                                                                                       Waverly, VA 23890        
Jeffery Gary (Stony Creek) 
14044 Courthouse Road    
Waverly, VA 23890   
Home: 804-898-0714  
Term expires: 06/30/2022   
 
Mr. Frank Irvin, Executive Director 
Executive Director  
Sussex Service Authority 
4385 Beefsteak Road 
Waverly, Virginia 23890 
Office: 804-834-8930 
firving@ssa-va.org 
 
Mr. Dennis Mason (Wakefield) 
407 East Main Street 
Wakefield, VA 23888 
Home: 757-899-8401 
Cell: 757-647-9799 
Term: 06/30/20 
 
Mr. Andrew Mayes (Waverly) 
328 Coppahaunk Avenue 
Waverly, VA 23890 
Home: 804-337-1858 
Term: 01/31/23 
amayes@commonwealthenvironmental.com 

Term expires: 01/31/2022 
 
 
 
Mr. Kevin Bracy (Courthouse)  
18377 Courthouse Road 
Yale, VA 23897 
Home: 434-246-4720 
Cell: 757-635-8685 
Term expires: 01/31/23 
bornajunker@hotmail.com 
 
Brenda Burgess (Waverly)   
205 East Main Street 
Waverly, VA 23890   
Home: 804-834-8881 
Cell: 757-899-0083 
Term: 01/31/22   
bl721@aol.com 
   
Robert Young, Jr. (Stony Creek) 
Post Office Box 133 
Stony Creek, Virginia 23882 
Home: 434-246-4781  
Work: 434-594-2492 
Mobile: 804-896-3907 
Term: 04/30/20  

 
 

 
 
 

**Planning Commission meet the first Monday of each Month at 6:00 p.m. **  

mailto:jlebigfoot@gmail.com
mailto:bornajunker@hotmail.com
mailto:bl721@aol.com


BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Action Items #6.01 

Subject:  Presentation and Acceptance of Department of Forestry Funds 

Board Meeting Date:  September 19 2019 
============================================================================== 
Summary:    Mr. Dennis Gaston, a representative of the Virginia Department of Forestry, will be in 
attendance.  Mr. Gaston is the forester that manages the Big Woods State Forest in Sussex County. 

It is the policy of the Department of Forestry to give 25% of their gross revenue from timber sales back to 
the County where the timber sales took place. Mr. Gaston will present the check in the amount $50,625.84 
to the Board. 

Recommendation:  That the Board accepts the funds in the amount of $50,625.84 from the Department 
of Forestry and appropriate it to the FY 2023 General Fund or the line item it so desires. 

Attachments:  N/A 

============================================================================== 
ACTION:  That the Board accepts the funds in the amount of $50,625.84 from the Department 
of Forestry and appropriate it to the FY 2023 General Fund or the line item it so desires. 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Blowe ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Stringfield ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

Action Items - Page 1



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Action Items #6.02 

Subject:  Sussex County Public Schools Request for Budget Amendment 

Board Meeting Date:  September 19 2019 
============================================================================== 
Summary:    Administration was advised by Mr. John Broderick, Director of Finance & Business 
Operations for Sussex County Public Schools, that on June 30, 2019, the school division had a cash balance 
of $302,126.25.   

Mr. Broderick is requesting to amend the school’s budget to re-appropriate 100% of the entire cash 
balance at June 30, 2019 of $302,126.25 to the school board. 

Recommendation:  None 

Attachments:  N/A 

============================================================================== 
ACTION:     

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Blowe ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Stringfield ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

Action Items - Page 2



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Action Items #6.03 

Subject:  Approval of Performance Agreement between Sussex County and Three Brothers’ 
Distillery, Inc. 

Board Meeting Date:  September 19 2019 
============================================================================== 
Summary:    On July 29, 2019, Sussex County was awarded its first Agriculture and Forestry 
Industries Development (AFID) grant from the Virginia Department of Agriculture and Consumer 
Services (VDACS).  The grant was awarded to assist Three Brothers’ Distillery in the expansion of 
its Sussex Operation.  The grant is in the amount of $12,500 to be used for the construction of a 
new entry road to the Distillery that will originate in Sussex County. 

VDACS requires the County to enter into a Performance Agreement with Three Brothers’ 
Distillery and the Sussex Industrial Development Authority.  The Performance Agreement sets 
the parameters under which the grant funds are to be distributed to the Distillery. 

The Performance Agreement has been reviewed and approved by the County Attorney.  

Recommendation:  That the Board authorizes the County Administrator to execute the 
Performance Agreement. 

Attachment:  Governor’s Agriculture & Forestry Industries Development Fund Performance 
Agreement 

============================================================================== 
ACTION:   That the Board authorizes the County Administrator to execute the Performance 
Agreement. 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Blowe ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Stringfield ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

Action Items - Page 3



GOVERNOR’S AGRICULTURE & FORESTRY INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT 
FUND 

PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 

This PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) made and entered this ____ 
day of __________, 2019, by and among the COUNTY OF SUSSEX, VIRGINIA (the “Locality”) 
a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia (the “Commonwealth”), and THREE 
BROTHERS’ DISTILLERY, INC. (the “Company”), a Virginia corporation authorized to transact 
business in the Commonwealth, and the INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF 
THE COUNTY OF SUSSEX, VIRGINIA (the “Authority”), a political subdivision of the 
Commonwealth.   

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the Locality has been awarded a grant of and expects to receive $12,500 from 
the Governor’s Agriculture & Forestry Industries Development Fund (an “AFID Grant”) through 
the Virginia Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services (“VDACS”) for the purpose of 
inducing the Company to expand and improve an agriculture and/or forestry processing/value-added 
facility using Virginia-grown products in the Locality (the “Facility”), thereby making a significant 
Capital Investment, as hereinafter defined, creating a significant number of New Jobs and FTEs, as 
hereinafter defined; and purchasing a significant amount of Virginia-grown agricultural and forestal 
products, as hereinafter defined. 

WHEREAS, the Locality is willing to provide the funds to the Authority with the expectation 
that the Authority will provide the funds to or for the use of the Company, provided that the Company 
promises to meet certain criteria relating to Capital Investment, New Jobs and FTEs, and purchase of 
Virginia-grown agricultural and forestal products;  

WHEREAS, the Locality, the Authority and the Company desire to set forth their 
understanding and agreement as to the payout of the AFID Grant, the use of the AFID Grant 
proceeds, the obligations of the Company regarding Capital Investment, New Job creation, purchase 
of Virginia-grown agricultural and forestal products, and the repayment by the Company of all or part 
of the AFID Grant under certain circumstances;  

WHEREAS, the expansion and operation of the Facility will entail a capital expenditure of 
approximately $232,500, of which approximately $90,000 will be invested in machinery and 
equipment, approximately $50,000 will be invested in tangible personal property (FFE), and 
approximately $92,500 will be invested in the construction and up fits to improve the site and building; 

WHEREAS, the expansion and operation of the Facility will further entail the creation of 2 
New Jobs and 2 Full-Time Job Equivalents (FTEs) at the Facility;  

WHEREAS, the expansion and operation of the Facility will further lead to the purchase of 
Virginia-grown agricultural and forestal products in the following amount:  $49,350 or 57 tons of 
Virginia-grown corn, rye, and barley over the performance period (see Appendix A for details); and 

Action Items - Page 4



WHEREAS, the stimulation of the additional tax revenue and economic activity to be 
generated by the Capital Investment, New Jobs, and purchase of Virginia-grown agricultural and 
forestal products constitutes a valid public purpose for the expenditure of public funds and is the 
animating purpose for the AFID Grant: 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the mutual benefits, promises and 
undertakings of the parties to this Agreement, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt 
and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties covenant and agree as follows. 

Section 1.   Definitions. 

For the purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following definitions: 

“Capital Investment” means a capital expenditure by the Company in taxable real property, 
taxable tangible personal property, or both, at the Facility.  The Capital Investment must be in addition 
to the capital improvements at the Facility as of June 20, 2019. The total capital expenditure of 
$232,500 is referred to in this Agreement as the “Capital Investment.”     

“Maintain” means that the New Jobs and FTEs created pursuant to the AFID Grant will 
continue without interruption from the date of creation through the Performance Date.  Positions for 
the New Jobs and FTEs will be treated as Maintained during periods in which such positions are not 
filled due to temporary reductions in the Company’s employment levels in connection with 
recruitment for open positions or strikes and other work stoppages.    

“New Job” means new permanent full-time employment of an indefinite duration at the 
Facility for which the standard fringe benefits are paid by the Company for the employee, and for 
which the Company pays an average annual wage of at least $30,000.  Each New Job must require a 
minimum of either (i) 35 hours of an employee’s time per week for the entire normal year of the 
Company’s operations, which “normal year” must consist of at least 48 weeks, or (ii) 1,680 hours per 
year.  Seasonal or temporary positions, positions created when a job function is shifted from an 
existing location in the Commonwealth, and positions with construction contractors, vendors, 
suppliers and similar multiplier or spin-off jobs shall not qualify as New Jobs.  The New Jobs must be 
in addition to the 2 full-time jobs at the Facility as of June 20, 2019.  

Full-Time Equivalent positions (FTEs), are part-time and seasonal positions created by the 
project on a predictable, annual basis, which do not meet the definition of New Job, and for which 
the Company pays an average annual wage of at least $21,000 per FTE.  For the purposes of the AFID 
Grant, these positions should be converted into full-time equivalent (FTE) positions based on one 
FTE equaling 1,680 hours per year.   

“Performance Date” means October 31, 2022.  If the Locality, in consultation with the 
Authority and the Secretary of Agriculture and Forestry, deems that good faith and reasonable efforts 
have been made and are being made by the Company to achieve the Targets, the Locality may agree 
to extend the Performance Date by up to 15 months.  If the Performance Date is extended, the 
Locality shall send written notice of the extension to the Authority, the Company and the Secretary 
of Agriculture and Forestry and the date to which the Performance Date has been extended shall be 
the “Performance Date” for the purposes of this Agreement.  

Action Items - Page 5



“Targets” means the Company’s obligations to make Capital Investments at the Facility of at 
least $232,500, to create and Maintain at least 2 New Jobs and 2 FTEs at the Facility, and to purchase 
at least $49,350 or 57 tons of Virginia-grown agricultural and forestal products as defined in Appendix 
A, all as of the Performance Date.  

“Virginia Code” means the Code of Virginia of 1950, as amended.    

Section 2.   Targets. 

The Company will develop and operate the Facility in the Locality, make a Capital Investment 
of at least $232,500, create and Maintain at least 2 New Jobs and 2 FTEs, and purchase $49,350 or 57 
tons of Virginia-grown agricultural and forestal products (see Appendix A), at the Facility, all as of the 
Performance Date.  If the dollar amount of new purchases of Virginia-grown agricultural and forestal 
products is not met, the Company can still achieve the purchase target by demonstrating they 
substantively achieved the same volume of Virginia-grown agricultural and forestal products they 
proposed in Appendix A. 

The average annual wage of the New Jobs and FTEs will be at least $25,000. 

The average prevailing wage in the locality in 2019 is $38,074. 

Section 3. Disbursement of AFID Grant. 

By no later than October 31, 2019, the Locality will request the disbursement to it of the AFID 
Grant.  If not so requested by the Locality by October 31, 2019, this Agreement will terminate.  The 
Locality and the Company will be entitled to reapply for an AFID Grant thereafter, based upon the 
terms, conditions and availability of funds at that time.   

The AFID Grant in the amount of $12,500 will be paid to the Locality, upon its request.  
Within 30 days of its receipt of the AFID Grant proceeds, the Locality will disburse the AFID Grant 
proceeds to the Authority.  Within 30 days of its receipt of the AFID Grant proceeds, the Authority 
will disburse the AFID Grant proceeds to the Company as an inducement to the Company to achieve 
the Targets at the Facility.  The Company will use the AFID Grant proceeds to make building 
improvements, as permitted by Section 3.2-304(C) of the Virginia Code. 

Section 4. State and Local Government Incentives. 

See Appendix B for definition of “break-even point.”  With regard to the Facility, the 
Commonwealth expects to provide incentives in the following amounts: 

Category of Incentive: Total Amount 

AFID Grant $12,500 

Action Items - Page 6



The Locality expects to provide the following incentives, as matching grants or otherwise, for 
the Facility: 

Category of Incentive: Total Amount 

Local Cash Grant $6,250 
Tobacco Region Opportunity Fund $6,250 

IF THE LOCALITY’S FUNDS ARE BEING PROVIDED OVER TIME:  If, by the 
Performance Date, the funds disbursed or committed to be disbursed by the Locality to the Company 
total less than the $12,500 AFID Grant local match requirement, the Locality, subject to appropriation, 
will make an additional grant to the Company of the difference at the Performance Date, so long as 
the Company has met its Targets. 

The proceeds of the AFID Grant shall be used for the purposes described in Section 3.  The 
proceeds of the TROF Grant shall be used for road construction.  The proceeds of the Locality’s Cash 
Grant may be used by the Company for any lawful purpose. 

Section 5. Repayment Obligation. 

(a) Determination of Inability to Comply:  If the Locality or the Secretary of Agriculture and
Forestry (the “Secretary”) determines at any time before the Performance Date (a “Determination 
Date”) that the Company is unlikely to meet and Maintain at least fifty (50) percent of its Targets by 
and through the Performance Date (i.e., by making a Capital Investment of at least $116,250 in the 
Facility, to creating and Maintaining at least 1 New Jobs and 1 FTEs at the Facility, or purchasing at 
least $24,675 or 28.5 tons of Virginia-grown agricultural and forestal products by the Performance 
Date), and if the Locality or the Secretary shall have promptly notified the Company of such 
determination, the entire AFID Grant must be repaid by the Company to the Authority.   Such a 
determination by the Locality or the Secretary will be based on such circumstances as a filing by or on 
behalf of the Company under Chapter 7 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code, the liquidation of the Company, 
an abandonment of the Facility by the Company or other similar significant event that demonstrates 
the Company will be unable or is unwilling to satisfy the Targets for the AFID Grant. 

(b) Repayment of AFID Grant:  For purposes of repayment, the AFID Grant is to be
allocated as $4,166.67 (33%) for the Company’s Capital Investment Target, $4,166.67 (33%) for its 
New Jobs and FTEs Target, and $4,166.66 (33%) for its purchase of Virginia-grown agricultural and 
forestal products.  If the Company has met at least ninety percent (90%) of each of the three Targets 
at the Performance Date, then and thereafter the Company is no longer obligated to repay any portion 
of the AFID Grant.  If the Company has not met at least ninety percent (90%) of each of the three 
of its Targets at the Performance Date, the Company shall repay to the Authority that part of the 
AFID Grant that is proportional to the Target or Targets for which there is a shortfall.  For example, 
if at the Performance Date, the Capital Investment is only $174,375, only 1 New Jobs and 1.5 FTEs 
have been created and Maintained, and only $37,012.50 or 42.15 tons of Virginia-grown agricultural 
and forestal products have been purchased, the Company shall repay to the Authority twenty-five 
percent (25%) of the moneys allocated to the Capital Investment Target ($1,041.67),  twenty-five 

Action Items - Page 7



percent (25%) of the moneys allocated to the New Jobs and FTEs Target ($1,041.67), and twenty-five 
percent (25%) of the moneys allocated to the purchase of Virginia-grown agricultural and forestal 
products Target ($1,041.66).  Whether the New Jobs and FTEs Target has been met will be determined 
by comparing the anticipated payroll (2 New Jobs and 2 FTEs at an average annual wage of at least 
$25,000) to the actual number of New Jobs and FTEs and the actual average annual wage reported at 
the Performance Date. 

(c) Repayment Dates:  Such repayment shall be due from the Company to the
Authority within thirty days of the Performance Date or the Determination Date, as 
applicable.  Any moneys repaid by the Company to the Authority hereunder shall be repaid by the 
Authority to the Locality and shall be repaid by the Locality promptly to VDACS for redeposit into 
the AFID fund.  The Locality and the Authority shall use their best efforts to recover all such funds, 
including legal action for breach of this Agreement.  The Locality shall assume primary responsibility 
for filing and prosecuting any such legal action, and the Authority shall cooperate with the Locality’s 
efforts.  Neither the Locality nor the Authority shall have any responsibility for the repayment of any 
sums hereunder unless said sums have been received by the Authority from the Company.    

Section 6. Company Reporting.  

The Company shall provide, at the Company’s expense, detailed verification reasonably 
satisfactory to the Locality, the Authority and VDACS of the Company’s progress on the Targets. 
Such progress reports will be provided annually, starting November 30, 2020, and at such other times 
as the Locality, the Authority or VDACS may reasonably require.  The first progress report will cover 
the period from June 20, 2019 to October 31, 2020, the second progress report will cover the period 
from November 1, 2020 to October 31, 2021, and the third and final progress report will cover the 
period from November 1, 2021 to October 31, 2022.    

With each such progress report, the Company shall report to VDACS the amount paid by the 
Company in the prior calendar year in Virginia corporate income tax.  The Company hereby authorizes 
the Commissioner of the Revenue, the Treasurer and the Director of Finance for the Locality to 
release to the Authority and the Locality the Company’s confidential tax information and data so that 
the Authority may verify the payments made. VDACS has represented to the Company that it 
considers such information to be confidential proprietary information that is exempt from public 
disclosure under the Virginia Freedom of Information Act and that such information will be used by 
VDACS solely in calculating aggregate return on invested capital analyses for purposes of gauging the 
overall effectiveness of economic development incentives. 

With each progress report, the Company shall report to VDACS the number of New Jobs and 
FTEs created and Maintained during the reporting period.  The information provided will be verified 
by VDACS with the Virginia Employment Commission. For FTEs, the Company is responsible for 
assembling and distributing the documentation necessary to verify such positions, including 
individuals’ names, hours worked, and salaries. If requested by VDACS, the Company shall provide 
to VDACS copies of the Company’s quarterly filings with the Virginia Employment Commission 
covering the period from the date of this Agreement through the Performance Date.  In accordance 
with the Virginia Code Section 60.2-114, VDACS is entitled to receive the Company’s employment 
level and wage from the Virginia Employment Commission. 

Action Items - Page 8



With each progress report, the Company shall also report to VDACS the amount purchased 
and the purchase price paid by the Company, or the fair market value of the Virginia-Grown 
Agricultural or Forestal Products utilized, through the prior year. 

The Locality and Company agree to retain all books, records, data and other documents 
relative to this agreement for a period of three (3) years after the end of this agreement, or until audited 
by the Commonwealth of Virginia, whichever is sooner.  VDACS and its authorized agents, and/or 
state auditors (both the Auditor of Public Accounts and/or VDACS Internal Auditor) shall have full 
access to and the right to examine any of said materials and records relating to this agreement during 
this period. 

Section 7. Notices. 

Any notices required or permitted under this Agreement shall be given in writing, and shall be 
deemed to be received upon receipt or refusal after mailing of the same in the United States Mail by 
certified mail, postage fully pre-paid or by overnight courier (refusal shall mean return of certified mail 
or overnight courier package not accepted by the addressee): 

if to the Company, to: with a copy to: 

Attention:   Attention:  

if to the Locality, to: with a copy to: 

Attention:   Attention:  

if to the Authority, to: with a copy to: 

Attention:  Attention:  

if to VDACS, to: with a copy to: 

Secretary of Agriculture and Forestry 
Office of Governor  
Commonwealth of Virginia 
1111 East Broad Street 

Chauntele D. Taylor 
AFID Compliance Coordinator 
Va  Dept. of Agriculture & Consumer Services 
102 Governor St., Room 317 

Action Items - Page 9



Richmond, Virginia  23219 
Attention: AFID 

Richmond, Virginia  23219 
Attention:  AFID 

Section 8. Miscellaneous. 

(a) Entire Agreement; Amendments:  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement among
the parties hereto as to the AFID Grant and may not be amended or modified, except in writing, 
signed by each of the parties hereto.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit 
of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns.  The Company may not assign its 
rights and obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the Locality, the 
Authority and the Secretary of Agriculture and Forestry.   

(b) Governing Law; Venue:  This Agreement is made, and is intended to be performed, in
the Commonwealth and shall be construed and enforced by the laws of the Commonwealth. 
Jurisdiction and venue for any litigation arising out of or involving this Agreement shall lie in the 
Circuit Court of the Locality and such litigation shall be brought only in such court. 

(c) Counterparts:  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of
which shall be an original, and all of which together shall be one and the same instrument. 

(d) Severability:  If any provision of this Agreement is determined to be unenforceable,
invalid or illegal, then the enforceability, validity and legality of the remaining provisions will not in 
any way be affected or impaired, and such provision will be deemed to be restated to reflect the original 
intentions of the parties as nearly as possible in accordance with applicable law.   

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Action Items - Page 10



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Performance Agreement 
as of the date first written above. 

COUNTY OF SUSSEX, VIRGINIA 

By 
     Name:  
     Title:     
Date: _______________________________ 

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF 
SUSSEX, VIRGINIA 

By 
     Name:  
     Title:     
Date: _______________________________ 

THREE BROTHERS’ DISTILLERY, 
INC. 

By 
     Name:  
     Title:     
Date: _______________________________ 

Action Items - Page 11



APPENDIX A 

Purchases of Virginia-grown Products: 

PROJECTED AGRICULTURAL PURCHASES 

Current 
$ Value 

Current 
Volume 
(Tons) 

Year 1        
$ Value 

Year 1      
Volume 
(Tons) 

Year 2        
$ Value 

Year 2 
Volume 
(Tons) 

Year 3        
$ Value 

Year 3 
Volume 
(Tons) 

Net New 
$ Value 

Net New 
Volume 
(Tons) 

Total Virginia Ag 
Products Purchase $11,100 13 $13,775 16 $27,550 32 $41,325 48 $49,350 57 

Corn $2,000 5 $2,400 6 $4,800 12 $7,200 18 $8,400 21 

Rye $3,500 4 $4,375 5 $8,750 10 $13,125 15 $15,750 18 

Barley $5,600 4 $7,000 5 $14,000 10 $21,000 15 $25,200 18 
Percentage that is 
Virginia-Grown 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100 100% 100% 

Action Items - Page 12



APPENDIX B 

Break-Even Point Definition: 

VDACS has estimated that the Commonwealth will reach its “break-even point” by the Performance 
Date.  The break-even point compares new revenues realized as a result of the Capital Investment and 
New Jobs at the Facility with the Commonwealth’s expenditures on incentives, including but not 
limited to the AFID Grant. 

Action Items - Page 13



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Action Items #6.04 

Subject:  Appropriate Funds to the Sussex Industrial Development Authority for Distribution to 
Three Brothers’ Distillery 

Board Meeting Date:  September 19 2019 
============================================================================== 
Summary:  The County has been awarded grant funds in the amount of $12,500 from the Virginia 
Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services (VDACS) and $6,250 from the Tobacco Region 
Revitalization Commission (TRRC) to assist Three Brothers’ Distillery in the expansion of its Sussex 
Operation.  Also, at its February 21, 2019 meeting, the Board authorized funds in the amount 
$6,250 as a match to the TRRC grant. The total funding of $25,000 is to be used for the 
construction of a new entry road to the Distillery that will originate in Sussex County. 

In keeping with Virginia law, it has been the Board of Supervisors’ practice to transfer funds to 
projects through the Sussex County Industrial Development Authority.  Therefore, it is requested 
that the Board of Supervisors appropriate the above-mentioned funds ($12,500 AFID, $6,250 
TRRC, and $6,250 Sussex County) totaling $25,000 to the Sussex Industrial Development 
Authority for distribution to Three Brothers’ Distillery. 

Recommendation:  That the Board appropriate $25,000 to the Sussex Industrial Development 
Authority for distribution to Three Brothers’ Distillery. 

Attachment:  Minutes of February 21, 2019 BOS meeting, Section 6.03 

============================================================================== 
ACTION:   That the Board appropriate $25,000 to the Sussex Industrial Development Authority 
for distribution to Three Brothers’ Distillery. 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Blowe ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Stringfield ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

Action Items - Page 14



Action Items - Page 15



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Action Items #6.05 

Subject:   Section 15.2232 Review Application, Application Instructions, and Review Fee 

Board Meeting Date:   September 19 2019 
============================================================================== 
Summary:   On April 1, 2019, the Board of Supervisors adopted amendments to the 
Comprehensive Plan and the Zoning Ordinance relative to utility-scale solar facilities.  One of the 
amendments to the Zoning Ordinance requires proposed utility-scale solar facilities to undergo 
a Section 2232 review by the Planning Commission.  A Section 15.2-2232 review application, 
review procedures and review fee have to be implemented in order for staff to process new 
requests for utility-scale solar facilities.   

Staff has prepared a draft Section 15.2- 2232 review application and procedures for the Board’s 
review.  Staff is also proposing a review fee of $250.00.  The County of Mecklenburg has recently 
instituted solar regulations and adopted a Section 15.2-2232 review fee of $325.00. 

Recommendation:  Approval of the proposed Section 15.2-2232 Review application, Review 
Procedures and $250.00 Review Fee. 

Attachments (if any):    Draft Review Application 
   Draft Application Instructions 
    Land Use Fee Schedule  

============================================================================== 

ACTION:   That the Board approves the proposed Section 15.2-2232 Review application, Review 
Procedures and $250.00 Review Fee. 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Blowe ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Stringfield ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

Action Items - Page 16



Section 15.2-2232 Review Instructions - 1 - Effective September 2019

Department of Community Development 
Post Office Box 1397

20135 Princeton Road
Sussex, Virginia  23884

(434) 246-1043
FAX (434) 246-2175

SECTION 15.2-2232 REVIEW APPLICATION 

INSTRUCTIONS 

PURPOSE 

Section 15.2-2232 of the Virginia State Code states that whenever the local planning 
commission recommends a comprehensive plan or part thereof for the locality and such 
plan has been approved by the local governing body, it shall control the general or 
approximate location, character and extent of each feature shown on the plan.  If the 
feature is not shown on the plan, no street or connection to an existing street, park or 
other public area, public building or structure, public utility facility, etc., can be 
constructed, established, or authorized until the general or approximate location, 
character and extent has been submitted to and approved by the commission as being 
substantially in accord with the adopted comprehensive plan or part thereof. Paving, 
repairs, reconstruction, drainage improvements and similar work are exempt. Likewise, 
any public area, facility or use identified on an approved subdivision plan or accepted as a 
proffer are exempt. 

REVIEW PROCESS 

Consult the Community Development Department for a determination as to whether or 
not a Section 15.2-2232 review is required prior to filing an application.   

The deadline for submitting an application for Section 15.2-2232 review is the 
first Monday of the month.  If the deadline falls on a holiday, the deadline is the next  
business day.  All applications are to be submitted to the  Community Development 
Department prior to 5:00 P.M.   
The Community Development Department will review the application for
completeness. Once the application is deemed to be complete, the Community 
Development Department will schedule for a public hearing before the Planning
Commission.  

Section 15.2-2232 ReviewCounty of Sussex

DRAFT

Action Items - Page 17



Section 15.2-2232 Review Instructions - 2 - Effective September 2019

REVIEW PROCESS (continued) 

When the application is deemed complete in its entirety, the Community Development 
Department will prepare a legal notice advertisement and sign(s) for posting, when 
applicable. The notice will appear in a local area newspaper two (2) times prior to 
the Planning Commission Public Hearing.   

The Community Development Department will compile departmental comments, 
the applicant's response to the comments, staff analysis and staff recommendation 
into a staff report.  The Community Development Department will forward a copy of the
application and staff report to each Planning Commission member the a week prior to
the scheduled Planning Commission hearing.  At this time, the staff report will be 
available on-line for review by the applicant, agent and interested citizens by visiting:  

http://www.sussexcountyva.gov and clicking on the Upcoming Agenda date.
All staff reports are also available for review in the Community Development  
Department. 
The Planning Commission will hold a public hearing the first Monday of the month 
after the application has been deemed complete by the Community Development
Department.  The public hearing is open to all citizens.  The applicant must 
attend the Planning Commission Public Hearing.
At the public hearing, the Planning Commission will hear proponents and opponents 
of the application, as well as staff comments and recommendations.  The Planning
Commission will consider all information and take one of the following actions:
approve the application as being consistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan; 
approve with stipulations; or disapprove the application.  
The Planning Commission must communicate its findings to Board of Supervisors 
indicating its approval or disapproval with written reasons. DRAFT

Action Items - Page 18



Section 15.2-2232 Review Instructions - 3 - Effective September 2019

APPEALS PROCESS 

The applicant may appeal the decision of the Planning Commission to Board of 
Supervisors within ten (10) days after the decision is made by the Planning
Commission. The appeal must be in written form and state the reasons for the appeal. 
The written appeal must be submitted to the Deputy Clerk to the Board for scheduling. 
The appeal shall be heard by the Board Supervisors within sixty (60) days from its 
filing. The Board of Supervisors may overrule the decision of the Planning 
Commission by a majority vote.  

SECTION 15.2-2232 APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS 

1. Original application, including all required information, and sixteen (16) copies
of the completed application.  All information must be typed or clearly printed
on the application and 8½” x 11” paper as needed.

2. Sixteen (16) copies of a map showing the location of the public improvement, or if
available, sixteen (16) copies of a site plan drawn to scale, showing all
existing and proposed buildings, parking, landscape areas, and other
structures and features located on the site.

3. Sixteen (16) copies of the tax map parcel on 8½” x 11” paper with the
parcel highlighted.

4. Any additional drawings, pictures, or information, which will assist the Planning
Commission in making their decision.

DRAFT

Action Items - Page 19



15.2-2232 Review Application - 1 - Effective September 2019

SECTION 15.2-2232 REVIEW APPLICATION 

SUSSEX COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT OFFICE

APPLICATION NUMBER:
(Assigned by Sussex County Community Development Office)

GENERAL INFORMATION 

1. Applicant/Agent(s):

Address:

Daytime Phone: FAX Number:  

E-mail address:

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

1. Tax map number(s):

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ,  _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ,  _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ,

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ,  _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ,  _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ .

2. Street address, if applicable (or common description if no street address is

available):

3. Planning Area:

4. Comprehensive Land Use Plan Designation:

County of Sussex

DRAFT

Action Items - Page 20



15.2-2232 Review Application - 2 - Effective September 2019

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT 

5. Provide a description of the proposed project:

6. Describe the project’s purpose and need:

DRAFT

Action Items - Page 21



15.2-2232 Review Application - 3 - Effective September 2019

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

DECLARATION OF ACCURACY: 

I, the undersigned, certify that this application is complete, accurate and contains all 
required and requested information, documents and other submittals, and that all 
statements made herein are, to the best of my knowledge, true and correct.  I further certify 
that I have exercised due diligence to obtain the most recent, complete and correct 
information available.  I understand that wrongful certification or failure to provide required 
or requested documents that become available after the initial submittal of this application 
may result in a delay in, or invalidation of, any official governmental action taken. 
Fraudulent representations may lead to additional penalties under law.    

DECLARATION OF CONSENT: 

I, the undersigned, consent to entry upon the subject property by public officers, 
employees, and agents of the County of Sussex wishing to view the site for purposes of 
processing, evaluating or deciding this application. 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

Applicant/Agent:  

DRAFT

Action Items - Page 22



Section 15.2-2232 Review Application - 4 - Effective September 2019

SECTION 15.2-2232 REVIEW APPLICATION CHECKLIST 

The following items are required as part of the Section 15.2-2232 Review application: 











The original application, including all required information.  All information must be 
typed or clearly printed on the application and 8½” x 11” paper as needed.  Please 
include this checklist with the original application.

Sixteen (16) copies of the completed application.  Please copy only the
application including this completed checklist.

Sixteen (16) copies of a map showing the location of the proposed improvement,
or if available, sixteen (16) copies of a site sketch drawn to scale, showing all
existing and proposed structures, and other structures and features located on
the site. Copies of the map and/or site plan reduced to 11” x 17” paper.

Sixteen (16) copies of the tax map parcel on 8½” x 11” paper with the parcel

highlighted. 

Any additional drawings, pictures, or information, which will assist the Planning 
Commission in making their decision. 

DRAFT

Action Items - Page 23



SUSSEX COUNTY LAND USE FEES 

LAND USE CATEGORY FEE 
Conditional Use Permit Application $500 
Land Disturbance Permit Application $300 + $10 per acre 
Variance/ Special Use Permit Application $600  
Zoning Permit $75  
Plat Approval (Family Division and Boundary Line Adjustments) $50.00 per plat 
Site Plan, Review $500 + $10 per acre 
VDOT Traffic Impact Analysis (Projects generating over 100 vehicles per hour)  $1000 
VDOT Traffic Impact Analysis (Projects generating up to 100 vehicles per hour)  $500  
2232 Review Application Fee $250 

Subdivision Review Fees: 
More than 5 lots $300 + $10 per lot 
5 or less lots $100 + $10 per lot 
Conditional Use Permit (New Communication/Cellular Tower) $5,000 
Co-Location on Existing Tower Fee $2,000  
Appeal to Board of Zoning Appeals $600  
County Map  $10 
Zoning Ordinance $25 
Subdivision Ordinance $20 
Comprehensive Plan $35 
E911 Address $10 
Certificate of Zoning Compliance $25 
Zoning/DMV Compliance Letters $25 
Request for Private Road Name/Sign $300 
Request for Road Name Change $250 
Request to amend the Comp Plan $500 
Request to amend the Zoning/Subdivision Ordinance $500 per amendment 
Amendment to a Proffered Rezoning  
or a Conditional Use Permit Application $300 
Renewal of an existing Conditional Use Permit $300 

Re-Zoning Fees: 
$500 + additional per acreage charge as follows: 

To: A-1  No additional charge 
To: R-R, R-E  $20 per acre 
To: R-1  $30 per acre 
To: B-1, B-2, B-3  $40 per acre 
To: I-1, I-2 $50 per acre 
To: Planned Unit Development (PUD) $60 per acre 
or any Manufactured Home Park District 

Action Items - Page 24



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Action Item #6.06 

Subject: Federal Uniform Guidance Policy (Administration) 

Board Meeting Date:  September 19 2019 

============================================================================== 

Summary:  Staff was advised by Mr. Aaron B. Hawkins, of Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates, 
federal compliance guidelines changed a couple of years ago from OMB Circular A-133 over to 
the OMB Uniform Guidance.   The attached policy will keep the County in compliance with the 
Uniform Guidance. 

Mr. Hawkins advised to make sure that there are no contradictions with the current policies in 
places in regards to purchasing/procurement from the Uniform Guidance Policy.  This policy will 
need to be in place for FY20. 

Recommendation:  That the Board adopts the Federal Uniform Guidance Policy for 
Administration. 

Attachment:  Federal Uniform Guidance Policy (Administration) 

============================================================================== 

ACTION:  That the Board adopts the Federal Uniform Guidance Policy for Administration. 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Blowe ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Stringfield ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

Action Items - Page 25



GRANT ADMINISTRATION 
County of Sussex, Virginia does not have a centralized grants department, therefore it is 
the responsibility of each department obtaining a grant to care for and be familiar with all 
grant documents and requirements. If a grant is Federal, the department should 
immediately notify the designated Chief Accounting Officer for inclusion in the Town’s 
Single Audit. For the purpose of this policy “Program Director” applies to the individual 
within a given department who will be responsible for the grant. 

1. Grant Development, Application, and Approval –
a. Legislative Approval – The point at which legislative approval is required is

determined by the requirements of the grant program. If the grant must be submitted
by “an individual authorized by the legislative body”, then Governing Body
approval is required prior to submitting the application. If such legislative approval
is not specifically required by the written terms of the grant, then the department
head may, at his or her discretion, approve grant applications. In this case, a copy
of the application shall be sent to the Administrator’s office. If an award is given, a
copy of the agreement shall also be furnished to the Administrator’s office.
Electronic copies are preferable.

b. Matching Funds – Grants that require cash local matches must be coordinated
through the Administrator’s office. At a minimum, funds must be identified within
the existing budget to provide the match, or a budget adjustment will be required.
Depending on the nature of the grant, there may also be some policy implications
that will bear discussion. (For example, will the grant establish a level of service
that cannot be sustained once the grant funds are depleted?)

c. Grant Budgets – Most grants require the submission of an expenditure budget.  The
department head should review this portion of the grant request prior to submission.
The Chief Accounting Officer will need to be contacted regarding personnel
projections.

2. Grant Program Implementation –
a. Notification and Acceptance of an Award – Official notification of a grant award is

typically sent by a funding agency to the Program Director and/or other official
designated in the original grant proposal. However, the authorization to actually
spend grant funds is derived from the Governing Body through the approval of a
grant budget. This is done with the adoption of the Government-wide operating
budget, as the grant budget is a component of such.

b. Establishment of Accounts – The department that obtained the grant will provide
the Chief Accounting Officer office with information needed to establish revenue
and expense accounts for the project. Ordinarily, this information will include a
copy of a summary of the project and a copy of the full project budget.

Federal Awards Administration: 

Action Items - Page 26



c. Purchasing Guidelines – All other Town purchasing and procurement guidelines
apply to the expenditure of grant funds. The use of grant funds does not exempt any
purchase from normal purchasing requirements. All typical paperwork, staff
approvals, and bidding requirements apply. When in doubt, the Program Director
should contact the Administrator’s office for further assistance.

3. Financial and Budgetary Compliance –
a. Monitoring Grant Funds – Departments may use some internal mechanism (such as

a spreadsheet) to monitor grant revenues, expenditures and budgetary compliance,
however all such financial information will also be maintained in the Town’s
finance software at some level. The finance software is considered to be Town’s
“official” accounting system. Ultimately, the information in this system is what will
be audited and used to report to governing bodies, not information obtained from
offline spreadsheets. Program Directors are strongly encouraged to use inquiries
and reports generated directly from the finance software to aide in grant tracking.
If any “off-system” accounting records are maintained, it is the responsibility of the
Program Director to ensure that the program’s internal records agree to the Town’s
accounting system.

b. Fiscal Years – Occasionally, the fiscal year for the granting agency will not coincide
with the Town’s fiscal year. This may require adjustments to the internal budget
accounts and interim financial reports as well as special handling during fiscal year-
end close. It is the responsibility of the department head to oversee grant budgets
within his/her department and to bring such discrepancies to the attention of the
Administrator’s office at the time the grant accounts are established.

c. Grant Budgets – When the accounting structure for a grant is designed, it will
include the budget that was prepared when the grant application was submitted. The
terms of each specific grant will dictate whether any budget transfers between
budgeted line items will be permitted. In no case will the Program Director be
authorized to exceed the total budget authority provided by the grant.
If grant funds have not been totally expended by fiscal year-end, it is the
responsibility of the Program Director to notify the Chief Accounting Officer that
budget funds need to be carried forward to the new fiscal year, and to confirm the
amounts of such carry-forwards. This can be done during the Town’s normal annual
budgeting process. Carry-forwards of grant funds will be subjected to maximum
allowable amounts/percentages based on the grant award agreement and/or the
Uniform Guidance compliance supplement.

d. Capital Assets – The Town is responsible for maintaining an inventory of assets
purchased with grant monies. The Town is accountable for them and must make
them physically available for inspection during any audit. The Chief Accounting
Officer must be notified immediately of any sale of these assets.

Action Items - Page 27



Customarily, the proceeds of the sale can only be used on the grant program that 
purchased them. In most cases, specific governing regulations can be found in the 
original grant. 
The individual department overseeing the grant will coordinate this requirement. 
All transactions that involve the acquisition or disposal of grant funded fixed assets 
must be immediately brought to the attention of the Chief Accounting Officer. 

4. Record Keeping –
a. Audit Workpapers – The Town’s external auditors audit federal grants at the end

of each fiscal year in accordance with the requirements of the Single Audit Act.
The department who obtained the grant will prepare the required audit workpapers.
These will then need to be sent to the Chief Accounting Officer within a reasonable
time following year end.

b. Record Keeping Requirements – Grant record keeping requirements may vary
substantially from one granting agency to another. Consequently, a clear
understanding of these grant requirements at the beginning of the grant process is
vital. The Program Director within a department applying for a grant will maintain
copies of all grant draw requests, and approved grant agreements (including
budgets).  Records shall be retained for a minimum of 5 years from the date on
which the final Financial Status Report is submitted, or as otherwise specified in
the requirements of the federal award, unless a written extension is provided by the
awarding agency, cognizant agency for audit or cognizant agency for indirect costs.

Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement - General Information 

Policies. The Governing Body has adopted various financial policies independent of those 
now required for federal awards under the Uniform Guidance.  These policies may be 
incorporated into this document by reference.  All of the established policies also apply to 
federal grants where appropriate.  These policies include: 

• Small Purchase Policy

Action Items - Page 28



Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement - Activities Allowed/Unallowed and 
Allowable Costs/Cost Principles 

The requirements for allowable costs/cost principles are contained in the Uniform 
Guidance, program legislation, Federal awarding agency regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of the award. 

In order to ensure compliance with these requirements, the Town has implemented the 
following policies and procedures: 
1. All grant expenditures will be in compliance with the Uniform Guidance, State law,

Town policy, and the provisions of the grant award agreement will also be considered
in determining allowability. Grant funds will only be used for expenditures that are
considered reasonable and necessary for the administration of the program and
treatment will be consistent with the policies and procedures the Town would apply to
non-federally financed work.

2. Grant expenditures will be approved by the department head, or their designee, when
the bill or invoice is received. The terms and conditions of the Federal Award will be
considered when approving. The approval will be evidenced by the designee’s initials
on the original bill or invoice. Accounts payable disbursements will not be processed
for payment until necessary approval has been obtained.

3. Payroll costs will be documented in accordance with the Uniform Guidance.
Specifically, compensation for personal services will be handled as set forth in §200.430
and compensation for fringe benefits will follow §200.431 of the Uniform Guidance.

4. An indirect cost rate will only be charged to the grant to the extent that it was
specifically approved through the grant budget/agreement.

Part 200 examines the allowability of 55 specific cost items (commonly referred to as 
Selected Items of Cost) at 2 CFR 200.420-200.475.  These cost items are listed in the chart 
below along with the citation where it is discussed whether the item is allowable. Town 
personnel responsible for spending federal grant funds and for determining allowability 
must be familiar with the Part 200 selected items of cost section. The Town must follow 
these rules when charging these specific expenditures to a federal grant.  When applicable, 
staff must check costs against the selected items of cost requirements to ensure the cost is 
allowable.  The general provisions for selected items of cost can be found 
at:  https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/2/part-200/subpart-E 

The selected item of cost addressed in Part 200 includes the following (in alphabetical 
order): 

Item of Cost Citation of Allowability Rule 
Advertising and public relations costs 2 CFR § 200.421 
Advisory councils 2 CFR § 200.422 
Alcoholic beverages 2 CFR § 200.423 
Alumni/ae activities 2 CFR § 200.424 
Audit services 2 CFR § 200.425 
Bad debts 2 CFR § 200.426 
Bonding costs 2 CFR § 200.427 
Collection of improper payments 2 CFR § 200.428 

Action Items - Page 29

https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/2/part-200/subpart-E


Commencement and convocation costs 2 CFR § 200.429 
Compensation – personal services 2 CFR § 200.430 
Compensation – fringe benefits 2 CFR § 200.431 
Conferences 2 CFR § 200.432 
Contingency provisions 2 CFR § 200.433 
Contributions and donations 2 CFR § 200.434 
Defense and prosecution of criminal and 
civil proceedings, claims, appeals and 
patent infringements 

2 CFR § 200.435 

Depreciation 2 CFR § 200.436 
Employee health and welfare costs 2 CFR § 200.437 
Entertainment costs 2 CFR § 200.438 
Equipment and other capital expenditures 2 CFR § 200.439 
Exchange rates 2 CFR § 200.440 
Fines, penalties, damages and other 
settlements 

2 CFR § 200.441 

Fund raising and investment management 
costs 

2 CFR § 200.442 

Gains and losses on disposition of 
depreciable assets 

2 CFR § 200.443 

General costs of government 2 CFR § 200.444 
Goods and services for personal use 2 CFR § 200.445 
Idle facilities and idle capacity 2 CFR § 200.446 
Insurance and indemnification 2 CFR § 200.447 
Intellectual property 2 CFR § 200.448 
Interest 2 CFR § 200.449 
Lobbying 2 CFR § 200.450 
Losses on other awards or contracts 2 CFR § 200.451 
Maintenance and repair costs 2 CFR § 200.452 
Materials and supplies costs, including 
costs of computing devices 

2 CFR § 200.453 

Memberships, subscriptions, and 
professional activity costs 

2 CFR § 200.454 

Organization costs 2 CFR § 200.455 
Participant support costs 2 CFR § 200.456 
Plant and security costs 2 CFR § 200.457 
Pre-award costs 2 CFR § 200.458 
Professional services costs 2 CFR § 200.459 
Proposal costs 2 CFR § 200.460 
Publication and printing costs 2 CFR § 200.461 
Rearrangement and reconversion costs 2 CFR § 200.462 
Recruiting costs 2 CFR § 200.463 
Relocation costs of employees 2 CFR § 200.464 
Rental costs of real property and 
equipment 

2 CFR § 200.465 

Scholarships and student aid costs 2 CFR § 200.466 
Selling and marketing costs 2 CFR § 200.467 
Specialized service facilities 2 CFR § 200.468 
Student activity costs 2 CFR § 200.469 

Action Items - Page 30



Taxes (including Value Added Tax) 2 CFR § 200.470 
Termination costs 2 CFR § 200.471 
Training and education costs 2 CFR § 200.472 
Transportation costs 2 CFR § 200.473 
Travel costs 2 CFR § 200.474 
Trustees 2 CFR § 200.475 

Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement - Cash Management 

Source of Governing Requirements – The requirements for cash management are contained 
in the Uniform Guidance, program legislation, Federal awarding agency regulations, and 
the terms and conditions or the award. 

In order to ensure compliance with these requirements, the Town has implemented the 
following policies and procedures: 
1. Most of the Town’s grants are awarded on a reimbursement basis. As such, program

costs will be expended and disbursed prior to requesting reimbursement from the
grantor agency. If Federal grant funds are received first, care will be taken in order to
minimize the time elapsing between receipt of Federal funds and disbursement to
contractors/employees/subrecipients according to §200.302 (6) of the Uniform
Guidance. Expenditures will be compared with budgeted amounts for each Federal
award.

2. Cash draws will be initiated by the Program Director who will determine the
appropriate draw amount. Documentation of how this amount was determined will be
retained. Payments and travel costs will be handled in a manner consistent with the
Town’s existing Accounts Payable policies and in accordance with §200.305
(payments) and §200.474 (travel costs) of the Uniform Guidance.

3. The physical draw of cash will be processed in the Town’s finance software, or through
the means prescribed by the grant agreement for other awards.

4. Supporting documentation or a copy of the cash draw paperwork will be filed along
with the approved paperwork described above and retained for audit purposes.

Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement - Eligibility 

Source of Governing Requirements – The requirements for eligibility are contained in 
program legislation, Federal awarding agency regulations, and the terms and conditions of 
the award. 

Additional Policies and Procedures. The following policies and procedures will also be 
applied: 
1. Federal grants will only benefit those individuals and/or groups of participants that are

deemed to be eligible.
2. Initial eligibility determinations will be made by the Program Director based on the

grant award/contract. Sufficient documentation to support these determinations will be
retained and made available to administration, auditors, and pass-through or grantor
agencies, upon request. It is the department’s responsibility to maintain complete,
accurate, and organized records to support eligibility determinations.

Action Items - Page 31



Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement - Equipment and Real Property 
Management 

Source of Governing Requirements – The requirements for equipment are contained in the 
Uniform Guidance, program legislation, Federal awarding agency regulations, and the 
terms and conditions of the award. 

Additional Policies and Procedures. The following policies and procedures will also be 
applied: 

In order to ensure compliance with these requirements, Town has implemented the 
following policies and procedures: 

1. All equipment will be used in the program for which it was acquired or, when
appropriate, in other Federal programs.

2. When required, purchases of equipment will be pre-approved by the grantor or pass- 
through agency. The Program Director will be responsible for ensuring that equipment
purchases have been previously approved, if required, and will retain evidence of this
approval.

3. Property/Equipment records will be maintained, a physical inventory shall be taken
every two years, and an appropriate system shall be used to safeguard assets.

4. When assets with a current per unit fair market value of $5,000 or more are no longer
needed for a Federal program, a request for written guidance shall be made from the
grantor agency as to what to do with the property/equipment prior to sale or relocation.
The Town shall abide with the requirements set out in §200.311 and §200.313 of the
Uniform Guidance in this regard. If a sale will take place, proper procedures shall be
used to provide for competition to the extent practical and result in the highest possible
return.

Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement - Matching, Level of Effort and 
Earmarking 

Source of Governing Requirements – The requirements for matching are contained in the 
Uniform Guidance, program legislation, Federal awarding agency regulations, and the 
terms and conditions of the award. The requirements for level of effort and earmarking are 
contained in program legislation, Federal awarding agency regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of the award. 

Town defines “matching”, “level of effort”, and “earmarking” consistent with the 
definitions of the Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement: 

Matching or cost sharing includes requirements to provide contributions (usually non- 
Federal) or a specified amount or percentage of match Federal awards. Matching may be 
in the form of allowable costs incurred or in-kind contributions (including third-party in- 
kind contributions). 

Action Items - Page 32



Level of effort includes requirements for (a) a specified level of service to be provided from 
period to period, (b) a specified level of expenditures from non-Federal or Federal sources 
for specified activities to be maintained from period to period, and (c) Federal funds to 
supplement and not supplant non-Federal funding of services. 

Earmarking includes requirements that specify the minimum and/or maximum amount of 
percentage of the program’s funding that must/may be used for specified activities, 
including funds provided to subrecipients. Earmarking may also be specified in relation to 
the types of participants covered. 

In order to ensure compliance with these requirements, the Town has implemented the 
following policies and procedures: 
1. Compliance with matching, level of effort, and earmarking requirements will be the

responsibility of Program Director and Chief Accounting Officer.
2. Adequate documentation will be maintained to support compliance with matching,

level of effort, and earmarking requirements. Such information will be made available
to administration, auditors, and pass-through or grantor agencies, as requested.

Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement - Period of Performance 

Source of Governing Requirements – The requirements for period of performance of 
Federal funds are contained in the Uniform Guidance, program legislation, Federal 
awarding agency regulations, and the terms and conditions of the award. 

In order to ensure compliance with these requirements, the Town has implemented the 
following policies and procedures: 
1. Costs will be charged to an award only if the obligation was incurred during the funding

period (unless pre-approved by the Federal awarding agency or pass-through grantor
agency).

2. All obligations will be liquidated no later than 90 days after the end of the funding
period (or as specified by program legislation).

3. Compliance with period of performance requirements will initially be assigned to the
Program Director.

4. Vendor accounts payable disbursements are subject to the review and approval by
Program Director, accounts payable staff and other Administrators as part of the
payment process.

Action Items - Page 33



Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement - Procurement, Suspension and 
Debarment 

Source of Governing Requirements – The requirements for procurement are contained in 
the Uniform Guidance, program legislation, Federal awarding agency regulations, and the 
terms and conditions of the award. 

The requirements for suspension and debarment are contained in OMB guidance in 2 CFR 
part 180, which implements Executive Orders 12549 and 12689, Debarment and 
Suspension; Federal agency regulations in 2 CFR implementing the OMB guidance; the 
Uniform Guidance; program legislation; Federal awarding agency regulations; and the 
terms and conditions of the award. 

In order to ensure compliance with these requirements, Town has implemented the 
following policies and procedures: 

1. Purchasing and procurement related to Federal grants will be subject to the general
policies and procedures of the Town, and to the provisions of the uniform guidance as
detailed below.

2. Contract files will document the significant history of the procurement, including the
rationale for the method of procurement, selection of the contract type, contractor
selection or rejection, and the basis of contract price.

3. Procurement will provide for full and open competition.
4. No employee, officer, or agent may participate in the selection, award, or

administration of a contract supported by a Federal award if he or she has a real or
apparent conflict of interest. Such a conflict of interest would arise when the employee,
officer, or agent, any member of his or her immediate family, his or her partner, or an
organization which employs or is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein,
has a financial or other interest in or a tangible personal benefit from a firm considered
for a contract. The officers, employees, and agents can neither solicit nor accept
gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from contractors or parties to
subcontracts. If the financial interest is not substantial or the gift is an unsolicited item
of nominal value, no further action will be taken. However, disciplinary actions will
be applied for violations of such standards otherwise.

5. The Town will avoid acquisition of unnecessary or duplicative items. Consideration
will be given to consolidating or breaking out procurements to obtain a more
economical purchase. Where appropriate, an analysis will be made of lease versus
purchase alternatives, and any other appropriate analysis to determine the most
economical approach.  The Town will also analyze other means, as described in
§200.318 of the Uniform Guidance, in order to ensure appropriate and economic
acquisitions.

6. The Town is prohibited from contracting with or making subawards under covered
transactions to parties that are suspended or debarred or whose principals are suspended
or debarred.
“Covered transactions” include those procurement contracts for goods and services
awarded under a nonprocurement transaction (i.e., grant or cooperative agreement) that
are expected to equal or exceed $20,000 or meet certain other specified criteria. All
nonprocurement transactions (i.e., subawards to subrecipients), irrespective of award
amount, are considered covered transactions.

Action Items - Page 34



7. Town will include a suspension/debarment clause in all written contracts in which the
vendor/contractor will certify that it is not suspended or debarred. The contract will
also contain language requiring the vendor/contractor to notify the Government
immediately upon becoming suspended or debarred. This will serve as adequate
documentation as long as the contract remains in effect.
The Program Director or designee will be responsible for running a year-to-date
transaction report from the Town’s accounting system. Any vendor with accumulated
transactions equaling or exceeding $20,000 that is not subject to a written contract
including a suspension/debarment clause or for which a signed statement of suspension
or debarment is not on file will be subject to additional procedures. The Program
Director or designee will check the Excluded Parties List System (EPLS) on the Federal
System for Award Management (SAM), https://www.sam.gov/SAM maintained by the
General Services Administration (GSA) for the vendor name. A potential match will
be followed-up on immediately. Each vendor searched on EPLS will be initialed on the
vendor transaction report and the report will be signed and dated on the first or last
page. The vendor transaction report will be retained as evidence of the control.

8. If a vendor is found to be suspended or debarred, the Town will immediately cease to
do business with this vendor.

9. Executed contracts and signed quarterly vendor transaction history reports will be
retained and filed by the Program Director.

10. When a request for purchase of equipment, supplies, or services for a federal program
has been submitted the procurement method to be used will be determined based on the
total cost of the purchase as further outlined below.  This procedure outlines how the
cost thresholds for determining when the quote or formal bidding procedures that are
required by state law must be modified when making purchases for federally funded
purposes to which the Uniform Grant Guidance regulations apply.

A. Micro-purchases not requiring quotes or bidding (up to $10,000)
For purposes of this procedure, micro-purchase means a purchase of
equipment, supplies, or services for use in federally funded programs using
simplified acquisition procedures, the aggregate amount of which does not
exceed a base amount of $10,000.  The micro-purchase dollar threshold is
adjusted periodically by the federal government, and the threshold most
recently published and published in the Federal Register shall apply if other
than $10,000.
The micro-purchase method is used in order to expedite the completion of its
lowest dollar small purchase transactions and minimize the associated
administrative burden and cost.  Procurement by micro-purchase is the
acquisition of equipment, supplies or services, the aggregate dollar amount of
which does not exceed the micro-purchase threshold.
To the extent practicable, the Town distributes micro-purchases equitably
among qualified suppliers when the same or materially interchangeable
products are identified and such suppliers offer effectively equivalent rates,
prices and other terms.

Action Items - Page 35

https://www.sam.gov/SAM


Micro-purchases may be awarded without soliciting competitive quotations if 
the Town considers the price to be reasonable.  Evidence will be maintained 
of this reasonableness in the records of all micro-purchases.  Reasonable 
means that sound business practices were followed and the purchase is 
comparable to market prices for the geographic area.  Such determinations of 
reasonableness may include comparison of the price to previous purchases of 
the same item or comparison of the price of items similar to the item being 
purchased.  
Even if the cost of a purchase qualifies it as a micro-purchase, bidding or small 
purchase procedures may be used optionally when those procedures may result 
in cost savings.   

B. Small Purchase Procedures (Between $0 and $99,999.99)
For purposes of this procedure, small purchase procedures are those
relatively simple and informal procurement methods for securing equipment,
services, or supplies that cost more than the amount qualifying as micro-
purchase and do not exceed $9,999.99.  Small purchase procedures cannot be
used for purchases of equipment or supplies for construction, repair or
maintenance services costing $10,000 because the Town purchasing policy
requires formal competitive bidding at that level of cost.
If small purchase procedures are used, written or telephonic price or rate
quotations are obtained from at least three (3) qualified sources and records of
quotes are maintained.

C. Publicly Solicited Sealed Competitive Bids (Purchase exceeds $99,999.99)
For purchases of equipment or supplies, or of services for construction,
maintenance or repairs of facilities, sealed competitive bids are publicly
solicited and awarded to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder as
provided in the Town’s procurement policy.

D. Competitive Proposals (Purchase exceeds $9,999.99)
For purchases of qualifications based procurement of
architectural/engineering professional services whereby competitors’
qualifications are evaluated and the most qualified competitor is selected,
subject to negotiation of fair and reasonable compensation.  If this method is
used, the following requirements apply:

1. Requests for proposals must be publicized and identify all
evaluation factors and their relative importance.  Any response to
publicized requests for proposals must be considered to the
maximum extent practical;

2. Proposals must be solicited from an adequate number of qualified
sources; and

3. Contracts must be awarded to the responsible firm whose proposal
is most advantageous to the program, with price and other factors
considered.

Action Items - Page 36



E. Noncompetitive Proposals (Sole Source)
Procurement by noncompetitive proposals is procurement through solicitation
of a proposal from only one source and may be used only when one or more
of the following circumstances apply:

1. The item is available only from a single source; or
2. The public exigency or emergency for the requirement will not

permit a delay resulting from competitive solicitation; or
3. The Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity expressly

authorizes noncompetitive proposals in response to a written
request from the non-Federal entity; or

4. After solicitation of a number of sources, competition is
determined inadequate.

11. The Town must use the micro-purchase and small purchase methods only for
procurements that meet the applicable criteria under 2 CFR sections 200.320(a) and
(b).  Under the micro-purchase method, the aggregate dollar amount does not exceed
$10,000.  Small purchase procedures must be used for purchases that exceed the micro-
purchase amount but do not exceed the simplified acquisition threshold of $250,000.
Micro-purchases may be awarded without soliciting competitive quotations if the Town
considers the price to be reasonable (2 CFR section 200.320(a)).  If small purchase
procedures are used, price or rate quotations must be obtained from an adequate number
of qualified sources (2 CFR section 200.320(b)).

Action Items - Page 37



Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement - Program Income 

Source of Governing Requirements – The requirements for program income are found in 
the Uniform Guidance, program legislation, Federal awarding agency regulations, and the 
terms and conditions of the award. 

In order to ensure compliance with these requirements, Town has implemented the 
following policies and procedures: 
1. Program income will include (but will not be limited to): income from fees for services

performed, the use or rental of real or personal property acquired with grant funds, the
sale of commodities or items fabricated under a grant agreement, and payments of
principal and interest on loans made with grant funds. It will not include interest on
grant funds, rebates, credits, discounts, refunds, etc., or interest earned on any of these
items unless otherwise provided in the Federal awarding agency regulations or terms
and conditions of the award. It will also not include proceeds from the sale of equipment
or real property.

2. The Town will allow program income to be used in one of three methods:
a. Deducted from outlays
b. Added to the project budget
c. Used to meet matching requirements

Absent specific guidance in the Federal awarding agency regulations or the terms and 
conditions of the award, program income shall be deducted from program outlays. 

3. Program income, when applicable, will be accounted for as a revenue source in the
same program code as the Federal grant.

Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement - Reporting 

Source of Governing Requirements – Reporting requirements are contained in the 
following documents: 

Uniform Guidance, Performance reporting, 2 CFR section 215, Performance reporting, 2 
CFR section 215.51, program legislation, ARRA (and the previously listed OMB 
documents and future additional OMB guidance documents that may be issued), the 
Transparency Act, implementing requirements in 2 CFR part 170 and the FAR, and 
previously listed OMB guidance documents, Federal awarding agency regulations, and the 
terms and conditions of the award. 

In order to ensure compliance with these requirements, Town has implemented the 
following policies and procedures: 
1. Reports will be submitted in the required frequency and within the required deadlines.
2. Reports will be completed using the standard forms (as applicable) and method of

delivery (i.e., e-mail, grantor website, postal service, etc.).
3. Regardless of the method of report delivery, a copy of the submitted report will be

retained along with any documentation necessary to support the data in the report.  The
report will evidence the date of submission in order to document compliance with
timeliness requirements.  This may be done either physically or electronically.

Action Items - Page 38



4. Financial reports will always be prepared based on the general ledger using the
required basis of accounting (i.e., cash or accrual). In cases where financial data is
tracked outside of the accounting system (such as in spreadsheets or paper ledgers),
this information will be reconciled to the general ledger prior to report submission.

5. Any report with financial-related data will either be prepared or reviewed by the
Program Director and will have the appropriate review based on specific grant
guidelines.

6. Preparation of reports will be the responsibility of Program Director. All reports
(whether financial, performance, or special) must be reviewed and approved (as
applicable) prior to submission. This will be evidenced by either physical signatures
or electronic timestamps of approval.

7. Copies of submitted reports with preparer and reviewer signatures and data will be
filed with supporting documentation and any follow-up correspondence from the
grantor or pass-through agency. Copies of all such reports will be made available to
administration, auditors, and pass-through or grantor agencies, as requested.

Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement – Subrecipient Monitoring 

Source of Governing Requirements – The requirements for subrecipient monitoring are 
contained in 31 USC 7502(f)(2)(B) (Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 (Pub. L. No. 
104-156)), Uniform Guidance, program legislation, 2 CFR parts 25 and 170, and 48 CFR
parts 4, 42, and 52 Federal awarding agency regulations, and the terms and conditions of
the award.

The Town will review and oversee subrecipient activity and obtain a copy of their single 
audit. Additionally the Town will evaluate the subrecipient’s risk of noncompliance with 
Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the subaward for purposes of 
determining the appropriate monitoring procedures as required by the Uniform Guidance 
Title 2 CFR 200.331.  Other oversight processes and procedures will be established on a 
case by case basis, dependent on grant requirements and the level of activity of the 
subrecipient. 

Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement - Special Tests and Provisions 

Source of Governing Requirements – The laws, regulations, and the provisions of contract 
or grant agreements pertaining to the program. 

Additional Policies and Procedures. The following policies and procedures will also be 
applied: 

In order to ensure compliance with these requirements, Town has implemented the 
following policies and procedures: 

The Program Director will be assigned the responsibility for identifying compliance 
requirements for special tests and provisions, determining approved methods for 
compliance, and retaining any necessary documentation. 

Action Items - Page 39



Uniform Guidance– Federal Program Travel Costs 

The Town shall reimburse administrative, professional, and support employees, and officials, 
for travel costs incurred in the course of performing services related to official business as a 
federal grant recipient.   

For the purposes of this policy, travel costs shall mean the expenses for transportation, 
lodging, subsistence, and related items incurred by employees who are in travel status on 
official business as a federal grant recipient.   

Employees shall comply with the applicable Town policies and administrative regulations 
established for reimbursement of travel and other expenses.   

The validity of payments for travel costs for all employees shall be determined by the Program 
Director in the context of federal awards. 

Travel costs shall be reimbursed on a mileage basis for travel using an employee’s personal 
vehicle and on an actual cost basis for meals, lodging and other allowable expenses, consistent 
with those normally allowed in like circumstances in the Town’s nonfederally funded 
activities, and in accordance with the Town’s travel reimbursement policies and administrative 
regulations.   

Mileage reimbursements shall be at the rate approved by Governing Body for other Town 
travel reimbursements.  Actual costs for meals, lodging and other allowable expenses shall be 
reimbursed only to the extent they are reasonable and do not exceed the per diem limits 
established by federal Administration.   

If travel reimbursement costs are charged directly to a federal award, documentation must be 
maintained that justifies that (1) participation of the individual is necessary to the federal 
award, and (2) the costs are reasonable and consistent with the Town’s established policy.   

Policy effective date:  _______________. 

Action Items - Page 40



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Action Items #6.07 

Subject:     Approval of Federal Uniform Guidance Conflict of Interest Policy 

Board Meeting Date: September 19 2019 

================================================================================ 
Summary: Staff was advised by Mr. Aaron B. Hawkins, of Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates, federal 
compliance guidelines changed a couple of years ago from OMB Circular A-133 over to the OMB 
Uniform Guidance. The attached policy will keep the County in compliance with the Uniform 
Guidance. Mr. Hawkins advised to make sure that there are no contradictions with the current 
policies in places in regards to purchasing/procurement from the Uniform Guidance Policy. This 
policy will need to be in place for FY20. 

Recommendation: That the Board adopts the Federal Uniform Guidance Conflict of Interest Policy. 

Attachment:  A Copy of the Federal Uniform Guidance Conflict of Interest Policy 
================================================================================ 

ACTION: That the Board adopts the Federal Uniform Guidance Conflict of Interest Policy. 

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY:  

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Blowe Seward 

Fly Stringfield 

Futrell Tyler 

Action Items - Page 41



Conflicts of Interest 
This policy shall affirm standards of conduct established to ensure that members of 
Governing Body and employees avoid potential and actual conflicts of interest, as well as the 
perception of a conflict of interest. 

Confidential information shall mean information not obtainable from reviewing a public 
document or from making inquiry to a publicly available source of information. 

Conflict or Conflict of interest shall mean use by a member of the Governing Body or 
employee of the local government of his/her office or employment, or any confidential 
information received through his/her holding public office or employment, for the private 
pecuniary benefit of him/herself, a member of his/her immediate family or a business with 
which s/he or a member of his/her immediate family is associated. The term does not include 
an action having a de minimis economic impact, or which affects to the same degree a class 
consisting of the general public or a subclass consisting of an industry, occupation or other 
group which includes the member of Governing Body or employee, a member of his/her 
immediate family or a business with which s/he or a member of his/her immediate family is 
associated. 

Apparent Conflict of Interest shall mean a situation in which a reasonable person would 
perceive that a decision-maker’s (member of Governing Body or employee) judgment is 
likely to be compromised. 

De minimis economic impact shall mean an economic consequence which has an 
insignificant effect. 

Financial interest shall mean any financial interest in a legal entity engaged in business for 
profit which comprises more than five percent (5%) of the equity of the business or more than 
five percent (5%) of the assets of the economic interest in indebtedness. 

Honorarium shall mean payment made in recognition of published works, appearances, 
speeches and presentations, and which is not intended as consideration for the value of such 
services which are nonpublic occupational or professional in nature. The term does not 
include tokens presented or provided which are of de minimis economic impact. 

Immediate family shall mean a parent, parent-in-law, spouse, child, spouse of a child, 
brother, brother-in-law, sister, sister-in-law, or the domestic partner of a parent, child, brother 
or sister. 

Business partner shall mean a person who, along with another person, plays a significant 
role in owning, managing, or creating a company in which both individuals have a financial 
interest in the company. 

Action Items - Page 42



Each employee and member of Governing Body shall be responsible to maintain standards 
of conduct that avoid conflicts of interest. The Governing Body prohibits members of the 
Governing Body and employees from engaging in conduct that constitutes a conflict of 
interest as outlined in this policy. 

All members of Governing Body and employees shall be provided with a copy of this policy 
and acknowledge in writing that they have been made aware of it. Additional training shall 
be provided to designated individuals. 

Disclosure of Financial Interests 
No member of Governing Body shall be allowed to take the oath of office or enter or continue 
upon his/her duties, nor shall s/he receive compensation from public funds, unless s/he has 
filed a statement of financial interests as required by law. 

Standards of Conduct (This section specifically addresses requirements of 2 CFR § 200.318) 
The Town maintains the following standards of conduct covering conflicts of interest and 
governing the actions of its employees and members of Governing Body engaged in the 
selection, award and administration of contracts. 

No employee or member of Governing Body may participate in the selection, award or 
administration of a contract supported by a federal award if s/he has a real or apparent conflict 
of interest as defined above, as well as any other circumstance in which the employee, 
member of Governing Body, any member of his/her immediate family, his/her business 
partner, or an organization which employs or is about to employ any of them, has a financial 
or other interest in or a tangible personal benefit from a firm considered for a contract.  

The Town shall not enter into any contract with a member of Governing Body or employee, 
or his/her spouse or child, or any business in which the person or his/her spouse or child is 
associated valued at $500 or more, nor in which the person or spouse or child or business 
with which associated is a subcontractor unless the Governing Body has determined it is in 
the best interests of the Town to do so, and the contract has been awarded through an open 
and public process, including prior public notice and subsequent public disclosure of all 
proposals considered and contracts awarded. In such a case, the member of Governing Body 
or employee shall not have any supervisory or overall responsibility for the implementation 
or administration of the contract. 

When advertised formal bidding is not required or used, an open and public process shall 
include at a minimum: 

1. Public notice of the intent to contract for goods or services;
2. A reasonable amount of time for potential contractors to consider whether to offer

quotes; and
3. Post-award public disclosure of who made bids or quotes and who was chosen.

Action Items - Page 43



Any member of Governing Body or employee who in the discharge of his/her official duties 
would be required to vote on a matter that would result in a conflict of interest shall abstain 
from voting and, prior to the vote being taken, publicly announce and disclose the nature of 
his/her interest as a public record. 

No public official or public employee shall accept an honorarium. 

Members of Governing Body and employees may neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors 
or anything of monetary value from contractors or parties to subcontracts, unless the gift is 
an unsolicited item of nominal value. Gifts of a nominal value may be accepted in accordance 
with policy. 

Improper Influence 
No person shall offer or give to a member of Governing Body, employee or nominee or 
candidate for the Governing Body, or a member of his/her immediate family or a business 
with which s/he is associated, anything of monetary value, including a gift, loan, political 
contribution, reward or promise of future employment based on the offeror's or donor's 
understanding that the vote, official action or judgment of the member of Governing Body, 
employee or nominee or candidate for the Governing Body would be influenced thereby. 

No member of Governing Body, employee or nominee or candidate for the Governing Body 
shall solicit or accept anything of monetary value, including a gift, loan, political contribution, 
reward or promise of future employment, based on any understanding of that member of 
Governing Body, employee or nominee or candidate that the vote, official action or judgment 
of the member of Governing Body, employee or nominee or candidate for the Governing 
Body would be influenced thereby. 

Organizational Conflicts (This section specifically addresses requirements of 2 CFR 
§200.318)
Organizational conflicts of interest may exist when due to the Town’s relationship with a
subsidiary, affiliated or parent organization that is a candidate for award of a contract in
connection with federally funded activities, the Town may be unable or appear to be unable
to be impartial in conducting a procurement action involving a related organization.

In the event of a potential organizational conflict, the potential conflict shall be reviewed by 
the Manager or designee to determine whether it is likely that the Town would be unable or 
appear to be unable to be impartial in making the award. If such likelihood exists, this shall 
not disqualify the related organization; however, the following measures shall be applied: 

1. The organizational relationship shall be disclosed as part of any notices
to potential contractors;

2. Any Town employees or officials directly involved in the activities of
the related organization are excluded from the selection and award
process;

3. A competitive bid, quote or other basis of valuation is considered; and
4. The Governing Body has determined that contracting with the related

organization is in the best interests of the program involved.
Action Items - Page 44



Reporting 
Any perceived conflict of interest that is detected or suspected by any employee or third party 
shall be reported to the Manager. If the Manager is the subject of the perceived conflict of 
interest, the employee or third party shall report the incident to the Governing Body 
Chairperson. 

Any perceived conflict of interest of a member of Governing Body that is detected or 
suspected by any employee or third party shall be reported to the Governing Body 
Chairperson. If the Governing Body Chairperson is the subject of the perceived conflict of 
interest, the employee or third party shall report the incident to the Manager, who shall report 
the incident to the solicitor. 

The non-Federal entity must disclose in writing any potential conflict of interest to the Federal 
awarding agency or pass-through entity in accordance with applicable Federal awarding 
agency policy. 

No reprisals or retaliation shall occur as a result of good faith reports of conflicts of interest. 

Investigation 
Investigations based on reports of perceived violations of this policy shall comply with state 
and federal laws and regulations. No person sharing in the potential conflict of interest being 
investigated shall be involved in conducting the investigation or reviewing its results. 

In the event an investigation determines that a violation of this policy has occurred, the 
violation shall be reported to the federal awarding agency in accordance with that agency’s 
policies. 

Disciplinary Actions 
If an investigation results in a finding that the complaint is factual and constitutes a violation 
of this policy, the Town shall take prompt, corrective action to ensure that such conduct 
ceases and will not recur. Town staff shall document the corrective action taken and, when 
not prohibited by law, inform the complainant. 

Violations of this policy may result in disciplinary action up to and including discharge, fines 
and possible imprisonment. Disciplinary actions shall be consistent with Governing Body 
policies, procedures, applicable collective bargaining agreements and state and federal laws. 

Policy effective date:  _______________. 

Action Items - Page 45



SUSSEX COUNTY 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1 - 1 
2- 6

7- 7
8- 9

10-12 

13-15

16-17

18-18
19-19

SUBMI1TED BY DESTE J. COX, TREASURER 

July 31, 2019 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

BANK RECONCD.,A TION 

999 TREAS. ACCT - 4 YR. COMP. BAL SHEET 

GEN FUND (100) BALANCE SHEET 

REVENUE/EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUND 
GEN FUND (100) REVENUE SUMMARY BY MAJOR 
GEN FUND (100) EXPENDITURE SUMMARY BY DEPT 

CIF (302) DETAIL REVENUE/EXPENSE SUMMARY 
LANDFD.,L TIPPING FEES 
LANDFILL REVENUE SUMMARY - 10 YR REPORT 

7.01

Departmental Reports - 1

sricks
Highlight



' 

� J � ; ! * i� � 

.-

� -- 
. 

" 

• • 

' 

• • 

•

Departmental Reports - 2



TREASURER'S OFFICE 
DEST£. ·.co,\ 

TRE-lSURER 

)'l SSfl COUNT! 

15074 COURTHOUSE ROAD 

P.O BOX /399

SUSS£).. V'I. 1iR84 

Pl,011,· t43./J2.Jo-/086 01 

r434J!46-WS

F(/\ t434J:J./fi-!3r 

Statement of money in the banks to the credit of Sussex County as shown by the Treasurer's books 
at the close of business July 31, 2019 

BB&T #201- SUSSEX. VA 
Bank Balance - Money Market Checking--------· 
Plus NSF Check - in bank, not in office 
Plus Deposits in Transit - in office, not in bank----· 
Plus Cr Card Deposits in Transit - in office, not in bank
Less Outstanding Checks not cleared bank-------
Less Deposit Correction in Transit 

$4.186,852.31 
347.83 

420.00 
853.10 

(566,320.44) 
(0.10) 

Less Deposits in Transit· in bank, not In office--- ___ (._2_38_._65_,_) $3,621,914.05 

BSV #301-STONY CREEK. VA 
Bank Balance----
Plus Bank Check Chg in Transit-·------·--
Plus Online Credit Cd Pmts in Transit - in office, not in bank 
Less Deposits in Transit - in bank, not in office--
lnvestment Account----------------------

#16551 - BSV #302 

S0NA#401-WAVERLY. VA 
Bank Balance-----------------------------

Less Deposits in Transit - in bank, not in office---· 
Investments and CD's ---------

#30371619 - SONA #451 

$40,768.05 
$94.75 

$102.08 

50,000.00 

$16,533.05 

40,964.88 

50.000.00 

($0.75) 16.532.30 

$2,247,108.11 $2,247,108.11 

QZAB -05 #701 Investment Balance---- 888,895.43 
QZAB -06 #702 Investment Balance----------------------· 1,521,534.51 
LGIP INVESTMENT #803 Investment Balance ------· 2.470,485.52 
VA INV POOL #804 lnvestn Investment Balance ------ 4,572,913.21 

TOTAL IN BANKS REC W/GL--

Letters or statements from each of the above mentioned 
banks are on file in the Treasurer's Office of 
Sussex County certifying the balance as listed above. 

kbe 

$15,430,348.01 

Respe�tfully submitted: 

i l I ._ /� I I f i 1 
Deste J. Cox. Treasllrer 

Departmental Reports - 3



07/31/2019 DESTE J. COX, TR:s:A.91:IIUlR SUSSEX COUNTY 

'UNO -t-999 ·"'-"' 
GL010C 

MAJOR# 

000000-0000 

000100-0000 
000100-0101 
000100-0201 
000100-0251 
000}00-0252 
000100-0301 
000100-0302 
000100-0351 
000100-0352 
000100-0401 
000100-0451 
000100-0452 
000100-0701 
000100-0702 
000100-0803 
000100-0804 
000100-0805 
000100-0806 
000100-0901 

000300-0000 
000300-0100 
000300-0105 
000300-0110 
000300-0115 
000300-0120 
000300-0121 
000300-0122 
000300-0123 
000300-0124 
000300-0125 
000300-0135 
000300-0140 
000300-0201 
000300-0251 
000300-0252 
000300-0253 
000300-0254 

Bhl.ANCE SHEET • COMPARATIV'E PEIU� 
2016/01 - 2019/01 

DESCRIPTION 
------------

TREASURER'S ACCOUNTABILITY FUND 
TREASURER'S ACCOUNTABILITY FUND 

ASSETS 
Cash in Office · Treasurer 
BB&T - MM Checking 
BB&T - CD's 
BB&T - Repos 
BSV - MM Checking 
BSV - Investment Acct 
BSV - CD's 
BSV - Repos 
SONA BANK (SB} CHECKING 
SONA BANK (SB} CD'S 
SONA BANK (SB) REPOS 
Bank of America QZAB Acct 
Bk of America QZAB 06 Escrow 
LGIP - Investments 
VIP - Investments 
Mentor Snap - VPSA Bond Proceeds 
va.snap/PFM-VPSA Int. Acct 
NSF Checks 

ASSETS 
Tr'TAt. ASSETS 

FUND EQUITY 
�!!'n!U,'.a.l Ftmd 
VPA Fund 
CSA Fund 
BJA Trust Fund 
IPR Loan Program Fund 
IPR Program Income Fund {11/021 
Disaster Recovery Relief Fund 
CDBG Housing Program 
Sussex Gardens Proj FD (Revl FD) 
Drug Forfeiture Fund 
Reserve for CP and OS 
Criminal Justice Reserve Fund 
Law Library Fund 
School Fund 
School Food Services Fund 
Sununer Food Service Fund 
Title and Grant fund 

FY/2011 
Bal. Sheet 

2016/07 
Thru 

2016/07 

.00 

.oo 

.00 

.00 
600,00 

2,583,259,83 
.00 
.00 

34,514.28 
.00 
.00 
.00 

16,989.94 
2,210,398.24 

.00 
658,511.13 

1,099,466.92 
4,575,309.15 

.OD 

.00 

.00 
.00 

11,119,050.09 
1137'9.oso .o9 

.00 
2 983::;:-4T5= 

.00 
116,494.94 

.oo 

. 00 
44,194.30-

. 00 
53,404.99-

.00 
12, 105.16-

2, 875,305 ,02-
.OD 

27,458.83-
714, 538. 05-

30, 875. ll-
4,274.13-

262, 713 .35-

FY/2018 
Bal. Sheet 

2011/07 
Thru 

2011/01 
-- ... ------

. 00 
.DO 
.00 
.DO 

600.00 
4,141,015.21 

.00 
,00 

113,291.88 
.00 
.DO 
.DO 

51,496.11 
2,216,289.69 

.00 
733,555,08 

1,231,014.15 
2,093,101.11 

.oo 

.oo 

.oo 

923.09 
11,199,288.24 
ll j ill,_286.24 

. DO 
803�934.09-

.00 
34,665.55-

.00 

.00 
35,919.74-

.00 
57,173.99-

.00 
20,248.94-

3,576,423.02-
.00 

27,790.71-
714,211.40-

32, 884. 30-
124. 41

714, 199.64-

FY/2019 
Bal. Sheet 

2018/07 
Thru 

2018/01 
... --·--- .. ---

. DO 

.DO 

.00 

.00 
600.00 

2,441,169.31 
.DO 
.00 

10,202.08 
.00 
.00 
.DO 

11,541.48 
2,228,143.93 

.00 
810,274.01 

1,311,642.25 
4,649,869.54 

514,236.03 
.oo 

.oo 

234.00 
12,043,912.69 
12+ 04:L, 9,12 69 

.00 
2.L984+04�

. oo 

34,111.64 
.00 
.00 

37, 152.20-
.00 

58,918. 99-
. 00 

16,408.49-
3,589,122.02-

. 00 
28,321.94-

821, l2B. 64· 
30,998.92-

2, 640.12 
898,461. 63-

FY /2020 
llal. Sheet 

2019/07 
Thru 

2019/01 
.......... - ------

, 00 
.00 
.oo 

.OD 
1,000.00 

3,621,914.05 
.00 
.oo 

40,964.88 
50,000,00 

.00 

.00 
16,532.30 

2,247,108.11 
.00 

888,895.43 
1,521,534.51 
2,410,485.52 
4,572,91J.2l 

.oo 

.00 
583.90 

15,431,931.91 
15...lll._9� 

.00 
2ii,.662.66 
91,941.04-
55,772.0l 

.00 
.00 

39,269.92-
. 00 

59,415.99-
. 00 

18,045.35-
5,604,103.02-

. 00 
29,269.46-

598,229.25-
68,322.30-

4,653.62-
883,304.28-

PAGE I 2 

Departmental Reports - 4



07/31/2019 DEST!!: J. COX, TREASURER SUSSEX COUNTY 

BALANCE SHEET---:-COMPARATIVE PERIODS 
2016/07 - 2019/07 

fUND FJ99 TRF;a_SURER 1S ACCOUNTABIL1 TY FUND 
GL070C 

MAJORI 

000300-0255 
000300-0256 
000300-0301 
000300-0302 
000300-0303 
000300-0305 
000300-0306 
000300-0307 
000300-0723 
000300-0724 
000300-0725 
000300-0726 
000300-0733 
000300-0135-200 

000400-0000 
000400-0001 
000400-0002 
000400-0011 
000400-0012 
000400-0013 
000400-0014 
000400-0015 
000400-0016 
000400-0021 
000400-0101 
000400-0102 
000400-0103 
000400-0104 
000400-0150 

000401-0000 
000401-0101 
000401-010:2 

000500-0000 

000501-0000 
000501-199C 
000501-1991 

DESCRIPTION 

School Textbook Fund 
Smart Beg.Early Childhood Dev 
School Capital Projects Fund 
General Capital Projects Fund 
Elementary School Capital Proj Fund 
Mega Site - Industrial Park Fund 
Cabin Point - Industrail Park Fund 
Henry - Industrial Park Fund 
Robert Mitchell Scholarship Fund 
wav/Wak Rotary Scholarship Fund 
RICHARD CLEMENTS MOORE III SCH FUND 
Millard D. Stith Sch. Fund 
Special Welfare Fund 
Restricted Res for Elem Loans 

FUND EQUITY 
TOTAL PRIOR YR FUND BALANCE 

OTHER ACCOUNTS 
Treasurer's Deferred Account 
Cash Over and Short 
Overpayments 
Prepaid Taxes - PP 
Prepaid Taxes - RE 
Available PTR for Distrib Sl.093M 
Escrow Acct. QZAB 2005 
QZAB 2006 Escrow Acct. 
Escrow Acct - Perf. Surety(ESCROW) 
Commonwealth Current Credit Account 
Commonwealth Current Debit Account 
Commonwealth Cur C-DHCD Ln-Woodfued 
Escrow Sheriff's Sales (SHSALE) 
Health Insurance Cont. Fund (HINS) 
OTHER ACCOUNTS 

ESCROW ACCTS. RESERVED CJF ACCTS 
Escrow for Fire Dept. Vehicles 
Escrow for Rescue Vehicles 

ESCROW ACCTS. RESERVED CIF ACCTS 
OTHER EQJll.TY & ESCfl, ·.w r,c-TS 

UNCOLLECTED TAXES - COUNTY 
UNCOLLECTED TAXES - COUNTY 

UNCOLLECTED TAXES - RE 
Real Estate - 1990 
Real Estate - 1991 

FY /2017 
Bal. Sheet 

2016/07 
Thru 

2016/07 
----------

189, 721.02-
.00 

197,869.05-
1, 365,434. 7"1-

.00 
54,195.62 
9,723.89 

.oo 

26,449.17-
26,873.86-
29,457.83-
79, 141.00-

1,513.97-
.oo 

a,744,340.38-
8,744,340.38-

.00 
1,288.68-

27.63-
.oo 

ll,728.23-
33,202.12-

.oo 

658,511.13-
1,099,466.92-

64,235.00-
.00 
.oo 

.00 

.00 

.00 
1,868,459. 71-

.00 
500,000.00-

66,250.00-
566,250.00-

2,434,709.71-
.00 
.00 
.00 
.oo 

.00 

FY/2018 
Bal. Sheet 

2017/07 
Thru 

2017/07 
----------

256,429.22-
.00 

197,982.05-
556,729.69-

.00 
9,530.39 

170,822.99 
. 00 

25, 851.17-

32, 338 .86-

29,958.83-
87,496.00-

995.89-

.00 
9,026,821.38-
9,026,821.38-

.oo 

1,344.51-
.88-
.00 

19,124.03-
28,304.61-

.00 
733,555.08-

1,237,014.75-
70,610.00-

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 
43,737.00 

2,046,216.86-
.oo 

60,000.00-
66,250.00-

126,250.00 
2, ;72,•f66.86-

.oo 

.00 
.00 
.oo 

.00 

FY/2019 
Bal. Sheet 

2018/07 
Thru 

2018/07 
----------

322,256.70-
.oo 

198,361. 05-
694, 004. 60-

.oo 

135,135.27 
31,009.76 

113,991. 84-
25, 807 .17-
30, 996.86-

30,640.83-
102,802.00-

1,444.67-
.00 

9, 782,504. 00-
9,782, 504. 00-

.00 
.00 

6.92 
.OD 

14,043.04-
34,875.31-

.oo 

810,274.01-
1, 377, 642. 25-

72, 17 l. 50-
. oo 

.oo 

.oo 

. 00 
47,590.50 

2,261,408.69-
.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 

:1;;,i;f,_4,·ll.69-
- ........._ •. .00

.00 

.00 
.00 
.00 

FY/2020 
Bal. Sheet 

2019/07 
Thru 

2019/07 
----------

202,293.28-
.00 

202, 117. 05-
702, 590. 60-

. oo 

141,535.27 
17,098.88 

113,991. 84-
25, 216.17-
35,209.86-
32,358.83-

103,057.00-
13,407.23-

.oo 

12,.fl85,058.59-
12,885,058.59-

.oo 

.00 
40.58-

.00 
7,225.20-

52,442.60-
.oo 

888,895.43-
1,521,534.51-

76,735.00-
.00 
.00 
.oo 

.oo 

.oo 

2,546,873.32-
.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 

, 5,46,.873. 3�., 
.oo 

.00 

.00 
.00 
.00 

PAGE I 3 

Departmental Reports - 5



07/31/2019 DBSTE J. COX, TREASURER SUSSEX COUNTY PAGB i 4 

BALANCE 8BBBT - CC>fPARAT:IVE PB:IUODS 

2016/07 - 2019/07 

FUND J-:Hi9 TRE�SURER'S ACCOUNTA8!L!TY FUND 
GL070C 

FY/2017 FY/201B FY/2019 FY/2020 
Bal. Sheet Bal. Sheet Bal. Sheet Bal. Sheet 

2016/07 2017/07 2018/07 2019/07 
Thru Thru Thru Thru 

MAJORfl DESCRIPTION 2016/07 2017/07 2018/07 2019/07 
----------- ------------- -------- -- --- ------------- -------------

000501-1992 Real Estate - 1992 . 00 .oo .00 .00 

000501-1993 Real Estate - 1993 • 00 .00 .00 .00 

000501-1994 Real Estate - 1994 .oo .00 ,00 .oo 

000501-1995 Real Estate - 1995 .00 .00 .00 .00 

000501-1996 Real Estate - 1996 238.74 .00 .oo .oo 

000501-1997 Real Estate - 1997 260.84 193, 17 .oo .oo 

000501-1998 Real Estate - 1998 324.96 256.14 86. 04 .00 

000501-1999 REAL ESTATE - 1999 360.60 2 91. 78 121.68 121.68 

000501-2000 Real Estate - 2000 390.60 322.80 168,00 168,00 

000501-2001 Real Estate - 2001 477. 60 409.80 168,00 168,00 

000501-2002 Real Estate - 2002 631.15 557.70 182,00 182.00 

00050 l-·2003 Real Estate - 2003 651. 95 578.50 182.00 182.00 

000501-2004 REAL ESTATE - 2004 657.80 584.35 187.85 187,85 

000501-2005 Real Estate - 2005 657.80 584.35 187.85 187.85 

000501-2006 Real Estate - 2006 461.28 427.6B 161.28 161.28 

000501-2007 Real Estate - 2007 461.28 427.68 161.28 161.28 

000501-2008 REAL ESTATE - 2008 1,244.73 574 .11 274.41 264.55 

000501-2009 RE - 2009 2,068.74 828.90 529 .20 442.26 

000501-2010 Real Estate - 2010 3,673.41 1,606.41 907.62 638.28 

000501-2011 Real Estate - 2011 7,399.79 4,683.40 1,705.71 667.02 

000501-2012 Real Estate - 2012 14,614.49 8,249.02 3,291.21 1,518.50 

000501-2013 Real Estate - 2013 22,642.33 15,400.88 6,597.05 3,595.52 

000501-2014 Real Estate - 2014 45,383.78 27,112.08 15,875.92 7,575.17 

000501-2015 Real Estate - 2015 144,463.25 73,079.40 32,094.85 15,375.33 

000501-2016 Real Estate - 2016 .oo 191,352.43 90,374.25 47,325.42 

000501-2017 Real Estate - 2017 .00 .00 182,765.80 99,869.85 

000501-2018 Real Estate - 2018 .00 .00 .00 196,625.23 

000501-2019 Real Estate - 2019 .00 .oo .00 .00 

000501-9999 Reserve - Real Estate Taxes 247,065.12- 327,520.58- 336,022.00- 375,417.07-

UNCOLLECTED TAXES - RE .00 . 00 .00 .00 

000502-0000 UNCOLLECTED TAXES - PP .00 .00 .00 .00 

000502-2005 pp - 2005 .00 .00 .oo .oo 

000502-2006 pp - 2006 .00 .00 .00 .00 

000502-2007 pp - 2007 .00 .00 .00 .00 

000502-2008 pp - 2008 .00 .00 . 00 .oo 

000502-2009 pp - 2009 .00 .00 .00 .00 

000502 -2010 pp - 2010 .00 .00 .oo ,00 

000502-2011 pp - 2011 15,428.87 .00 .00 .oo 

000502-2012 pp 2012 18,910.59 18,012.90 .00 .00 

000502-2013 pp - 2013 14,874,18 12,627.02 11,488.04 .00 

000502-2014 pp - 2014 34,530.35 24,555.89 21,761.62 19,147.15 

000502-2015 ri'P - 2015 134,911.45 32,799.86 22,876.05 18,918.21 

Departmental Reports - 6



0'1/31/2019 PEST£ J. COX, TREASURER SUSSEX COUNTY 

BALANCE SHEET - COHPMATl:VE PERIODS 

2016/07 - 2019/07 

UNO �-JJ9..______'.!'..REASURER'S A_CCOU�TABILlTY FUND 
GL070C 

FY/2017 FY/2018 
Bal. Sheet Bal. Sheet 

2016/07 2017/07 
Thru Thru 

MAJORII DESCRIPTION 2016/07 2011/07 
----------- ------------- -------------

000502-2016 pp - 2016 .00 161,998.08 

000502-2017 pp - 2017 .00 . 00 

000502-2018 PP - 2018 .oo .00 

000502-2019 pp - 2019 .oo .00 

000502-9999 Reserve - PP Taxes 218,655.44- 249,993.75-

UNCOLLECTED TAXES - PP .oo .00 

000503-0000 UNCOLLECTED TAXES PSC .oo .00 

000503-2006 PSC • 2006 .oo .00 

000503-2007 PSC - 2007 .00 .00 

000503-2008 PSC - 2008 .00 .00 

000503-2009 PSC - 2009 .oo .00 

000503-2010 PSC - 2010 . 00 .00 

000503-2011 PSC - 2011 .00 .00 

000503-2012 PSC - 2012 .00 .00 

000503-2013 PSC - 2013 .00 .00 

000503-2014 PSC - 2014 .oo .oo 

000503-2015 PSC - 2015 . 00 .00 

000503-2016 PSC - 2016 .00 44.88 

000503-2017 PSC - 2017 .00 .oo 

000503-2018 PSC - 2018 .00 .00 

000503-2019 PSC 2019 .oo .oo 

000503-9999 Reserve - PSC Taxes . 00 44.88-

UNCOLLECTED TAXES - PSC .00 .oo 

000504-0000 UNCOLLECTED BUISNESS LICENSE .00 .00 

000504-2015 BL - 2015 .00 .00 

000504-2016 BL - 2016 241. 68- 401. 68-

000504-2017 BL - 2017 . 00 30.00-

000504-2018 BL - 2018 .oo .00 

000504-2019 BL - 2019 .00 .oo 

000504-9999 Reserve for Buisness License 241. 68 431. 68
UNCOLLECTED BUISNESS LICENSE .00 .00

000520-0000 OMV REGISTRATION WITHHOLDING FEES .00 .00

000520-0001 OMV Withholding Fees Receivable 12,411.70 3,985. 47-

000520-9999 Reserve for OMV Withholding Fees 12,411. 70- 3,985.47 
OMV REGISTRATION WITHHOLDING FEES .00 .oo 

000521-0000 UNCOLLECTED ADMINISTRATIVE FEES .00 .00 

000521-0001 Administrative Fees Receivable 16,977.63 7,674.18-

000521-9999 Reserve for Administrative Fees 16,977. 63- 7,674.18 
UNCOLLECTED ADMIN1STRJ\TIVE FEES .00 .00 

.oo .00 

00060C-OOOO UNCOLLECTED TAXES STAT£ .00 .oo 

UNCOLLECTED TAXES - STAT£ .00 .00 

FY/2019 
Bal. Sheet 

2018/07 
Thru 

2018 /07 
- ------.... ----

104,242.06 
117,676.73 

.00 

.00 
278,044.50-

.00 
.oo 

.00 

.oo 

.oo 

.00 

.00 
.oo 

.00 

.DO 
.00 
.00 
.00 
.oo 

.00 

.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 
.oo 

32.00-
.00 

32.00 
.oo 

.00 

.00 
.00 
.OD 
.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 
.oo 

l'Am: • 5 

FY/2020 
Bal. Sheet 

2019/07 
Thru 

2019/07 
-------------

92,741.29 
38,750.31 
91,564.10 

.00 
261, 121.06-

.00 
.00 
.oo 

.oo 

.00 
.oo 

.00 

.oo 

.00 
.oo 

.00 
.oo 

.oo 

.00 

.oo 

.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 
.oo 

.oo 

.oo 

.00 

.00 
.oo 

.oo 

.00 

.00 

.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 
.oo 

Departmental Reports - 7



07/31/2019 DESTE J. COX, TR&ASURBR SUSSEX COUNTY PAGE I 6 

�CB SHEET - COMPARATIVB PQ.IODS 
2016/07 - 2019/07 

FUND t,999 TR�ASURER'S �G£.Q.1!!iTAB,;LtTV fUN� 
GL070C 

FY/2017 FY/2019 FY/2019 FY/2020 
Bal. Sheet Bal. Sheet Bal. Sheet Bal, Sheet 

2016/07 2017/07 2018/07 2019/07 

Thru Thru Thru Thru 

MAJORll DESCRIPTION 2016/07 2017/07 2018/07 2019/07 
___ .., __ .... .._ ___ 

------------- -----._. ............. --- --------·----- .... -..... --·---... --.... -

000601-0000 UNCOLLECTED TAXES - SI ,00 .00 .00 .00 

000601-2009 State Income Tax - 2009 .00 .00 .00 .oo 

000601-2010 State Income Tax - 2010 .00 .oo .00 .00 

000601-2011 State Income Tax - 2011 .00 .00 .00 .00 

000601-2012 State Income Tax - 2012 .00 .oo .00 .oo 

000601-2013 State Income Tax - 2013 .00 .00 .00 .oo 

000601-2014 State Income Tax - 2014 .00 .oo .oo .00 

000601-2015 State Income Tax - 2015 12,207.88 .00 .00 .00 

000601-2016 State Income Tax - 2016 .00 4,673.80 .00 .00 

000601-2017 State Income Tax - 2017 .00 .00 B,220.23 .00 

000601-2018 State Income Tax - 2018 .00 .oo . 00 11,406.00 

000601-9999 Reserve - State Income 12,207.88- 4,673.80- 8,220.23- 11,406.00-

UNCOLLECTED TAXES - SI .00 . 00 .00 .oo 

.00 .00 . 00 .00 

000702-0000 IPR Loan Payments Receivable 3,124.35 3,069.61 3,768.72 4,900.44 

000702-9999 Reserve for IPR Loan Payments 3,124.35- 3,069.61- 3,768. 72- 4,900.44-

IPR Loan Payments Receivable .00 .00 . 00 .00 

000703-0000 CDBG Loan Payments Receivable 971. 00 307.00 .00 .00 

000703-9999 Reserve for CDBG Loan Payments 971. 00- 307,00- .00 .00 

CDBG Loan Payments Receivable .00 .00 .00 .00 

.00 .00 .00 .00 

Departmental Reports - 8



07/31/19 •GL070• Deste J. Cox, Treasurer 
r·•n, ii h,, d:Yf-di\.L fl'ND 

ACCOUNT 
NUMBER 

100-0100 

101-0050
101-0051
101-0235
101-0236
101-0237
101-0238
101-0239
101 0240 

101-0241
101-0600
101-0900
101-0901

200-0000
200-0100
200-0200
200-0235
200-0236
200-0237
200-0238
200-0239
200-0240
200-0241
200-0300
200-0600
200-0700
200-0800
200 0900

300-0100

ACCOUNT 
DE'.SCRIPTION 

---------

GENERAL FUND 
ASSETS 

f'a...§.!l...li.Ll:h Treasu, er 
ASSETS 
OTHER ASSETS AND RESERVES 

Revl & Ln Due From Other Funds 
Due From School Fund 
Reserve for IDA Lease Agreement 
Reserve for VPSA99 Bonds High Sch. 
Res for Literary Loan - High Schoo 
Res for Literary Loan - Mid Sch 07 
Res for IDA QZAB Bond Deposit 
Reserve for VPSA 2012 Bond Elem Sc 
woodfuel Loan Receivable(DHCD Loan 
Commonwealth PTR avail. for distr. 
Accrued Accounts Receivable 
Reversion Due From School Fund 
OTHER ASSETS ANO RESERVES 

TOTAL ASSETS 
LIABILITIES 
Clearing Account - Payroll 
Clearing Account - Accounts Payabl 
IDA Lease Payable 
VPSA99 Bonds Payable - High Sch 
Literary Loan Pay - High Sch. 
Literary Loan Pay - Middle Sch 07 
IDA QZAB Bond Deposit Payable 
VPSA 2012 Bond Payable - Elem Sch. 
DHCO Loan Payable (Woodfuel) 
Clearing Account - Jurors 
Commonwealth PTR outstanding bal. 
Deferred Revenue - Prepaid Taxes 
Performance Surety 
Accrued Accounts Payable 

LIABILITIES 
�OTA! L[AB1LITIE�S"---�������� 

FUND EQUITY 
Fund Balance 

FUND EQUITY 
TOTAL PRIOR YR FUND BALANCE 
TUTAJ, RBVENUlt 
TOTAL BX1?BNDJ:TURE 
TOTAL CURRENT FUND BALANCE 

TOTAL LIABILITtES ANO FUND BALANCE 

SUSSEX COUNTY 
l'l\l.l:.lJch ,:11-� 1 

7/31/2019 
PREVIOUS 
BALANCE DEBIT 

a .. os1, 2•,2 ?;4 
8,057,252.54 

370,000.00 
2,528,893.00 
3,151,133.00 

607,322.75 
3,180,000.00 

291,085.00 
315.06 

10,128,148.61 
18,186,001.35 

257,720.34 
527,770.19 

370,000.00 

230,000.00 

76,152.23 

1,461,642.76 
1J 46l.642.76 

5,227,601.90 

CREDIT 

3.,7�5�9-
3,784,589.88-

370,000.00-

230,000.00-

76,152.23-

676,152.23-
4, 460,742 .11-

257, 720.34-
527,770.19-

370,000.00-
2,528,893.00-
3,151,133.00-

607,322.75-
3,180,000.00-

291,085.00-

315.06-

10,914,239. 34-
10, SH. �4 

6,362,998.62-
6,362,998.62-
6,362,998.62-
l t>15 62! lR 
3 765 959 14 

18,952, 861.14-

PAGE ff 7 

ENDING 
BALANCE 

<ls2??..(f.62.c( 
4,272,662.6€ 

2,528,893.00 
3,151,133.00 

607,322.75 
2,950,000.00 

291,085.00 
75,837.17-

9,452,596.58 
13,725,259.24 

2,528,893.00-
3,151,133.00-

607,322.75-
2,950,000.00-

291,085.00-

75, 837 .17

9,452,596.58 
5� 1 596.S[l 

6,362,998.62-
6,362,998.62 
6,362,996.62-
l 675 623 18 
3,765, 959 1t 
2 090,335 96 

13,125,259.24-
e.1<p ovQr. Revenue 

Departmental Reports - 9



07/31/2019 *GL060B* Daste J. Cox, Treasurer SUSSEX COUNTY PAGE f 8 

RE\IENUE SUMM1JU'. DY l'lJNDS 

7/01/2019 - 7/31/2019 
BUDGET APPR. CURRENT Y-T-D ' 

ACCn DESCRIPTION AMOUNT AMOUNT AMOUNT AMOUNT BALANCE REMAIN. 

----------- ------ .................. ------ ----..... 
____ .._ __ 

·----·---

100 REVENUE - GENERAL FUND 23,332,919.00 23,335,969.00 1,675,623.18 1,675,623.18 21,660,345.62 92.Bl
105 REVENUE - VPA/DSS FUND 2,127,832.00 2,127,832.00 246,588.78 246,588.78 J,881,243.22 BB.41
110 REVENUE - CSA FUND 725,000.00 125,000.00 141,991.65 141,991.65 583,006.35 BO. 41
121 REV.- IPR PROG. INCOME FD (11/02) 2,025.00 2,025.00 100.00 100.00 1,925.00 95.06
123 REV - CDBG HOUSING PRG (4/09) 3,425.00 3,425.00 . 00 .00 3,425,00 100.00 
135 REVENUE - CP / OS RESERVE FUND .00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 .00 .00 
201 REVENUE - LAW LIBRARY FOND 766.00 766.00 91.30 91.30 614. 70 BB.OB 
251 REVENUE - SCHOOL FUND 17,203,216.00 17,203,216.00 627,976.33 627,976.33 16,575,239.157 96.34 

252 REVENUE - SCHOOL FOOD SERVICES FUND 817,491.00 817,491.00 4,108.14 4,108.14 813,382 ,86 99. 49

253 REVENUE - SOMMER FOOD SERVICES FUND 27,850.00 27,850.00 7,875,72 7,875.72 19,914.28 71. 72

254 REVENOE - TITLE & GRANT FOND 1,394,928.00 1,394,926.00 23,903.26 23,903.26 1,371,024.74 98.26

255 REVENOE - SCH. TEXTBOOK FUND 102,301.00 102,301.00 5,558.00 5,558.00 96,743.00 94.56

302 REVENOE - CAPITAL PROJECT FOND 503,223.00 503,223.00 .oo .00 503,223.00 100.00 

733 REVENUE - SPECIAL WELFARE FOND .00 .00 2,322,71 2,322. 71 2,322.71- 100.00-

-- REVENUE TOTAL -- 46,240,976.00 4B,244,026.00 4,736,139.07 4,736, 139.0'7 43,50'7,B86.93 90.18 

Departmental Reports - 10



07/31/2019 *GL060B• Daste J. Cox, Treasurer 

ACCTB DESCRI PT10N 
-----------

100 EXPENDITURES - GENERAL FUND 
105 EXPENDITURES - VPA/0SS FUND 
110 EXPENDITURES - CSA FUND 
121 EXPEND. - IPR PROG. INCOME FD 11/02 
123 EXPEND. CDBG HOUSING PROGRAM 
125 EXPENDITURES - DRUG FORFEITURE FD 
201 EXPENDITURES - LAW LIBRARY FUND 
251 SCHOOL FUND EXPENDITURES 
252 EXPENDITURES - SCHOOL FOOD SERV 
253 EXPENDITURES - SOMMER FS FUND 
254 TITLE & GRANT REVOLVING FUND 
255 EXPENDITURES - TEXTBOOK FUND 
302 EXPENDITURES - CAPITAL PROJECT FD 
723 EXPENDITURES - ROBERT MITCHELL SCH 
7.26 EXP. - MILLARD & FLORENCE STITH FSF 
733 EXPENDITURES - SPECIAL WELFARE FD 

-- EXPENDITURE TOTAL --

SUSSEX COUNTY 

EXPl?ND�B�Qll. Bfi. li'UNDfJ 

BUDGET 
AMOUNT 
------

23,332,919.00 
2,127,832.00 

725,000 .oo

2,025.00 
3,425.00 

.oo 

7 66. 00 
17,203,216.00 

817,491.00 
27,850.00 

1,394,928.00 
102,301.00 
503,223.00 

.00 
. 00 
.00 

46,240,976.00 

7/01/2019 - 7/31/2019 
APPR. 
AMOUNT 
-----·-

25,335,969.00 
2,127,832.00 

725,000.00 
2,025.00 
3,425.00 

18,045.35 
766.00 

17,203,216.00 
817,491.00 

27,850.00 
1,394,928.00 

102,301.00 
503,223.00 

.oo 

.00 
.oo 

48,262,071.35 

CURRENT 
AMOUNT 
------

3,765,959.14 
154,641.74 

57,254.73 
.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 

588,336.54 
11,742.02 
9,432.11 

21,892.38 
.oo 

.OD 
800.00 
500.00 
269.76 

4,610,828.42 

Y-T-D
AMOUNT
--- --

3,765,959.14 
154,641.74 

57,254.73 
.00 
.00 
.00 
. 00 

588,336.54 
11,742.02 
9,432.11 

21,892.38 
.00 
.00 

800.00 
500.00 
269.76 

4,610,828.42 

ENCUMBRANCE 
AMOUNT 
------

.00 

.00 

.00 

.oo 

. 00 

.00 

.00 

.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 

PAGE 119 

UNENCUMBERED 
BALANCE REMAIN. 
------- -------

21,570,009.86 85 .13 

1,973,190.26 92.73 
667,745.27 92.10 

2,025.00 100.00 
3,425.00 100.00 

18,045.35 100.00 
766.00 100.00 

16,614,879.46 96.58 
805,748.98 99.56 

18,417.89 66.13 
1,373,035.62 98.43 

102,301.00 100.00 
503,223.00 100.00 

BOO.DO- 100.00-
500.00- 100.00-
269.76- 100.00-

43,651,242.93 90.44 

Departmental Reports - 11



07/31/2019 DESTE J, COX, TREASURER 
Ji'Uh'D #-lOC RE\'E1''UE 

ACCT# 

999 
10000 
11000 

DESCRIPTION 
-----------

REVENUE - GENERAL FUND 
REVENUE FROM LOCAL SOURCES 
GENERAL PROPERTY TAXES 

11010 REAL PROPERTY TAXES 
11020 PUBLIC SERVICE CORP TAXES 
11030 PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES 
11031 MOBILE HOME TAXES 
11032 FIRE AND RESCUE TAXES 
11040 Io!ACHINERY AND TOOLS TAXES 
11050 MERCHANTS CAPITAL TAXES 
11060 PENALTIES,INTEREST & TREAS ADM FEES 

12000 
12010 
12011 
12020 
12030 
12040 
120SO 
12060 
12070 

13000 
13010 
13030 

14000 
14010 

15000 
15010 
15020 

16000 
16010 
16020 
16050 
l 6060 

GENERAL PROPERTY TAXES 
OTHER LOCAL TAXES 

LOCAL SALES USE AND TAXES 
OCCUPANCY TAXES 
CONSUMER UTILITY TAXES 
BUSINESS LICENSE TAXES 
FRANCHISE LICENSE TAXES 
MOTOR VEHICLE LICENSES 
BANK STOCK TAXES 
RECORDATION TAXES 

OTHER LOCAL TAXES 
PERMITS, FEES ANO LICENSES 

ANIMAL LICENSES 
PERMITS AND OTHER LICENSES 

PERMITS, FEES AND LICENSES 
FINES AND FORFEITURES 

FINES AND FORFEITURES 

FINES AND FORFEITURES 
REVENUE FROM USE OF MONEY/PROPERTY 

REVENUE FROM USE OF MONEY 
REVENUE FROM USE OF PROPERTY 

REVENUE FROM USE OF MONEY/PROPERTY 
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 

COURT �OSTS 
COMMONWEALTH'S ATTORNEY FEES 
CHARGES FOR CORRECTION/DETENTION 
CHARGES FOR OTHER PROTECTION 

SUSSEX COUNTY 
��uE!IAL FUND - R°EvEHUE SlJMHARY aY MJ.JOR SOURCE • 

7/01/2019 - 7/31/2019 
BUDGET APPR. CURRENT 
AMOUNT AMOUNT AMOUNT 

5,289,150.00 
749,544.00 

2,673,495.00 
13,497.00 
10,290.00 

945,942.00 
72,136.00 

172,000.00 

9,926,054.00 

928,054.00 
62,000.00 
90,000.00 
77,130.00 

225,080.00 
6,000.00 

1,388,264.00 

5,000.00 
6,139,260.00 

6,144,260.00 

1,050,000.00 

1, 050, 000. 00 

60,000.00 
57,500.00 

117,500.00 

162,865.00 
1,800.00 
4,300.00 
3,800.00 

5,289,150.00 
749,544.00 

2,673,495.00 
13,497.00 
10,290.00 

945,942.00 
72,136.00 

172,000.00 

9,926,054.00 

928,054.00 
62,000.00 
90,000.00 
77,130.00 

225,080.00 
6,000.00 

1,388,264.00 

5,000.00 
6,139,260.00 

6,144,260.00 

1,050,000.00 

1,050,000.00 

60,000.00 
57,500.00 

117,500.00 

162,865.00 
1,800.00 
4,300.00 
3,800.00 

24,50!.35 

18,014.61 
149.90 

27 .30 

12,472.58 

55,165.74 

85,637.65 
5,711.21 
6,514.62 
2,663.47 

3,509.36 

104,036.31 

42.0C 
1,023,964.76 

1,024,006.76 

87,749.12 

87,749.12 

27,148.BS 
3,867.63 

-- 31, 016,52 

13,733.81 
176. 49
339.85
170.00

Y-T-0
AMOUNT

24,501.35 

18,014.61 
149.90 
27.30 

l2, 472.58 

55,165.74 

85,637.65 
5,711.21 
6,514.62 
2,663.47 

3,509.36 

104,036.31 

42.00 
1,023,964.76 

1,024,006.76 

87,749.12 

87,749.12 

27,148.89 
3,867.63 

31,016.52 

13,733.87 
176.49 
339.85 
110.00 

PAGE � lQ 

% 
BALANCE UNCOLLECTED 

5,264,648,ES 
749,544.00 

2,655,480.39 
13,347.10 
10,262. ,Q 

945,942.00 
72,136.00 

159,527,42 

9,870,888.26 

842,416, �5 

56,288.79 
83,485,38 
74,466.53 

221,570.64 
6,000,00 

1,284,227.69 

4,958,00 
5, 115,295,24 

5,120,253.24 

962,250.88 

962,250.83 

32,851.11 
53,632.37 

86,483.43 

149,131.13 
1,623.51 
3,960.15 
3,630 .. 00 

99.53 
100. 00 

99.32 
98.86 
99. 73

100.0C
100.00

92.74 

99.44 

90. r1
90.78
92.76
96.54

98.44 
100.00 

92.50 

99.16 
83.32 

83.33 

91. 64

91. 64

54.75 
93.27 

73. 6C

91. SE 

90.19
92.09
95.5:

Departmental Reports - 12



07/31/2019 DESTE J. COX, TREASURER 

BVND fl-100 REVENUE 

ACCTI DESCRIPTION 

16060 
16160 
16210 

18000 
16030 
18990 

19000 
19020 

20000 
21000 

22000 
22010 
22011 

23000 
23010 
23020 
23030 
23040 
23050 
23060 
23070 
23080 

24040 

CHARGES FOR SANITATION/WASTE REMVL 
CHARGES FOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
CHG FOR CREDIT & DEBIT CARO USE 

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 

EXPENDITURE REFUNDS 
MISCELLANEOUS 

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 
RECOVERED COSTS 
RECOVERED COSTS - OTHER 

RECOVERED COSTS 
REVENUE FROM THE COMMONWEALTH 

PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES 

PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES 
NON-CATEGORICAL AID - STATE 

NON - CATEGORICAL AID 
LOCAL FINES FROM DOA TO BE DISTRIB 

NON-CATEGORICAL AID - STATE 
SHARED EXPENSES - CATEGORICAL 

COMMONWEALTH'S ATTORNEY 
SHERIFF SHARED EXPENSE 
COMMISSIONER OF REVENUE 
TREASURER SHARED EXPENSE 
MEDICAL EXAMINER SHARED EXP 
REGISTRAT/ELECTORAL BO SHARED EXP 
CLERK OF COURT SHARED EXP 
JAIL SHARED EXPENSE 

SHARED EXPENSES - CATEGORICAL 
OTHER CATEGORICAL AID - STATE 

SUSSEX COUNTY 

m:NERAL l'UND - REVENUE SUMMARY BI lGJOll SOURCE 

7/01/2019 - 7/31/2019 
BUDGET APPR. CURRENT 
AMOUNT 

10,000.00 
3,400.00 

186,165.00 

41,000.00 
10,500.00 

51,500.00 
93,438.00 

203,920.00 

297,358.00 

49,710.00 

49,710.00 

361,500.00 

361,500.00 

248,000.00 
1,389,000.00 

76,700.00 
81,500.00 

37,706.00 
206,000.00 
105,000.00 

2,143,906.00 
1,428,178.00 

AMOUNT 

10,000.00 
3,400.00 

186,165.00 

41,000.00 
12,750.00 

53,750.00 
93,438.00 

203,920.00 

297,358.00 

49,710.00 

49,710.00 

361,500.00 

361,500.00 

248,000.00 
1,389,000.00 

76,700.00 
81,500.00 

37,706.00 
206,000.00 
105,000.00 

2,143,906.00 
1,428,178.00 

AMOUNT 

464.20 

14,884.41 

4,441.98 

4,441.98 
7,786.49 

14,989.43 

22,775.92 

116,986.38 

116,986.38 

25,412.68 
112,463.64 

6,469.36 
7,818.82 

16,110.40 

168,274.90 
43,135.14 

OTHER CATEGORICAL AID - STATE 1,428,178.00 1,428,178.00 43,135.14 
30000 REVENUE FROM THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT 
32000 NON-CATEGORICAL AID - FEDERAL 
32010 CDBG COMMUNITY DEV. BLOCK GRANT 
32020 SOCIAL SECURITY ADM. BOUNTY - JAIL 

NON-CATEGORICAL AID - FEDERAL 

3,150.00 

3,150.00 

Y-T-D
AMOUNT 

464.20 

14,884.41 

4,441.98 

4,441.98 
7,786.49 

14,989.43 

22,775.92 

116,986.38 

116,986.38 

25,412.68 
112,463.64 

6,469.36 
7,818.82 

16,110.40 

168,274.90 
43,135.14 

43,135.14 

3,150.00 

3,150.00 

PAGE I 11 

' 

BALANCE UNCOLLECTED 

10,000.00 
2,935.80 

171,280.59 

41,000.00 
8,308.02 

49,308.02 
85,651.51 

188,930.57 

274,582.08 

49,710.00 

49,710.00 

244,513.62 

244,513.62 

222,587.32 
1,276,536.36 

70,230.64 
73,681. lB 

37,706.00 
189,889.60 
105,000.00 

1,975,631.10 
1,385,042.86 

1,385,042.86 

100.00 
86.34 

92.00 

100.00 
65.16 

91. 73
91.66
92.64

92.34 

100. 00

100.00 

67.63 

67. 63

89.75 
91.90 
91.56 
90.40 

100. 00 
92 .17 

100.00 

92 .15 
96.97 

96.97 

3,150.00- 100.00-

3,150.00- 100.00-

Departmental Reports - 13



07/31/2019 DESTE J. COX, TREASURER SUSSEX COUNTY PAGE n 12 

FUND 11-foo aZVBN6i GBNBRAI. l'UND - �. SUMMARY BY tmJOR SOURCE 

7/01/2019 - 7/31/2019 
BUDGET APPR. CURRENT Y-T-D ' 

ACCTH DESCRIPTION AMOUNT AMOUNT AMOUNT AMOUNT BALANCE UNCOLLECTED 
----------- ------ ------ _._.._.._ ...... ------ ------- ---------

33000 CATEGORICAL AID - FED 
33030 Emergency Ser. Grant - Res 
40000 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
41000 NON-REVENUE RECEIPTS 
41040 PROCEEDS FROM INDEBTNESS 
41050 TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS 
41060 DESIGNATED USE OF FUND BALANCES 188,524.00 189,324.00 189,324.00 100.00 

NON-REVENUE RECEIPTS 188,524.00 189;324.00 189,324.00 100.00 

--FUND TOTAL-- 23,332;919.00 23,335,969.00 1,675,623.IB 1,675,623.18 21,660,345.82 92,81 

Departmental Reports - 14



07/31/2019 DEST£ J. COX, TRP.ASURER SUSSEX COU�lTY 

FUND 1-100 EXP2NDITURE GENERAL PUHD - EXP£NDI'1'URE SUMlGRY BY DEPARTHEtlTS 

7/01/2019 - 7/31/2019 
BUDGET APPR. CURRENT 

ACCTI DESCRIPTION AMOUNT AMOUNT AMOUNT 
----------- ------ ------ -----

999 EXPENDITURES - GENERAL FUND 

11100-111 BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 165,920.00 165,920.00 12,523.00 

--MAJOR TOTAL-- 165,920.00 165,920.00 12,523.08 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 165,920.00 165,920.00 12,523.08 

21100-211 ADMINISTRATOR 869,406.00 869,406.00 67,584.18 

--MAJOR TOTAL-- 869,406.00 869,406.00 67,584.18 

21200-221 BUILDING & GROUNDS 545,528.00 545,528.00 68,662.55 
--MAJOR TOTAL-- 545,528.00 545,528.00 68,662.55 

21300-231 HOUSING 126,002.00 126,002.00 12,306.13 

--MAJOR TOTAL-- 126,002.00 126,002.00 12,306.13 

21400-241 PLANNING 216,589.00 216,589.00 14,711.45 

21400-242 BUILDING INSPECTIONS 247,120.00 247,120.00 15,179.33 

21400-243 ZONING 1,875.00 1,875.00 

--MAJOR TOTAL-- 465,584.00 465,584.00 29,890.78 

21500-251 FIRE, RESCUE 159,800.00 159,800.00 8,419.75 

21500-252 AMBULANCE & RESCUE 1,149,100.00 1,149,100.00 13,834.68 

21500-253 EMERGENCY SERVICES 222,911.00 222,911.00 77,054.23 

21500-255 FOREST FIRE EXTINCTION 24,000.00 24,000.00 
-MAJOR TOTAL-- 1,555,811.00 1,555,811.00 99,308.66 

21600-261 ANIMAL CONTROL 252,959.00 252,959.00 19,642.15 

21600-262 ENVIRONMENTAL INSPECTIONS 225,000.00 225,000.00 29,994.63 

21600-263 GENERAL WORKS 92,000.00 92,000.00 3,238.48 

21600-264 CONVENlENCE CENTERS 410,366.00 410,366.00 8,132.51 

21600-266 REFUSE DISPOSAL 122,350.00 122,350.00 3,178.67 
--MAJOR TOTAL-- 1,102,675.00 1,102,675.00 64,186.44 

21700-271 IT AND CENTRAL ACCOUNTING AS400 38,550.00 38,550.00 17,532.60 
--MAJOR TOTAL-- 38,550.00 38,550.00 17,532.60 

ADMINISTRATOR 4,703,556.00 4,703,556.00 359,471.34 

22100-281 COUNTY ATTORNEY 130,000.00 130,000.00 23,301.03 

--MAJOR TOTAL-- 130,000.00 130,000.00 23,301.0J 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 130,000.00 130,000.00 23,301.03 
23100-291 REGISTRAR/BOARD OF ELECTIONS 205,845.00 205,845.00 12,457.03 

--MAJOR TOTAL-- 205,845.00 205,845.00 12,457.03 

REGISTRAR/BOARD OF ELECTIONS 205,845.00 205,845.00 12,457.03 

Y-T-D ENCUMBRANCE 
AMOUNT AMOUNT 
------ ------

12,523.08 
12,523.08 

12,523.08 
67,584.18 
67,504.18 
68,662.55 
68,662.55 
12,306.13 
12,306.13 
14,711.45 

15,179.33 

29,890.78 
8,419.75 

13,834.68 
77,054.23 

99,308.66 

19,642.15 
29,994.63 

3,238.48 
8,132.51 
3,170.67 

64,186.44 

17,532.60 
17,532.60 

359,471.34 
23,301.03 

23,301.03 

23,301.03 
12,457.03 
12,457.03 

12,457.03 

PAGE ff 13 

UNENCUMBERED ' 

BALANCE REMAINING 
-- --- -

153,396.92 
153,396.92 

153,396.92 
801,821.82 
901,821.82 
476,865.45 
476,865.45 
113,695.87 
113,695.87 
201,877.55 

231,940.67 

1,875.00 
435,693.22 
151,380.25 

1,135,265.32 
145,856.77 
24,000.00 

1,456,502.34 

233,316.85 
195,005.37 

88,761.52 
402,233.49 
119,171.33 

1,038,488.56 
21,017.40 
21,017.40 

4,344,084.66 
106,698.97 
106,698.97 

106,698.97 
193,387.97 
193,387.97 

193,387.97 

92 .45 
92.45 

92. 45
92.22
92.22
87.41
87. 41
90.23
90.23
93.20

93.85
100.00 

93.57 
94.73 
98.79 
65.43 

100.00 
93.61 

92.23 
86.66 

96.47 
98.01 
97.40 
94 .17 
54.51 
54,51 

92.35 
82.07 
82.07 

82.07 
93.94 
93.94 

93.94 

Departmental Reports - 15



07/31/2019 DESTE J. COX, TREASURER 
l!'UND-1=100,l'.lU'KNDXrURB 

A.CCTI DESCRIPTION 

31100-311 COMMISSIONER OF REVENUE 
--MAJOR TOTAL--

COMMISSIONER OF REVENUE 
41100-411 TREASURER 
41100-412 LICENSE BUREAU 

--MAJOR TOTAL--

TREASURER 
51100-511 COURTROOM SECURITY 
51100-512 FIELD OPERATIONS 
51100-513 SPOT OPERATIONS 
51100-514 SELECTIVE ENFORCEMENT 
51100-515 WAKEFIELD OPERATIONS 
51100-516 E911 
51100-517 SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICERS 

--MAJOR TOTAL--
51500-551 CONFINEMENT OF INMATES 

--MAJOR TOTAL--

SHERIF�'S DEPARTMENT 
61100-611 CIRCUIT COURT 
61100-612 GENERAL DISTRICT COURT 
61100-613 SPECIAL MAGISTRATES 
61100-614 JUV, DOM RELATIONS COURT 

--MAJOR TOTAL--

CIRCUIT COURT 
62100-621 CLERK OF COURTS 

--MAJOR TOTAL--

CLERK OF COURTS 
63100-631 COMMONWEALTH'S ATTORNEY 
63100-632 VICTIM/WITNESS PROGRAM 

--MAJOR TOTAL--

COMMONWEALTH'S ATTORNEY 
--MAJOR TOTAL--

81000 CONTRIBUTIONS TO OUTSIDE AGENCIES 
81100-801 Crater Health District 

SUSSEX COUNTY 
�RAL-FUND - EXPENDXTURE � BY DEP.IU\"nGNT9 

7/01/2019 - 7/31/2019 
BUDGET APPR. CURRENT 
AMOUNT AMOUNT AMOUNT 

264,862 .oo

264,862.00 

264,862.00 
363,557.00 

52,450.00 
416,007.00 

416,007.00 
224,871.00 

1,785,940.00 
59,973.00 

218,800.00 
56,954.00 

198,770.00 
122,771.00 

2,668,079.00 
1,768,337.00 
1,768,337.00 

4,436,416.00 
38,607.00 
44,308.00 

8,400.00 
12,262.00 

103,577.00 

103,577.00 
390,821.00 
390,821.00 

390,821.00 
534,394.00 
107,366.00 
641,760.00 

641,760.00 

198,317.00 

264,862.00 
264,862.00 

264,862.00 
363,557.00 

52,450.00 
416,007.00 

416,007.00 
224,871.00 

1,788,990.00 
59,973.00 

218,800.00 
56,954.00 

198,770.00 
122,771.00 

2,671,129.00 
1,768,337.00 
1,768,337.00 

4,439,466.00 
38,607.00 
44,308.00 

8,400.00 
12,262.00 

103,577,00 

103,577.00 
390,821.00 
390,821.00 

390,821.00 
534,394.00 
107,366.00 
641,760.00 

641,760.00 

198,311.00 

19,014.88 
19,014.88 

19,014.88 
26,378.04 
3,400.00 

29,778.04 

29,778.04 
14,836.82 

138,144.80 
8,874.36 

14,307.78 
4,499.46 

8,619.67 
10,297.95 

199,580.84 
157,095.18 
157,095.18 

356,676.02 
3,543.35 
2,407.46 

723.65 

6,674.46 

6,674.46 
32,589.51 
32,589.51 

32,589.51 
38,097.72 

8,245.25 
46,342.97 

46,342.97 

Y-T-D
AMOUNT

19,014,88 
19,014.88 

19,014.88 
26,378.04 

3,400.00 
29,778.04 

29,778.04 
14,836.82 

138,144.80 
8,874.36 

14,307.78 
4,499.46 

8,619.67 
10,297.95 

199,580.84 
157,095.18 
157,095.18 

356,676.02 
3,543.35 
2,407.46 

723.65 

6,674.46 

6,674.46 
32,589.51 
32,589.51 

32,589.51 
38,097.72 
8,245.25 

46,342.97 

46,342.97 

ENCUMBRANCE 
AMOUNT 

PAGE i 14 

UNENCUMBERED ' 
BALANCE REMAINING 

245,847.12 
245,847.12 

245,841.12 
337,178.96 
49,050.00 

386,228.96 

386,228.96 
210,034.18 

1,650,845.20 
51,098.64 

204,492.22 
52,454.54 

190,150.33 
112,473.05 

2,411,548.16 
1,611,241.82 
l, 611,241.82 

4,082,789.98 
35,063.65 
41,900.54 

7,676.35 
12,262.00 
96,902.54 

96,902.54 
358,231.49 
358,231.49 

358,231.49 
496,296.28 

99,120.75 
595,417.03 

595,417.03 

92.82 
92.82 

92.82 
92. 74
93.51
92. 84

92.84 
93.40 
92 .27 
85.20 
93.46 
92.09 
95.66 
91. 61 
92.52 
91.11 
91.11 

91. 96
90.82
94.56
91.38

100.00 
93.55 

93,55 
91.66 
91. 66

91. 66
92.87
92.32
92.77

92. 77 

198,317.0C 100.00 

Departmental Reports - 16



SUSSEX COUNTY 01/3l/2019 DEST£ J. COX, TREASURER 
!!l1Nt> ff-100 EJCl'BND:t.'l?tJRE ;.EmRM Ji'l1NO - EKPENDl'l'URE SUMMARY sr DBP;Ut'l'MEtl'llS 

ACCTli DESCRieTION 

81100-803 Old Dominion Emerg. Medical Serv. 
81100-805 District 19 Community Services Bd 

--MAJOR TOTAL--
81300-811 Crater Area Aging 
81300-814 The Improvement Assoc 
81300-816 Red Cross 
81300-820 Virginia Legal Aid Society 
81300-822 VA Cooperative Extension 
81300-823 Chowan Basin Soil & Water Conserv. 

--MAJOR TOTAL--
81400-825 Wakefield Foundation 
81400-826 Blackwater/Regional Library 
Bl400-821 HBC Museum 

--MAJOR TOTAL--
81500-831 John Tyler Communicty College 
81500-832 Virginia State University 
81500-833 Southside Virginia Education Center 
81500-834 Richard Bland College Foundation 

--MAJOR TOTAL--
81600-843 Senior Citi�ens, Eastern 
81600-844 Southeast 4-H Center 
81600-841 Recreation - Unallocated Acct. 
81600-848 Jessica Ann Moore Foundation 

--MAJOR TOTAL--
81800-860 Crater Planning District Commission 
81800-862 Virginia's Gateway Region 
81800-863 Crater Youth Care Commission 
81800-869 Crater Small Bus Dev Cent Longwod U 

93100 
93200 

95000 

99900 

--MAJOR TOTAL--

CONTRIBUTIONS TO OUTSIDE AGENCIES 
TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 
EXP ACCOUNT NON DEPARTMENT 

TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 
DEBT SERVICE 

DEBT SERVICE 
NON DEPARTMENTAL 

1/01/2019 - 1/31/2019 
BUDGET 
AMOUNT 

1,000.00 
11,811.00 

211,128.00 
1,06C.OO 

64,000.00 
2,000.00 
1,227.00 

56,032.00 
1,264.00 

131,583.00 
11,500.00 

116,698 .oo

3,500.00 
191,698.00 

995.00 
1,000.00 
1,000.00 
1,500.00 
4,495.00 

10,000.00 
10,000.00 
15,000.00 
5,000.00 

40,000.00 
9,190.00 

42,050.00 
112,061.00 

3,000.00 
166,901.00 

811,805.00 
9,011,114.00 

152,643.00 

9,163,811.00 
1,892,533.00 

1,892,533.00 
6,000.00 

APPR. 
AMOUNT 

1,000.00 
11,811.00 

271,128.00 
7,060.00 

64,000.00 
2,000.00 
1,221.00 

56,032.00 
1,264.00 

137,583.00 
11,500.00 

176,698.00 
3,500.00 

191,698.00 
995.00 

1,000.00 
1,000.00 
1,500.00 
4,495.00 

10,000.00 
10,000.00 
15,000.00 

5,000.00 
40,000.00 

9,190.00 
42,050.00 

112,061.00 
3,000.00 

166,901.00 

811,805.00 
11,011,114.00 

152,643.00 

11,163,817.00 
1,892,533.00 

1,892,533.00 
6,000.00 

CURRENT 
AMOUNT 

1,000.00 
35,905.50 
36,905.50 

64,000.00 

10,471.35 

14,471.35 

44,114.50 

3,500.00 
47,614.50 

1,000.00 
1,000.00 

2,000.00 

5,000.00 
5,000.00 
4,895.00 

4,895.00 

110,952.35 
2,013,666.11 

2,013,666.11 
682,648.75 

682,648.15 
131.03-

NON DEPARTMENTAL 
--FUND TOTAL--

6,000.00 
23,332,919.00 

6,000.00 
25,335,969.00 

137.03-
3, 165,959.14 

Y-T-0
AMOUNT 

1,000.00 
35,905.50 
36,905.50 

64,000.00 

10,411.35 

14,471.35 

44,174.50 
3,500.00 

47,674. so

1,000.00 
1,000.00 

2,000.00 

5,000.00 
5,000.00 
4,895.00 

4,895.00 

110,952.35 
2,013,666.11 

2,013,666.71 
682,648.15 

682,648.15 
137.03-

137.0)-
3,165,959.14 

ENCUMBRANCE 
AMOUNT 

PAGE i 15 

UNENCUMBERED \ 
BALANCE REMAINING 

35,905.50 
234,222.50 

1,060.0C 

2,000.00 
1,221.00 

45,554.65 
1,264.00 

63,105.65 
11,500.00 

132,523.50 

144,023.50 
995.00 

1,500.00 
2,495.00 

10,000.00 
10,000.00 
15,000.00 

35,000.00 
4,895.00 

42,050.00 
112,061.00 

3,000.00 
162,006.00 

640,852.65 
8,997,507.29 

152,643.00 

9,150,150.29 
1,209,884.25 

1,209,884.25 
6,131.03 

6,137.0.: 
21,510,009.86 

50.00 
86.38 

100.00 

100.00 
100.00 

81. 30 
100.00 

45.86 

100.00 
15.00 

15.13 
100.00 

100.00 
55.50 

100.00 
100.00 
100.00 

87.50 
50.00 

100.00 
100.00 
100.00 

91.06 

78.94 
81. 71

100.00

Bl. 96 
63.92 

63. 92
102.28 

102.28 
85.13 

Departmental Reports - 17



DESTE J. COX , TREASURER SUSSEX COUNT'l: PAGE 1116 
P,PITI\L IH!'!Q..VEHEN'I! li'UND - DETAIL� REVENUE Sl"'!".MY 

i /01/2019 - i/31/2019 
FUND i-302 REVENUE - CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 
MAJOR BUDGET APPR. CURRENT Y'-T-D l 

ACCTi DESCRIPTION AMOUNT AMOUNT AMOUNT AMOUNT BALANCE REMAIN. 
-----------

------ ------ --··---- ------ -------

999 REVENUE • CAPITAL PROJECT FOND 
10000 REVENUE FROM LOCAL SOURCES 
15000 REVENUE FROM USE OF MONEY/PROPERTY 
15010 REVENUE FROM USE OF MONEY 
16000 CHARGES FOR SERVICES 
16010 COURT COSTS 
19030 COURT COSTS 
20000 REVENUE FROM THE COMMONWEALTH 
24000 CATEGORICAL AID - STATE 
24040 CATEGORICAL AID - OTHER 
40000 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
41000 NON-REVENUE RECEIPTS 
41040 PROCEEDS FROM INDEBTNESS 
41050 FOND TRANSFERS 

0100 Transfer from General Fund 503,223.00 503,223.00 .00 .oo 503,223.00 100.00 

FOND TRANSFERS 503,223.00 503,223.00 .00 .00 503,223.00 100.00 
----·-------·-- ------------- ------ ----- ... -------------

-------------

NON-REVENUE RECEIPTS 503,223.00 503,223.00 .00 .oo 503,223.00 100.00 

--FOND TOTAL·- 503,223.00 503,223.00 .00 .00 503,223.00 100 .. 00 

Departmental Reports - 18



06/30/2019 *GL060* OES'l'E J. COX, TREASURER 

l"UND ft-3�2 zXP�lOL'l'URES CAPI�AL PROc1E�"l: FO 

FUND i-302 EXPENDITURES • CAPITAL PROJECT FD 
HAJOR 

ACCTff 

999 
90000 
91000 
91100 
91200 
91201 

1257 

91202 
91203 
91300 

0001 
0011 
0015 

91500 

93100 
94000 
94000-120 

94100 
94250 
94300 
94400 

8212 
8219 

94500 
0001 

94700 
94800 
94900 

95300 
96000 

DESCRIPTION 

EXPENDITURES - CAPITAL PROJECT FD 
CAPITAL PROJECTS 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
NEW CONSTRUCTION, ADO. OR RE 
T�CHNOLOGY INFRASTRUTORE 
REPLACE E911 EQUIPMENT 
Replace CAO System 

REPLACE E911 EQUIPMENT 
Replace AS400 Server 
Replace Voting Machines

VEHICLES & OTHER RELATED EQUIP. 
Fire Truck 
Sheriff Patrol Vehicle 
Building Inspections - Vehicle 

VEHICLES & OTHER RELATED EQUIP. 
MISCELLANEOUS PROJECTS 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
TRANSFERS TO OTHER FONDS 
CAPITAL PROJECTS 
CAPITAL PROJECTS 

·-SOB TOTAL-
IJ\NDFILL CLOSURE 
COMMUNICATIONS 
EHERG REPAIR JARRATT SENIOR CTR 
RENOVATION OF COUNTY BLDGS 
Renov/Repair Bldg/Phone Sys. Etc. 
Judicial Complex HVAC-Phase 2 

RENOVATION OF COUNTY BLDGS 
SCHOOL PROJECTS 
Lease Purchase - School Busses 

SCHOOL PROJECTS 
�NIMAL POUND BLDG & COMPLEX 
WASTE SITE PURCHASE 
COMMONWEALTH ATTNY OFFICE BLOG 

CAPITAL PROJECTS 
STONY CREEK SCHOOL SITE 
PUBLIC PARK DEVELOPEHENT 

--FUND TOTAL--

SUSSEX COUNTY 
iXPENDI�UR2 S�ftr 

7/01/2019 - 7/31/2019 

BUDGET 
AMOUNT 

80,000.00 
80,000.00 

150,000.00 
110,785.00 
117,927.00 
378,112.00 

458,712 .oo

AE>PR. 
AMOUNT 

80,000.00 
80,000.00 

150,000.00 
110,785.00 
117,927.00 
378,712.00 

458,712.00 

Jarratt Senior Center 
.oo .00 

1,548.00 
15,963.00 
17,511.00 

27,000.00 
27,000.00 

44,511.00 

503,223.00 

1,548.00 
15,963.00 
17,511.00 

27,000.00 
27,000.00 

44,511.00 

503,223.00 

CURRENT 
AMOUNT 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.oc 

.00 

.oo 

.00 

. 00 
.00 

.00 

.oo 

.00 

. 00 

Y-T-0
AMOUNT 

.00 

.oo 

.00 

.00 
.00 
.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 
.00 

.00 

.00 

PAGE I 17 

ENCUMBRANCE 
AMOUNT 

.00 

.oo 

.00 

.oc 

.00 
.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 
.00 
.00 

.00 
.00 

.00 

.OD 

UNENCUMBERED 
BALANCE 

80,000.00 
80,000.00 

150,000.00 
110,785.00 
117,927.00 
378,712.00 

I 
REMAIN. 

100.00 
100.00 

100.00 
lOC.00 
100.00 
100.00 

458,712.00 100.00 

.oo .00 

1,548.00 
15,963.00 
17,511.00 

27,000.00 
27,000.00 

100.00 
100.00 
100.00 

100.00 
100.00 

44,511.00 100.00 

503,223.00 100.00 

Departmental Reports - 19



DATE FOR RATE/TON 
REC'D MONTH 0.00 

7/8/2019 May 2019 $4 75 
7/25/2019 June 2019 $4 75 
8125/2019 July 2019 $4,75 
9/25/2019 Aug 2019 $4.75 

10/25/2019 Sept 2019 $4.75 
11/25/2019 Oct 2019 $4.75 
12/25/2019 Nov 2019 $4.75 

1/25/2020 Dec 2019 $4.75 
2/25/2020 Jan 2020 $4.75 
3/25/2020 Feb 2020 $4.75 
4/25/2020 Mar 2020 $4.75 
5/25/2020 Apr 2020 $4.75 
6/25/2020 May 2020 $4.75 

FYE20 LANDFILL TIPPING FEES 

NET/TON 
0.00 

112,949.28 
102,009.50 

DESTEJ.COX,TREASURER 

CO USED TOTAL CONSENT i=ErCONSENT FEE 
TONS REV Bud 5.3 mH ESCROW FD BRAMBLES CR 

1,473.49 $536,509 08 
1,622.26 $484,545 13 

$0 00 
$0 00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

BASE 
RENT 

Page /}18 

Ave need 
& Bal ofJ3JJ� 
$5,700 000 00 Budgeled 

$475,000.00 
$430.290. 91 
$425,358.71 

AC TOT FYE 2020 Bud $5
1
700,000 214,956.78 3,095.75 11:1 n?1 n'-A ?1 nnn nnn "', 1uL ,,u.....-,.L • u.vu .,,uu O,QO •$4,678,945,BQ 

GTOTAL PROJ 214,958.78 3,09_5.75 1,021,054.21 4
1
768u264.00 �300.00 

Current Conditions of Agreement and CUP· Per the 5th Amendment to Host Agreement daled May 25, 2017 

1 Beginning 411117, rate Increases lrcm $4,03lton lo 4.53/!on. Summer 2018. Raia increases from S4.53/ton to 4 75/ton on the aartiar of 
(1) first delivery of trash by ratlcar from NY contrad or (2) July 1, 2018. 

2. Adjustment to CPI on 10th anniversary of amendment (2028), not to exceed $5,00lton. but rate shall not be reduced if CPI is less than S4 75. 
3. Minimum Monthly Payments will be 1112th of 50% of previous calendar year's tipping fees, but not below S2,000,000/year 

5.480.000.10 ======

4. Beginning June 1, 2018, the County wi1 be responsible for dally operations, acceptance of waste, & routine maintenance of Remote Convenience Canters. 
5. Lump Sum pmt of $150,000 to erect necessaiy improvements lo man & manage operations of Remote Convenience Centers. (Received 8123117) 
4 Inspection & Operations Fee pa:d by Waste Management lo County for 2017 • $250.000, Increasing to $375 000 January 1 2018. and adjusted lo CPI every 5 years thereafter 

based on the CPI for each of the five years The fee shell not be reduced based on CPI adjustment and sha I not exceed S425 ODO 

5 Landfill Current Lease 1,315 Acres 
6 Escrow Agreement: Escrow account/bond/latter $5,000lacres With a max. of S1 ,000,000 with mtarast earning to a gross max. of $2,000,000. 

Amendment to Escrow Agreement allows for additions deposits of SS,000/ecres over 200 acres of landfill used with no 
maximum accumulation 

7 Current County Capacity eoo.ooo tons 
Note· Sup. Rant ended 12102 

Departmental Reports - 20



SUSSEX COUNTY Page 1119 

TEN YEAR LANDFILL REVENUE SUMMARY 

DESTE 1. CDX, TREASURER 

FY17-1 9 

MO. RECD FYE2010 FYE2011 FYE2012 FYE2013 FYE2014 FYE2015 FYE2016 FYE2017 FYE2018 FYE2019 FYE2020 3Yr Ave. 

July 558,173 599,541 629,481 471,147 514,503 480,468 501 253 436 313 478,992 513,862 484,545 476,389 

August 577,545 509,002 597,953 445,265 499,297 454,641 429 103 401 017 433,259 527 100 453,792 

September 475,125 503,372 592,764 479,789 452,803 350,607 324,276 424 719 492,106 671,682 529,502 

October 500,954 545,971 514,347 408,069 401,828 399,043 308,871 367,365 417,047 602,719 462,377 

November 481,954 567,260 476,176 430,052 405,430 382,450 334,371 441,841 459 048 771 203 557,364 

December 455,412 541,780 415,797 534,057 322,278 335,460 339,298 353 495 475,139 613 451 480,695 

January 449,831 479,350 441,254 488,614 343,461 389,239 390,132 343,788 493,320 689 112 508,740 

February 437,417 484,712 432,349 542,928 377,628 403,443 342.709 375,933 458,704 747 024 527,220 

March 419,355 472,753 404,675 403,559 317,919 290,654 341,827 314 512 490,123 667 723 490,786 

April 493,043 586,694 403,647 426,530 338,922 459,688 389.559 393,938 458,270 679 997 510,735 

May 507,140 572,823 441,761 480,225 390,339 544,490 360,063 383,640 373,837 556 306 437,927 

June 571,595 578,670 458,093 473,070 399,471 508,752 400,137 467,027 432,824 536 509 478,787 

Totals 5,927,545 6,441,927 5,808,297 5,583,306 4,763,879 4,998,935 4,461,599 4,703 588 5,462,669 7 576,689 484,545 4,875,952 

Current Year Budget amot 5 300,000 

Departmental Reports - 21



Departmental Reports - 22



SUSSEX COUNTY 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1- 1

2- 2

3- 3
4- 8
9- 9

10-11

12-14

15-17
18-18

19-21

22-22

23-23

24-24

25-25

SUBMITIED BY DESTE J. COX, TREASURER 

August 31, 2019 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

MEMO TO BOARD - DMV SELECT 

MEMO TO BOARD-TAX RELIEF FOR ELDERLY 

BANK RECONCILATION 
999 TREAS. ACCT - 4 YR. COMP. BAL SHEET 
GEN FUND (100) BALANCE SHEET 

REVENUE/EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUND 

GEN FUND (100) REVENUE SUMMARY BY MAJOR 
GEN FUND (100) EXPENDITURE SUMMARY BY DEPT 

CIF (302) BALANCE SHEET 

CIF (302) DETAIL REVENUE/EXPENSE SUMMARY 

BALANCE FYE19 LOCAL APPR. TO SCHOOLS 
LANDFILL REVENUE SUMMARY -10 YR REPORT 

LANDFILL TIPPING FEES 

JULY 2019 LANDFILL TONNAGE REPORT 

Departmental Reports - 23



Departmental Reports - 24



DESTE JARRATT COX 
TREASURER 

15074 COURTHOUSE ROAD 

SUSSEX COUNTY 
TREASURERS OFFICE 

PO BOX 1399 

SUSSEX, VA 23 884 

To: Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

From: Oeste J. Cox, Treasurer 

Date: September 10, 2019 

RE: OMV Select Office 

Phone (434) 246-1087 

Fax (804) 246-2347 

In response to a request from Supervisor Fly, I reached out to Barry Browning, OMV 
Deputy Director, regarding the possibility of placing a OMV Select office at the Sussex County 
Treasurer's Office. A OMV Select would allow citizens to do title registrations, renew tags, and 
surrender tags at the Treasurer's office in lieu of traveling to a full service OMV such as 
Petersburg, Emporia, or Courtland. OMV Select offices cannot renew Driver's Licenses, road 
test for licenses, or handle transactions for citizens that owe fines to OMV. 

If we were selected to house a OMV Select, OMV provides the license plates, decals, 
forms, and paper free of charge to our office. We would be responsible for purchasing one 
duplex laser printer that runs from $900 to $1,100. The Treasurer's Office would be paid 4.5% 
of every dollar received for the Commonwealth up to $500,000 in each Fiscal Year, and 5% of 
every dollar over $500,000. According to Mr. Browning, by Code, the county can request 20% 
of that 4.5% that is paid to the Treasurer's Office. I would anticipate needing at least one 
additional full time employee, and possibly additional part-time funds. 

At this time, OMV does not see a need for a OMV Select at our office. Their goals are to 
limit citizens' drive time to less than 30 minutes to any OMV (full service or Select) for service. 
Mr. Browning noted that Petersburg and Emporia both fall within that 30 minute window 
(according to Google maps: Emporia = 26 mins. Petersburg= 25 mins.). 

Another consideration is wait times at OMV locations nearest us. Mr. Browning stated 
OMV is not experiencing long wait times at these locations, so they are not currently targeting 
our area for a OMV Select Office. 

I can certainly ask OMV for a more thorough review, and will gladly do so. I would ask 
that the Board provide a letter or resolution in support of a OMV Select Office. I will also be 
reaching out to other entities in the community for support. 

Departmental Reports - 25



Ii 

!-

- II

• 

i, ii 

:=Ii' ii -

• 

-2*.
r 

--------;; ---� -

. . 
•• 

() 

• 

,:..J 

• 

.. 

,-

\ 

r 

• 

... i 

.. . I 

::I: I: 

ti JS Ila;;; •

Departmental Reports - 26



SUSSEX COUNTY 
DESTE JARRATT COX 

TREASURER 
15074 COURTHOUSE ROAD 

TREASURERS OFFICE 
PO BOX 1399 

SUSSEX, VA 23884 

To: Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

From: Deste J. Cox, Treasurer 

Date: September IO, 2019 

RE: Tax Relief for the Elderly 

Phone (434) 246-1087 

Fax (804) 246-2347 

Supervisor Fly asked that I provided some information on Tax Relief for the Elderly for 
real estate. Any county, city or town may, by local ordinance, enact a Tax Relief for the Elderly, 
according to 58.1-3210 of the Code of Virginia. The real estate must be owned by, and be 
occupied as the sole dwelling of someone at least 65 years of age. Additional limitations can be 
added to the local ordinance, such as an income cap, net worth cap, and amount of qualifying 
acreage that the residence is located on. Many localities also include persons with disabilities in 
this Tax Relief Ordinance. This would also be at the Board's discretion. 

Once a local ordinance is in place, each person seeking Tax Relief must submit an annual 
application to the Commissioner of Revenue. The Commissioner then determines if that 
applicant qualifies according to the stipulations of the ordinance. This would create additional 
workload on the Commissioner and may require additional staffing. 

According to census population estimates from July 1, 2018, Sussex County's total 
estimated population is 11,237 and 17.8% of that consists of persons 65 years and older. This is 
approximately 2,000 people. There is no information available that would determine how many 
of those 2,000 people own homes that they live in. If the Board would like more detailed 
information, some type of process, such as a survey to all real estate owners, would need to be 
completed. 

It is important to note that all of the localities contiguous to Sussex County do currently 
have some form of Tax Relief for the Elderly/Disabled in place. 

Departmental Reports - 27



Departmental Reports - 28



TREASURER'S OFFICE 
DESTE.!ARRA7TCOX 

TREASURER 

SUSSEX COUNTY 

15074 COURTHOUSE ROAD 

P.O. BOX /399 

SUSSEX. VA. 23884 

Phone (434)246-/086 or 

(434)246-/087

Fax (434)146-2347 

Statement of money in the banks to the credit of Sussex County as shown by the Treasurer's books 
at the close of business August 31, 2019 

BB&T #201-SUSSEX, VA 
Bank Balance - Money Market Checking1------
Plus Cr Card Deposits in Transit - in office, not in bank-
Less Outstanding Checks not cleared bank 
Less Deposits in Transit - in bank, not in office,-----

BSV #301-STONY CREEK, VA 
Checking Balance 

$3,190,151.40 
198.37 

(1,292,532.42) 

$3,092,208.91 
$48.77 
$15.00 

$1,897,817.35 

Sweep Account:---------------
Plus Bank Svc Chg - in office, not in bank-JE.----
Plus Online Credit Cd Pmts in Transit -in office, not in bank 
Less Deposits in Transit - in bank, not in office·----- ____ (_47_.7_7�) 3,092,224.91 

S0NA#401-WAVERLY, VA 
Bank Balance---------------
Less Deposits in Transit - in bank, not In office----
lnvestments and CD's.-------------

#30371619 - SONA #451 

$16,533.73 
($0.68) 16,533.05 

$2,247,108.11 

QZAB -05 #701 Investment Balance--------------- 890,680.27 
QZAB -06 #702 Investment Balance--------------- 1,524,568.88 
LGIP INVESTMENT #803 Investment Balance·----------- 2,475,519.38 
VA INV POOL #804 lnvestn Investment Balance----------- 2,082,275.82 

_.....;;;.:..;...;;.;=�c.;;;... 

TOTAL IN BANKS REC W/GL----
Letters or statements from each of the above mentioned 
banks are on file in the Treasurer's Office of 
Sussex County certifying the balance as listed above. 

kbe 

$14,226,727.77 

Rei,ectfully submitted:

Aft;)·b . 

Departmental Reports - 29



08/31/2019 DESTE J. COX, 'l'REASURER SUSSEX COUNTY 

BALANCE SRSl!T - COMPARATIVE PERIODS

2016/07 - 2019/08 
FUND J-99� TREASURER'S At".COU_NTll,BILI_'l'Y .fUNQ 
GL070C 

HAJORI 

000000-0000 

000100-0000 
000100-0101 
000100-0201 
000100-0251 
000100-0252 
000100-0301 
000100-0302 
000100-0351 
000100-0352 
000100-0401 
000100-0451 
000100-0452 
000100-0701 
000100-0702 
000100-0803 
000100-0804 
000100-0805 
000100-0806 
000100-0901 

000300-0000 
000300-0100 
000300-0105 
000300-0110 
000300-0115 
000300-0120 
000300-0121 
000300-0122 
000300-0123 
000300-0124 
000300-0125 
000300-0135 
000300-0140 
000300-0201 
000300-0251 
000300-0252 
000300-0253 
000300-0254 

9/06/2019 
PAGE 2 

DESCRIPTION 
-·------·----

TREASURER'S ACCOUNTABILITY FUND 
TREASURER•s ACCOUNTABILITY FUND 

ASSETS 
Cash in Office - Treasurer 
BB&T - MM Checking 
BB&T - CD's 
BB&T - Repos 
BSV - MM Checking 
BSV - Investment Acct 
BSV - CD's 
BSV - Repos 
SONA BANK (SB) CHECKING 
SONA BANK (SB) CD'S 
SONA BANK tSB} REPOS 
Bank of America QZAB Acct 
Bk of America QZAB 06 Escrow 
LGIP - Investments 
VIP - Investments 
Mentor Snap - VPSA Bond Proceeds 
Va.Snap/PFM-VPSA Int. Acct 
NSF Checks 
ASSETS 

,TOTAL ASSETS 
FUND EQUITY 
�eneral Fund 
VPA Fund 
CSA Fund 
BJA Trust Fund 
IPR Loan Program Fund 
IPR Program Income Fund (11/02) 
Disaster Recovery Relief Fund 
CDBG Housing Program 
Sussex Gardens Proj FD IRevl FD> 
Drug Forfeiture Fund 
Reserve for CP and DS 
Criminal Justice Reserve Fund 
Law Library Fund 
School Fund 
School Food Services Fund 
Summer Food service Fund 
Title and Grant fund 

FY/2017 
Bal. Sheet 

2016/07 
Thru 

2016/08 

.oo 

.oo 

.oo 

.oo 

600.00 
4,124,709.53 

.00 

.00 
34,507.30 

.00 
.00 
.oo 

17,002.67 
2,210,398.24 

.00 
659,833.46 

1.101,659.42 
2,071,254.12 

.00 

.00 

.oo 

.00 
10,225,964.74 
10,225,964.74 

.oo 

2,501,387.43-
� .00 

48,565.52 
.00 
.00 

FY/2018 
Bal. Sheet 

2017/07 
Thru 

2017/08 
----------

.00 

.00 
.00 
.00 

600,00 
4,360,391.58 

.00 

.00 
113,309.13 

.oo 

. 00 
.oo 

57,503.60 
2,216,289.69 

.00 
734,929.72 

1,239,316.78 
2,095,144.94 

.00 

.oo 

.oo 

972.28 
10,818,458.32 
10,818�458.32 

.00 
2,995,779.66-

.00 
18,307,05-

.00 
.00 

44,384.17 36,127.61-
.00 .oo 

53,711.99- 57,480,99-
.00 .00 

11,534.15- 20,990.33-
3,575,305.02- 3,578,423.02-

.oo .00 
27,524.13- 27,864,17-
97,385.54- 229,232.30-
6,593.63- 9,263.63-
5,741.76 4,742.17 

174,064.55- 791,905.62-
SUSSEX COUNTY 

FY/2019 
Bal. Sheet 

2018/07 
Thru 

2018/08 
-----------

. 00 

.00 
.00 
.00 

600,00 
2, 115,900,68 

.oo 

.00 
10,192.86 

.oo 

.00 
,00 

U,541.99 
2,228,143.93 

.00 
811,846.75 

1,380,297,73 
4,658,200.14 

515,167.33 
.00 
,00 

234,00 
11,732,125,41 
11,732,125.41 

.00 

12,848,48 
.oo 

.00 
37,302.20-

.oo 

58,918.99-
.00 

16,188.49-
3,589,722.02-

.00 
28,377.34-

231,812.52-
311.45-

4, 683. 58-
794,147.59-

FY/2020 
Bal. Sheet 

2019/07 
Thru 

2019/08 
----------

.00 

.oo 

.oo 

,00 
1,000.00 

1,897,817.35 
.00 
.00 

3,042,224,91 
50,000.00 

,00 
,00 

16,533.05 
2,247,108.11 

.00 
890,680.27 

1,524,568.88 

2,475,519.38 
2,082,275.82 

.oo 

.00 
1,070.93 

14,228,798.70 
14,228 ,, 798. 7!] 

.oo 

-3-,-1�1-6-., -65�3-. 5 9 �
89,567.82-
48,922.62 

.00 

.00 
34,227.92-

.00 
59,415.99-

.oo 

17,822,59-
5,604,103.02-

.oo 

29,494.56-
.00 

40, 491.87-
8, 796.87-

739,228.24-

PAGE I 4 

Departmental Reports - 30



OB/31/2019 DESTE J. COX, TRZASUIU!:R SUSSEX COUNTY 

BALAHCE SBBBT - CCMPARATI:VB PDJ:ODS 
2016/07 - 2019/08 

FUND 1-999 TREASURER'S ACCOUNTABILITY FUND 
GL070C 

MAJOR!I 

000300-0255 
000300-0256 
000300-0301 
000300-0302 
000300-0303 
000300-0305 
000300-0306 
000300-0307 
000300-0723 
000300-0724 
000300-0725 
000300-0726 
000300-0733 
000300-0135-200 

000400-0000 
000400 0001 
000400-0002 
000400-0011 
000400-0012 
000400-0013 
000400-0014 
000400-0015 
000400-0016 
000400-0021 
000400-0101 
000400-0102 
000400-0103 
000400-0104 
000400-0150 

000401-0000 
000401-0101 
000401-0102 

000500-0000 

000501-0000 
000501-1990 
000501-1991 

9/06/2019 
PAGE 3 

DESCRIPTION 

School Textbook Fund 
Smart Beg.Early Childhood Dev 
School Capital Projects Fund 
Genera�pital Proiects Fund 
Elementary School Capital Proj Fund 
Mega Site - Industrial Park Fund 
Cabin Point - Industrail Park Fund 
Henry - Industrial Park Fund 
Robert Mitchell Scholarship Fund 
Wav/Wak Rotary Scholarship Fund 
RICHARD CLEMENTS MOORE III SCH FUND 
Millard D. Stith Sch. Fund 
Special Welfare Fund 
Restricted Res for Elem Loans 

FUND EQ:!!.!.!I 
TOTAL PRIOR YR FUND BALANCE 

OTHER ACCOUNTS 
Treasurer's Deferred Account 
Cash over and Short 
overpayments 
Prepaid Taxes - PP 
Prepaid Taxes - RE 
Available PTR for Distrib $1.093M 
Escrow Acct. QZAB 2005 
QZAB 2006 Escrow Acct. 
Escrow Acct - Perf. Surety(ESCROWI 
Commonwealth Current Credit Account 
Commonwealth Current Debit Account 
Commonwealth Cur C-DHCD Ln-woodfued 
Escrow Sheriff's Sales ISHSALE) 
Health Insurance Cont. Fund (HINS) 

OTHER ACCOUNTS 
ESCROW ACCTS, RESERVED CIF ACCTS 
Escrow for Fire Dept. Vehicles 
Escrow for Rescue Vehicles 

ESCROW ACCTS. RESERVED CIF ACCTS 
OTHER EQUITY & ESCROW ACCTS 

UNCOLLECTE�AXES - COUNTY 
UNCOLLECTED TAXES - COUNTY 

UNCOLLECTED TAXES - RE 
Real Estate - 1990 
Real Estate - 1991 

FY/2017 
Bal. Sheet 

2016/07 
Thru 

2016/08 
----------

192,635.86-
.00 

197,869.05-
845,991.15-

.00 
44,923.12 

9,723.89 
.oo 

26,449.17-
25,373.86-
28,957.83-
79,141.00-

1,963.97-
.00 

7,781,318.21-
7,781,318.21-

.00 
1,288.68-

27.20-
.00 

12,168.55-
39,184.22-

.00 
659,833.46-

1,101,659.42-
64,235.00-

.00 

.oo 

.00 

.00 

.oo 

1,878,396.53-
.00 

500,000.00-
66,250.00-

566,250.00-
2,444 ,-646. 53-

. oo 

.00 

.00 
.00 
.00 

FY/2018 
Bal. Sheet 

2017/07 
Thru 

2017/08 
------·----

257,044.22-
.00 

197,982.05-
4C�,448.97-

.oo 

33,290.39 
170,822.99 

.oo 

25,051.17-
32,338.86-
29,958.83-
86,496.00-

3,066.63-
.00 

'a,'593,905.56-
8,593,905.56-

.00 
1,344.51-

.68-

.00 
20,053.16-
32,047.91-

.00 
734,929.72-

1,239,316.78-
70,610.00-

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 
.00 

2,098,302.76-
.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 
SUSSEX COUNTY 

FY/2019 
Bal. Sheet 

2018/07 
Thru 

2018/08 
----------

245,332.16-
.00 

198,361.05-
694,004.60. 

.00 
135,135.27 

38,509.76 
113, 991.84-

25,007 .17-
30,996.86-
30,640.83-

102,302.00-
1,444.67-

.00 
9·, -463, 186 .13-
9, 463,186, 13-

.00 

.00 

.11 

.00 
14,669.25-
46,043.66-

.oo 

811,846. 75-
1,380,297. 73-

66,296.50-
.00 
.oo 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 
.00 

FY/2020 
Bal. Sheet 

2019/07 
Thru 

2019/08 
----------

207,851.28-
.00 

202,117.05-
1,�.�1-

.00 
141,535.27 

17,098.88 
137,571.34-

25,216.17-
35,209.86-
32,358.83-

102,557.00-
12,626.52-

.00 
!!_; 673,250. 36-
11, 673,250. 36-

. oo 

.00 
40.89-

.00 
8,548.59-

54,974.71-
.oo 

890,680.27-
1,524,568.88-

76,735.00-
.00 
.oo 

.00 

.00 
.oo 

2,555,548.34-
.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 

2., 555,548. 34...: 
.00 
.oo 

.00 
.00 
.00 

PAGE 15 

Departmental Reports - 31



08/31/2019 DBSTB J. COX, TRBASUIUlR SUSSIIX cotJN'rY PAGE I 6 
BALANClt SDBT - CONPAMTZVI: PJDUODS 

2016/07 - 2019/08 
FUND L-999 TREASURER'S ACCOUNTABILITY FUND 
GL070C 

FY/2017 FY/2018 FY/2019 FY/2020 
Bal. Sheet Bal. Sheet Bal. Sheet Bal. Sheet 

2016/07 2017/07 2018/07 2019/07 
Thru Thru Thru Thru 

MAJORI DESCRIPTION 2016/08 2017/08 2018/08 2019/08 
----------- ----------·--- -·------------ -----..--------- -------------

000501-1992 Real Estate - 1992 .00 ,00 .00 .oo 

000501-1993 Real Estate - 1993 .00 .oo .00 .00 
000501-1994 Real Estate - 1994 .00 .00 .oo .00 
000501-1995 Real Estate - 1995 .oo .oo .oo .oo 

000501-1996 Real Estate - 1996 176.80 .00 .00 .00 
000501-1997 Real Estate - 1997 193.17 143.02 .oo .00 
000501-1998 Real Estate - 1998 256.14 205.14 86.04 .00 
000501-1999 REAL ESTATE - 1999 291.78 240.78 121. 68 121. 68 
000501-2000 Real Estate - 2000 322.80 258.00 168.00 168.00 
000501-2001 Real Estate - 2001 409.80 345.00 168.00 168.00 
000501-2002 Real Estate - 2002 557.70 487.50 182.00 182,00 
000501-2003 Real Estate - 2003 578.50 508.30 182.00 182.00 
000501-2004 REAL ESTATE - 2004 584.35 514.15 187.85 187.85 
000501-2005 Real Estate - 2005 584.35 514.15 187.85 187.85 
000501-2006 Real Estate - 2006 427.68 341.28 161.28 161.28 
000501-2007 Real Estate - 2007 427.68 341.28 161.28 161.28 
000501-2008 REAL ESTATE - 2008 1,206.93 476.91 274.41 264 .55 
000501-2009 RE - 2009 2,030.94 731. 70 529.20 442.26 
000501-2010 Real Estate - 2010 3,474.05 1,509.21 907.62 638.28 
000501-2011 Real Estate - 2011 7,156.19 4,586,20 1,705.71 638.28 
000501-2012 Real Estate - 2012 12,719.00 7,495.39 3,291.21 1,465.52 
000501-2013 Real Estate - 2013 22,539,73 15,328,30 6,524.09 3,538.74 
000501-2014 Real Estate - 2014 43,687.21 26,912.18 14,497.30 7,280.87 
000501-2015 Real Estate - 2015 136,832,06 70,843.72 31,187.33 13,355.38 
000501-2016 Real Estate - 2016 .00 180,619.82 87,655.81 43,983.61 
000501-2017 Real Estate - 2017 .oo .oo 174,636.67 91,936.36 
000501-2018 Real Estate - 2018 .00 ,00 .00 179,719.40 
000501-2019 Real Estate - 2019 .oo .00 .oo .00 
000501-9999 Reserve - Real Estate Taxes 234,456.86- 312,402.03- 322,815.33- 344,783.27-

UNCOLLECTED TAXES - RE .00 .oo .oo .oo 

000502-0000 UNCOLLECTED TAXES - PP .oo .oo .oo .00 
000502-2005 pp - 2005 .oo .oo .00 .oo 

000502-2006 pp - 2006 .00 .00 .oo .00 
000502-2007 pp - 2007 .00 .oo .00 .00 
000502-2008 pp - 2008 .oo .oo .oo .00 
000502-2009 pp - 2009 .00 .00 .oo .oo 

000502-2010 pp - 2010 .oo .oo .00 .oo 

000502-2011 pp - 2011 15,428.87 .oo .oo .00 
000502-2012 pp - 2012 18,910.59 18,006.08 .oo .00 
000502-2013 PP - 2013 14,489.66 12,434.68 10,920.94 .00 
000502-2014 pp - 2014 32,496.19 24,184.66 21,425.29 19,051.28 
000502-2015 PP - 2015 75,032.57 31,178.62 22,261.59 18,605.91 

9/06/2019 SUSSEX COUNTY 
PAGE 4 Departmental Reports - 32



OB/31/2019 DJ!!STE J. COX, TREASURER SUSSEX COUNTY PAGE I 7 

@ALANCI: SHBBT - CQG>llATIVJ!! PBRJ:ODS 

2016/07 - 2019/08 
,FUND 1-999 TREASURER'S ACCOUNTABILITY FUND 

GL070C 
FY/2017 FY/2018 FY/2019 FY/2020 

Bal. Sheet Bal. Sheet Bal. Sheet Bal. Sheet 
2016/07 2017/07 2018 /07 2019/07 

Thru Thru Thru Thru 
MAJORI DESCRIPTION 2016/08 2017/08 2018/08 2019/08 

----------- ------------- ------------- ------------- --------------

000502-2016 pp - 2016 .00 152,392.27 101,232.50 92,716.29 
000502-2017 pp - 2017 .00 .00 96,438.42 36,474.93 
000502-2018 pp - 2018 .00 .00 .oo 76,901.63 
000502-2019 pp - 2019 .00 .00 .00 .00 
000502-9999 Reserve - PP Taxes 156,357.88- 238,196.31- 252,278.74- 243,750.04-

UNCOLLECTED TAXES - PP .00 .00 .00 .00 
000503-0000 UNCOLLECTED TAXES - PSC .00 .00 .00 .oo 

000503-2006 PSC - 2006 .00 .00 .00 .00 
000503-2007 PSC - 2007 .00 .00 .oo .oo 

000503-2008 PSC - 2008 .00 .00 .00 .00 
000503-2009 PSC - 2009 .oo .00 .00 .00 
000503-2010 PSC - 2010 .00 .00 .oo .oo 

000503-2011 PSC - 2011 .oo .00 .00 .00 
000503-2012 PSC - 2012 .00 .oo .00 .00 
000503-2013 PSC - 2013 .00 .00 .00 .00 
000503-2014 PSC - 2014 .oo .00 .00 .00 
000503-2015 PSC - 2015 .00 .00 .00 .oo 

000503-2016 PSC - 2016 .OD .00 .oo .00 
000503-2017 PSC - 2017 .00 .00 .OD .00 
000503-2018 PSC - 2018 .oo .00 .OD .oo 

000503-2019 PSC - 2019 .OD .00 .oo .oo 

000503-9999 Reserve - PSC Taxes .00 .00 .00 .00 
UNCOLLECTED TAXES - PSC .00 .00 .00 .00 

000504-0000 UNCOLLECTED BUISNESS LICENSE .00 .00 .00 .00 
000504-2015 BL - 2015 .00 .oo .00 .00 
000504-2016 BL - 2016 241. 6B- 401. 68- .00 .00 
000504-2017 BL - 2017 .00 30.00- .00 .00 
000504-2019 BL - 2018 .00 .00 32.00- .00 
000504-2019 BL - 2019 .00 .DO .00 .00 
000504-9999 Reserve for Buisness License 241. 68 431.68 32.00 .00 

UNCOLLECTED BUISNESS LICENSE .00 .oo .00 .00 
000520-0000 OMV REGISTRATION WITHHOLDING FEES .00 .00 .00 .00 
000520-0001 OMV Withholding Fees Receivable 11,331.70 1,983.30- .00 50.00-
000520-9999 Reserve for OMV Withholding Fees 11,331. 70- 1,983.30 .00 50.00 

OMV REGISTRATION WITHHOLDING FEES .00 .00 .00 .00 
000521-0000 UNCOLLECTED ADMINISTRATIVE FEES .00 .00 .00 .00 
000521-0001 Administrative Fees Receivable 15,378.62 9,JlB.36- .00 .00 
000521-9999 Reserve for Administrative Fees 15,378.62- 9,318.36 .00 .00 

UNCOLLECTED ADMINISTRATIVE FEES .00 .00 .00 .00 
.00 .00 .00 .00 

000600-0000 UNCOLLECTED TAXES - STATE .00 .00 .00 .00 
UNCOLLECTED TAXES - STATE .00 .00 .00 .00 

9/06/2019 SUSSEX COUNTY 
PAGE 5 Departmental Reports - 33



OB/31/2019 DBSTB J. COX, TRBASUUR SUSSJIX comm PAGB I 8 

1IALNf? SIIDT - CCIMPARATIW nRia>S 
2016/07 - 2019/0B 

FUND 1-999 TREASURER'S ACCOUNTABILITY FUND 
GL070C 

FY/2017 FY/2018 FY/2019 FY/2020 
Bal. Sheet Bal. Sheet Bal. Sheet Bal. Sheet 

2016/07 2017/07 2018/07 2019/07 
Thru Thru Thru Thru 

MAJORI DESCRIPTION 2016/08 2017/08 201B/OB 2019/08 
----------- ------------- ------------- ------------- ........ ._.. _________ ._. 

000601-0000 UNCOLLECTED TAXES - SI .oo .DO .00 ,00 
000601-2009 State Income Tax - 2009 .00 .00 .00 .00 
000601-2010 State Income Tax - 2010 .OD .00 .00 .oo 

000601-2011 State Income Tax - 2011 .00 .00 .oo .oo 

000601-2012 State Income Tax - 2012 • 0-0 .oo .00 .00 
000601-2013 State Income Tax - 2013 .oo .oo .00 .oo 

000601-2014 State Income Tax - 2014 .00 .oo .oo .00 
000601-2015 State Income Tax - 2015 10,141.67 .oo .00 .00 
000601-2016 State Income Tax - 2016 .oo 5,679.38 .oo .oo 

000601-2017 State Income Tax - 2017 .00 .oo 8 1 112.23 .00 
000601-2018 State Income Tax - 2018 .00 .00 .oo 10,389.15 
000601-9999 Reserve - State Income 10, 141.67- 5, 679.38- 8, 112 .23- 10,389.15-

UNCOLLECTED TAXES - SI .00 .oo .oo .00 
.00 .00 .00 .00 

000702-0000 IPR Loan Payments Receivable 2,934.48 2,879.74 3,883.59 5,090.31 
000702-9999 Reserve for IPR Loan Payments 2,934.48- 2,879.74- 3,883.59- 5,090.31-

IPR Loan Payments Receivable .00 .00 .oo .oo 

000703-0000 CDBG Loan Payments Receivable 664.00 .00 .00 .oo 

000703-9999 Reserve for CDBG Loan Payments 664.00- .00 .oo .00 
CDBG Loan Payments Receivable .00 .oo .00 .oo 

.00 .00 .oo .00 

Departmental Reports - 34



08/31/19 *GL070* Deste J. Cox, Treasurer 
FUND I.-100 GENERAL E'utfO 

ACCOUNT 
NUMBER 

100-0100

101-0050
101-0051
101-0235
101-0236
101-0237
101-0238
101-0239
101-0240
101-0241
101-0600
101-0900
101-0901

200-0000
200-0100
200-0200
200-0235
200-0236
200-0237
200-0238
200-0239
200-0240
200-0241
200-0300
200-0600
200-0700
200-0800
200-0900

300-0100

ACCOUNT 
DESCRIPTION 

-------

GENERAL E'UND 
ASSETS 

c'a'ih With Treasure� 
ASSETS 
OTHER ASSETS ANO RESERVES 

Revl & Ln Due From Other Funds 
Due From School Fund 
Reserve for IDA Lease Agreement 
Reserve for VPSA99 Bonds High Sch. 
Res for Literary Loan - High Schoo 
Res for Literary Loan - Mid Sch 07 
Res for IDA QZAB Bond Deposit 
Reserve for VPSA 2012 Bond Elem Sc 
Woodfuel Loan Receivable(DHCD Loan 
Commonwealth PTR avail. for distr. 
Accrued Accounts Receivable 
Reversion Due From School Fund 

OTHER ASSETS ANO RESERVES 
TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 
Clearing Account - Payroll 
Clearing Account - Accounts Payabl 
IDA Lease Payable 
VPSA99 Bonds Payable - High Sch 
Literary Loan Pay - High Sch. 
Literary Loan Pay - Middle Sch 07 
IDA QZAB Bond Deposit Payable 
VPSA 2012 Bond Payable - Elem Sch. 
OHCD Loan Payable (Woodfuell 
Clearing Account - Jurors 
Commonwealth PTR outstanding bal. 
Deferred Revenue - Prepaid Taxes 
Performance Surety 
Accrued Accounts Payable 

LIABILITIES 
�OTAL LIABILITIES 

FUND EQUITY 
Fund Balance 

FUND EQUITY 
TOTAL PRIOR YR FUND BALANCE 
TOTAL RKVBNUB 
'1'0'1'AL KXPmm:ITUR& 
TOTAL CURRBNT l"OND BALANCli 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

SUSSEX COUNTY 
}\LANCE SHEET 

8/31/2019 
PREVIOUS 
BALANCE 

4 I 2_ll,_662, 66 
4,272,662.66 

2,528,893.00 
3,151,133.00 

607,322.75 
2,950,000.00 

291,085.00 
75,837 .17-

9,452,596.58 
13,725,259.24 

2,528,893.00-
3,151,133.00-

607,322.75-
2,950,000.00-

291,085.00-

75,837.17 

6,362,998.62-
6,362,998.62-
6,362,998.62-
1,675,623.lB-
3,765,959.1' 

13,725,259.24-

DEBIT 

1
1
323 1 856.CCl 

1,323,856.00 

55,142.33 

55,142.33 
1,318,996.33 

254,804.99 
923,970.01 

1,178,715.06 
1,178,115.0 

700,000.00 
700,000.00 
700,000.00 

4,345,757.06 

CREDIT 

2,479,865. 07-
2, 479,865. 07-

2,479,865.07-

254,804.99-
923,970.07-

55,142.33-

1,233,917.39-
1,n_J, 917. 39-

2,010,972.93-

2,466,982.00 

3,244,690.32-

PAGE W 9 

ENDING 
BALANCE 

3,!16,653.5!1 
3,116,653.59 

2,528,893.00 
3,151,133.00 

607,322.75 
2,950,000.00 

291,085.00 
20,694.84-

9,501,738.91 
12,624,392.50 

2,528,893.00-
3,151,133.00-

607,322.75-
2,950,000.00-

291,085.00-

20,694.84 

5,662,998.62-
5,662,996.62-
5,662,998.62-
3,686,596,ll-

6,232,9'1.14 
2,546,345.03 Bxp over Revenue 

12,624,392.50-

Departmental Reports - 35



08/31/2019 *GL060B* Daste J. Cox, TreasUJ:er SUSSEX COUNTY PAGlil I 10 
REVENUB �y !!meS 

1/01/2019 - 8/31/2019 
BUDGET APPR. CURRENT Y-T-D ' 

ACCTI DESCRIPTION AMOUNT AMOUNT AMOUNT AMOUNT BALANCE REMAIN . 
......... -........... ._. ........... - ------ ........ -. ___ ------ -----5 ------- -------

100 REVENUE - GENERAL FUND 23,332,919.00 26,383,157.00 2,010,912.93 3, 6B6, 596.11 22,691,160.89 86.02 
105 REVENUE - VPA/DSS FUND 2,121,832.00 2,127,832.00 138,649.45 385,238.23 1,142,593.17 81.89 
110 REVENUE - CSA FUND 125,000,00 125,000.00 52,882.16 194,873.81 530,126.19 13.12 
121 REV.- IPR PROG. INCOME FD (11/02) 2,025.00 2,025.00 .00 100.00 1,925.00 95.06 
123 REV - COBG HOUSING PRG (4/09) 3,425,00 3,425.00 .oo .00 3,425,00 100.00 
135 REVENUE - CP / OS RESERVE FUND .00 2,000,000.00 .00 2,000,000.00 .00 .00 
201 REVENUE - LAW LIBRARY FUND 166.00 166.00 225.10 316.40 449.60 58.69 
251 REVENUE - SCHOOL FUND 11,203,216.00 11,203,216.00 712,441.62 1,340,423.95 15,862,192.05 92.20 
252 REVENUE - SCHOOL FOOD SERVICES FUND 817,491.00 817,491.00 2,786.63 6,894.17 810,596.23 99,15 
253 REVENUE - SUMMER FOOD SERVICES FUND 27,850.00 27,850.00 11,245.07 25,120.79 2,729.21 9,79 

254 REVENUE - TITLE, GRANT FUND 1,394,928.00 1,394,928.00 .oo 23,903.26 1,371,024.14 98,28 

255 REVENUE - SCH. TEXTBOOK FUND 102,301.00 102,301.00 5,558.00 11,116.00 91,185.00 89.13 
302 REVENUE - CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 503,223.00 503,223.00 850,000.00 850,000.00 346,777.00- 68.91-
307 REVENUE - HENRY INDUST. PARK .00 .00 23,519.50 23,519.50 23,519.50- 100.00-

733 REVENUE - SPECIAL WELFARE FUND .oo .00 '711.00 3,093.71 3,093.11- 100.00-
-- REVENUE TOTAL -- 46,240,976.00 51,291,814.00 3,815,117.46 8,551,256.53 42,740,557.47 83.32 

Departmental Reports - 36



08/31/2019 •GL060B• Daste J. Cox, Treasurer 

ACCTi 

100 
105 
110 
121 
123 
125 
201 
251 
252 
253 
254 
255 
302 
306 
723 
726 
733 

DESCRIPTION 
-----------

EXPENDITURES - GENERAL FUND 
EXPENDITURES - VPA/DSS FUND 
EXPENDITURES - CSA FUND 
EXPEND. - IPR PROG. INCOME FD 11/02 
EXPEND. CDBG HOUSING PROGRAM 
EXPENDITURES - DRUG FORFEITURE FD 
EXPENDITURES - LAW LIBRARY FUND 
SCHOOL FUND EXPENDITURES 
EXPENDITURES - SCHOOL FOOD SERV 
EXPENDITURES - SUMMER FS FUND 
TITLE & GRANT REVOLVING FUND 
EXPENDITURES - TEXTBOOK FUND 
EXPENDITURES - CAPITAL PROJECT FD 
EXPENDITURES - CABIN POINT PARK 
EXPENDITURES - ROBERT MITCHELL SCH 
EXP. - MILLARD & FLORENCE STITH FSF 
EXPENDITURES - SPECIAL WELFARE FD 

-- EXPENDITURE TOTAL --

SUSSEX COUNTY 
J!:XPBNDIMI: StJIMARY B! ll'UNDS 

7/01/2019 - 8/31/2iii"9 -
BUDGET 
AMOUNT 

23,332,919.00 
2,127,832.00 

725,000.00 
2,025.00 
3,425.00 

.00 
766.00 

17,203,216.00 
817,491.00 

27,850.00 
1,394,928.00 

102,301.00 
503,223.00 

.00 

.00 
.oo 

.00 
46,240,976.00 

A.PPR. 
AMOUNT 

27,790,913.00 
2,127,832.00 

725,000.00 
2,025.00 
3,425.00 

18,045.35 
766.00 

17,203,216.00 
817,491.00 
27,850.00 

1,394,928.00 
102,301.00 
853,373.00 
242,694.00 

.00 
.oo 

.00 
51,309,859.35 

CURRENT 
AMOUNT 

2,466,982.00 
141,028.67 

46,032.77 
5,042.00 

.00 
222.76 

.oo 

752,087.41 
6,514.76 

13,101.82 
97,425.36 

.00 
167,093.99 

.00 

.oo 

500.00 
1,551.71 

3,697,583.25 

Y-T-D
AMOUNT 

6,232,941.14 
295,670.41 
103,287.50 

5,042.00 
.00 

222.76 
.00 

1,340,423.95 
18,256.78 
22,533.93 

119,317.74 
.oo 

167,093.99 
.oo 

BOO.DO 
1,000.00 
1,821.47 

8,308,411.67 

ENCUMBRANCE 
AMOUNT 

.oo 

.00 

.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 
.oo 

.00 

.00 
.00 
.oo 

PAGE I 11 

UNENCUMBERED % 
BALANCE REMAIN. 

21,557,971.86 
1,832,161.59 

621,712.50 
3,017.00-
3,425.00 

17,822.59 
766.00 

15,862,792.05 
799,234.22 

5,316.07 
1,275,610.26 

102,301.00 
686,279.01 
242,694.00 

800.00-
1,000.00-
l,821.47-

43,001,447.68 

77.57 
86.10 
85.75 

148.98-
100.00 
98.76 

100.00 
92.20 
97. 76 
19.08
91.44

100.00
B0.41

100.00
100.00-
100.00-
100.00-

83.80 

Departmental Reports - 37



08/31/2019 DESTE J. COX, TREASORER 

FUND 1-100 UVENUZ 

ACCT# DESCRIPTION 

999 
10000 
BODO 
11010 
11020 
11030 
11031 
11032 
11040 
11050 
11060 

12000 
12010 
12011 
12020 
12030 
12040 

12050 
12060 
12070 

l3000 
13010 
13030 

14000 
14010 

15000 
!5010
15020

16000 
16010 
16020 
16050 
16060 

REVENUE - GENERAL FUND 
REVENOE FROM LOCAL SOURCES 
GENERAL PROPERTY TAXES 

REAL PROPERTY TAXES 
PUBLIC SERVICE CORP TAXES 
PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES 
MOBILE HOME TAXES 
FIRE AND RESCUE TAXES 
MACHINERY AND TOOLS TAXES 
MERCHANTS CAPITAL TAXES 
PENALTIES,INTEREST, TREAS ADM FEES 

GENERAL PROPERTY TAXES 
OTHER LOCAL TAXES 

LOCAL SALES USE ANO TAXES 
OCCUPANCY TAXES 
CONSUMER UTILITY TAXES 
BUSINESS LICENSE TAXES 
FRANCHISE LICENSE TAXES 
MOTOR VEHICLE LICENSES 
BANK STOCK TAXES 
RECORDATION TAXES 

OTHER LOCAL TAXES 
PERMITS, FEES AND LICENSES 

ANIMAL LICENSES 
PERMITS AND OTHER LICENSES 

PERMITS, FEES AND LICENSES 
FINES AND FORFEITURES 

FINES AND FORFEITURES 

FINES AND FORFEITURES 
REVENUE FROM USE OF MONEY/PROPERTY 

REVENUE FROM USE OF MONEY 
REVENUE FROM USE OF PROPERTY 

REVENUE FROM USE OF MONEY/PROPERTY 
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 

COURT COSTS 
COMMONWEALTH'S ATTORNEY FEES 
CHARGES FOR CORRECTION/DETENTION 
CHARGES FOR OTHER PROTECTION 

SUSSEX COUNTY 

� FUND - REYpOI �-y BY MUOR SOURCB 

7/01/2019 - B/30/2019 
BUDGET APPR. CORRENT 
AMOUNT 

5,289,150.00 
749,544.00 

2,673,495.00 

13,497.00 
10,290.00 

945,942.00 
72,136.00 

172,000.00 

9,926,054.00 

928,054.00 
62,000.00 
90,000.00 
77,130.00 

225,080.00 
6,000.00 

1,388,264.00 

5,000.00 
6,139,260.00 

6,144,260.00 

1,050,000.00 

1,oso,.000.00 

60,000.00 
57,500.00 

]17,500.00 

162,865.00 
1,800.00 
4,300.00 
3,800.00 

AMOUNT 

5,289,150.00 

749,544.00 
2,673,495.00 

13,497.00 
10,290.00 

945,942.00 
72,136.00 

172,000.00 

9,926,054.00 

928,054.00 
62,000.00 
90,000.00 
77,130.00 

225,080.00 
6,000,00 

1,388,264.00 

5,000.00 
6,139,260.00 

6,144,260.00 

1,050,000.00 

1,050,000.00 

60,000.00 
57,500.00 

117,500.00 

162,865.00 
1,800.00 
4,300.00 
3,800.00 

AMOUNT 

30,921.86 

13,937.01 
132.31 

600.00 
11,999.90 

57,591.0B 

60,122.78 
5,316.'79 
B,780.25 
3,161.78 

2,237.95 

19,679.55 

35.00 
559,339.13 

559,374.13 

95,674.60 

95,674,60 

14,397.22 
4,017.63 

18,414.85 

15,244.98 
131.01 
359.48 
501.00 

Y-T-D
AMOUNT

55,429.21 

31,951.62 
282.21 

27.30 

600.00 
24,472.48 

112,762.82 

145,760.43 
11,0BB.OO 
15,294.87 

5,825.25 

5,747.31 

183,715.06 

77.00 
1,583,303.89 

1,583,380.89 

183,423.72 

183,423.72 

41,546.11 
7,885.26 

49,431.37 

28,978.85 
307.50 
699.33 
671. 00 

PAGE i 12 

' 

BALANCE UNCOLLECTED 

5,233,720.79 
749,544.00 

2,641,543.38 
13,214.79 
10,262.70 

945,942.00 
71,536.00 

147,527.52 

9,813,291.18 

782,293.57 
50,912.00 
74,705.13 
71,304.75 

219,332.69 
6,000.00 

1,204,548 .. 14 

4,923.00 
4,555,956.11 

4, 5,60, 879 .11 

866,516.28 

866,576.28 

18,453.89 
49,614.74 

68,068.63 

133,886.15 
1,492.50 
3,600.67 
3,129.00 

98.95 
100.00 

98.80 
97.90 
99.73 

100.00 
99,16 
85. 77 

98.86 

84.29 
B2.ll 

83.00 
92.44 

97. 44
100.00

86. 76 

98.46 
74.21 

74.22 

82.53 

82.53 

30.75 
86,28 

57. 93

82.20 
82.91 
83.73 
B2.34 

Departmental Reports - 38



08/31/2019 DESTE J. COX, TREASURER 
iuim" 1-lOO"'iiwNtnl 

ACCTI 

16080 
16160 
16210 

18000 
18030 
18990 

19000 
19020 

DESCRIPTION 
-----------

CHARGES FOR SANITATION/WASTE REMVL 
CHARGES FOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
CHG FOR CREDIT & DEBIT CARD USE 

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 

EXPENDITURE REFUNDS 
MISCELLANEOUS 

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 
RECOVERED COSTS 
RECOVERED COSTS - OTHER 

RECOVERED COSTS 
20000 REVENUE FROM THE COMMONWEALTH 
21000 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES 

22000 
22010 
22011 

23000 
23010 
23020 
23030 
23040 
23050 
23060 
23070 
23080 

24040 

PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES 
NON-CATEGORICAL AID - STATE 

NON - CATEGORICAL AID 
LOCAL FINES FROM DOA TO BE DISTRIB 

NON-CATEGORICAL AID - STATE 
SHARED EXPENSES - CATEGORICAL 

COMMONWEALTH'S ATTORNEY 
SHERIFF SHARED EXPENSE 
COMMISSIONER OF REVENUE 
TREASURER SHARED EXPENSE 
MEDICAL EXAMINER SHARED EXP 
REGISTRAT/ELECTORAL BO SHARED EXP 
CLERK OF COURT SHARED EXP 
JAIL SHARED EXPENSE 

SHARED EXPENSES - CATEGORICAL 
OTHER CATEGORICAL AID - STATE 

OTHER CATEGORICAL AID - STATE 
30000 REVENUE FROM THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT 
32000 NON-CATEGORICAL AID - FEDERAL 
32010 CDBG COMMUNITY DEV. BLOCK GRANT 
32020 SOCIAL SECURITY ADM. BOUNTY - JAIL 

NON-CATEGORICAL AID - FEDERAL 

SUSSEX COUNTY 
ammRAL WNO - RBVDUB �y BY !aJOR SOURCB 

7/01/2019 - 8/30/2019 
BUDGET 
AMOUNT 

10,000.00 
3,400.00 

186,165.00 

41,000.00 
10,500.00 

51,500.00 
93,438.00 

203,920.00 

297,358.00 

49,710.00 

49,710.00 

361,500.00 

361,500.00 

248,000.00 
1,389,000.00 

76,700.00 
81,500.00 

37,706.00 
206,000.00 
105,000.00 

2,143,906.00 
1,428,178.00 

1,428,178.00 

APPR. 
AMOUNT 

10,000.00 
3,400.00 

186,165.00 

41,000.00 
13,250.00 

54,250.00 
93,438.00 

203,920.00 

297,358.00 

49,710.00 

49,710.00 

361,500.00 

361,500.00 

248,000.00 
1,389,000.00 

76,700.00 
81,500.00 

37,706.00 
206,000.00 
105,000.00 

2,143,906.00 
1,428,178.00 

1,428,178.00 

CURRENT 
AMOUNT 

472. 66

16,709.13 

584.00 
17,175.43 

17,759.43 
7,786.49 

130,345.62 

138,132.11 

15,076.48 

15,076.48 

19,361.42 
69,252.88 

6,167.55 
5,561.40 

14,993.44 
23,132.00 

138,468.69 
173,686.88 

173,686.88 

400.00 

400.00 

Y-T-D 
AMOUNT 

936.86 

31,593.54 

584.00 
21,617.41 

22,201.41 
15,572.98 

145,335.05 

160,908.03 

132,062.86 

132,062.86 

44,774.10 
181,716.52 

12,636.91 
13,380.22 

31,103.84 
23,132.00 

306,743.59 
216,822.02 

216,822.02 

3,150.00 
400.00 

3,550.00 

PAGE II 13 

i 
BALANCE UNCOLLECTED 

10,000.00 
2,463.14 

154,571.46 

40,416.00 
8,367 .41-

32,048.59 
77,865.02 
58,584.95 

136,449.97 

100.00 
72.44 

83.02 

98.57 
63.15-

59.07 
83.33 
28.72 

45.88 

49,710.00 100.00 

49,710.00 100.00 

229,437.14 

229,437.14 

203,225.90 
1,207,283.48 

64,063.09 
68,119.78 

37,706.00 
174,896.16 

81,868.00 

1,837,162.41 
1,211,355.98 

1,211,355.98 

63.46 

63.46 

81.94 
86.91 
83.52 
83.58 

100.00 
84.90 
77.96 

85.69 
84.81 

84.81 

3,150.00- 100.00-
400.00- 100.00-

3,550.00- 100.00-

Departmental Reports - 39



08/31/2019 DESTE J. COX, TREASURER 
l!'tJND 1-100 uvmitii 

ACCTI 

33000 
33030 
40000 
41000 
41040 
41050 
41060 

DESCRIPTION 
-----------

CATEGORICAL AID - FED 
Emergency Ser. Grant - Res 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
NON-REVENUE RECEIPTS 

PROCEEDS FROM INDEBTNESS 
TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS 
DESIGNATED USE OF FUND BALANCES 

NON-REVENUE RECEIPTS 
--FUND TOTAL--

SUSSEX COUNTY 
GBNEltM. flJND - RSVDUII stHaUlY BY NA.JOR 80URa 

7/01/2019 - 8/30/2019 
BUDGET APPR. CURRENT 
AMOUNT AMOUNT AMOUNT 

188,524.00 

--188, 524.00 
23,332,919.00 

3,236,612.00 

3,236,612.00 
26,383,757.00 

700,000.00 

700,000.00 
2,010,972.93 

Y-T-0
AMOUNT

700,000,00 

700,000.00 
3,686,596.11 

PAGE I 14 

1 
BALANCE UNCOLLECTED 

2,536,612.00 

2,536,612.00 
22,697,160.89 

78.37 

78.37 
86.02 

Departmental Reports - 40



08/31/2019 DESTE J. COX, TREASURER SUSSEX COUNTY PAGE I 15 
nJND 1-100 KXPDDITCU GSNSRAL l'UND - EXPSNDI'l'UU 81JMIGRY BY DSPAR'IMINTS 

7/01/2019 - 8/30/2019 

BUDGET APPR. CURRENT Y-T-0 ENCUMBRANCE UNENCUMBERED % 
ACCTI DESCRIPTION AMOUNT AMOUNT AMOUNT AMOUNT AMOUNT BALANCE REMAINING 

----------- ------· ------ ------ ------ ------ -------

999 EXPENDITURES - GENERAL FUND 
11100-111 BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 165,920.00 165,920.00 10,118.13 22,641.21 143,278.79 86.35 

--MAJOR TOTAL-- 165,920.00 165,920.00 10,118.13 22,641.21 143,278.79 86.35 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 165,920.00 165,920.00 10,118.13 22,641.21 143,278.79 86.35 
21100-211 ADMINISTRATOR 869,406.00 1,018,041.00 197,978.03 265,562.21 752,478.79 73.91 

--MAJOR TOTAL-- 869,406.00 1,018,041.00 197,978.03 265,562.21 752,478.79 73.91 
21200-221 BUILDING & GROUNDS 545,528.00 545,528.00 47,510.46 116,173.01 429,354.99 78.70 

--MAJOR TOTAL-- 545,528.00 545,528.00 47,510.46 116,173.01 429,354.99 78.70 
21300-231 HOUSING 126,002.00 2,085,912.00 191,385.99 203,692.12 1,882,219.88 90.23 

--MAJOR TOTAL-- 126,002.00 2,085,912.00 191,385.99 203,692.12 1,882,219.88 90.23 
21400-241 PLANNING 216,589.00 280,072.00 16,631.22 31,342.67 248,729.33 BB.BO 

21400-242 BUILDING INSPECTIONS 247,120.00 247,120.00 17,148.29 32,327.62 214,792.38 86.91 
21400-243 ZONING 1,875.00 1,875.00 1,875.00 100. 00

--MAJOR TOTAL-- 465,584.00 529,067.00 33,779.51 63,670.29 465,396.71 87.96 
21500-251 FIRE & RESCUE 159,800.00 260,892.00 63,744.95 72,164.70 188,727.30 72.33 
21500-252 AMBULANCE & RESCUE 1,149,100.00 1,178,082.00 163,673.95 177,508.63 1,000,573.37 84.93 
21500-253 EMERGENCY SERVICES 222,911.00 222,911.00 17,559.16 94,613.39 128,297.61 57.55 
21500-254 911 Services 189.13 189.13 189.13- 100.00-
21500-255 FOREST FIRE EXTINCTION 24,000.00 24,000.00 24,000.00 100.00 

--MAJOR TOTAL-- 1,555,811.00 1,685,885.00 245,167.19 344,475.85 1,341,409.15 79.56 
21600 261 ANIMAL CONTROL 252,959.00 252,959.00 18,849.74 38,491.89 214,467.11 84.78 
21600-262 ENVIRONMENTAL INSPECTIONS 225,000.00 231,092.00 12,900.59 42,895.22 188,196.78 81.43 
21600-263 GENERAL WORKS 92,000.00 92,000.00 10,529.91 13,768.39 78,231.61 85,03 
21600-264 CONVENIENCE CENTERS 410,366.00 550,366.00 60,355.99 68,488.50 481,877.50 87.55 
21600-·266 REFUSE DISPOSAL 122,350.00 122,350.00 3,672.05 6,850.72 115,499.28 94.40 

--MAJOR TOTAL-- 1,102,675.00 1,248,767.00 106,308.28 170,494.72 1,078,272.28 86.34 
21700-271 IT AND CENTRAL ACCOUNTING AS400 38,550.00 38,550.00 17,532.60 21,017.40 54.51 

--MAJOR TOTAL-- 38,550.00 38,550.00 17,532.60 21,017.40 54.51 

ADMINISTRATOR 4,703,556.00 7,151,750.00 822,129.46 1,181,600.80 5,970,149.20 83.47 
22100-281 COUNTY ATTORNEY 130,000.00 130,000.00 16,769.92 40,070.95 89,929.05 69.17 

--MAJOR TOTAL-- 130,000.00 130,000.00 16,769.92 40,070.95 89,929.05 69.17 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 130,000.00 130,000.00 16,769.92 40,070.95 89,929.05 69.17 
23100-291 REGISTRAR/BOARD OF ELECTIONS 205,845.00 205,845.00 11,281.59 23,738.62 182,106.38 88.46 

--MAJOR TOTAL-- 205,845.00 205,845.00 11,281.59 23,738.62 182,106.38 88.46 

REGISTRAR/BOARD OF ELECTIONS 205,845.00 205,845.00 11,281.59 23,738.62 182,106.38 88.46 

Departmental Reports - 41



OB/31/2019 DESTE J. COX, TREASURER 
� 1-100 Dl'SNDITIJU

ACCTI DESCRIPTION 

31100-311 COMMISSIONER OF REVENUE 
--MAJOR TOTAL--

COMMISSIONER OF REVENUE 
41100-411 TREASURER 
41100-412 LICENSE BUREAU 

--MAJOR TOTAL--

TREASURER 
51100-511 COURTROOM SECURITY 
51100-512 FIELD OPERATIONS 
51100-513 SPOT OPERATIONS 
51100-514 SELECTIVE ENFORCEMENT 
51100-515 WAKEFIELD OPERATIONS 
51100-516 E911 
51100-517 SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICERS 

--MAJOR TOTAL--
51500-551 CONFINEMENT OF INMATES 

--MAJOR TOTAL--

SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT 
61100-611 CIRCUIT COURT 
61100-612 GENERAL DISTRICT COURT 
61100-613 SPECIAL MAGISTRATES 
61100-614 JUV & DOM RELATIONS COURT 

--MAJOR TOTAL--

CIRCUIT COURT 
62100-621 CLERK OF COURTS 

--MAJOR TOTAL--

CLERK OF COURTS 
63100-631 COMMONWEALTH'S ATTORNEY 
63100-632 VICTIM/WITNESS PROGRAM 

--MAJOR TOTAL--

COMMONWEALTH'S ATTORNEY 
--MAJOR TOTAL--

81000 CONTRIBUTIONS TO OUTSIDE AGENCIES 
81100-801 Crater Health District 

SUSSEX COUNTY 
GBNBRAL 1rUND - SXPSNDI't'IJRB stnefARY BY Dl:PAll.'IMENTS 

7/01/2019 - B/30/2019 
BUDGET APPR. CURRENT 
AMOUNT 

264,862.00 
264,862.00 

264,862.00 
363,557.00 

52,450.00 
416,007.00 

416,007.00 
224,871.00 

1,785,940,00 
59,973.00 

218,800.00 
56,954.00 

198,770.00 
122,771.00 

2,668,079.00 
1,768,337.00 
1,768,337.00 

4,436,416.00 
38,607.00 
44,308.00 

8,400.00 
12,262.00 

103,577.00 

103,577.00 
390,821.00 
390,821.00 

390,821.00 
534,394.00 
107,366.00 
641,760.00 

641,760.00 

198, 31.'l .oo 

AMOUNT 

264,862.00 
264,862.00 

264,862.00 
363,557.00 

52,450.00 
416,007.00 

416,007.00 
224,871.00 

1,789,490.00 
59,973.00 

218,800.00 
56,954.00 

198,770.00 
122,771.00 

2,671,629.00 
1,768,337.00 
1,768,337.00 

4,439,966.00 
38,607.00 
44,308.00 

8,400.00 
12,262.00 

103,577.00 

103,577.00 
390,821.00 
390,821.00 

390,821.00 
534,394.00 
107,366.00 
641,760.00 

641,760.00 

198,317,00 

AMOUNT 

20,623.21 
20,623.21 

20,623.21 
27,207.44 

2,425.00 
29,632.44 

29,632.44 
16,086.58 

137,982.62 
1,976.73 

16,540.60 
4,518.48 

13,325.34 
10,286.88 

200,717.23 
152,961.97 
152,961.97 

353,679.20 
2,697.32 
3,688.14 

939.47 

7,324.93 

7,324.93 
31,779.85 
31,779.85 

31,779.85 
40,533.30 

8,982.05 
49,515.35 

49,515.35 

49,579.25 

Y-T-D
AMOUNT

39,638.09 
39,638.09 

39,638.09 
53,585.48 

5,825.00 
59,410.48 

59,410.48 
30,923.40 

276,127.42 
10,851.09 
30,848.38 

9,017.94 
21,945.01 
20,584.83 

400,298.07 
310,057.15 
310,057.15 

710,355.22 
6,240.67 
6,095.60 
1,663.12 

13,999.39 

13,999.39 
64,369.36 
64,369.36 

64,369.36 
78,631.02 
17,227.30 
95,858.32 

95,858.32 

49,579.25 

ENCUMBRANCE 
AMOUNT 

PAGE I 16 

UNENCUMBERED I 
BALANCE REMAINING 

225,223.91 
225,223.91 

225,223.91 
309,971.52 
46,625.00 

356,596.52 

356,596.52 
193,947.60 

1,513,362.58 
49,121.91 

187,951.62 
47,936.06 

176,824.99 
102,186.17 

2,211,330.93 
1,458,279.85 
1,458,279.85 

3,729,610.78 
32,366.33 
38,212.40 

6,136.88 
12,262.00 
89,577.61 

89,577.61 
326,451.64 
326,451.64 

326,451.64 
455,762.98 
90,138.70 

545,901.68 

545,901.68 

148,737.75 

85.03 
85.03 

85.03 
85.26 
88.89 
85.71 

85. 7l
86.2'4
84.56
81. 90
85.90
84.16
88.95
83.23
85.01
82.46
82.46

84.00 
83.83 
86.24 
00.20 

100.00 
86.48 

86.48 
83.52 
83,52 

83.52 
85.28 
83.95 
85.06 

85.06 

75.00 

Departmental Reports - 42



SUSSEX COUNTY 08/31/2019 DESTE J. COX, TREASURER 
l'UND 1-100 BXPENDJ:� QSNERAI. ll'UND - BXPZNDITUU SIJMHIIIRY BY DBPARTHRNTS 

ACCTI DESCRIPTION 

81100-803 Old Dominion Emerg. Medical Serv. 
81100-805 District 19 Community Services Bd 

--MAJOR TOTAL--
81300-811 Crater Area Aging 
81300-814 The Improvement Assoc 
81300-816 Red Cross 
81300-820 Virginia Legal Aid society 
81300-822 VA Cooperative Extension 
81300-823 Chowan Basin Soil & Water Conserv. 

--MAJOR TOTAL--
81400-825 Wakefield Foundation 
81400-826 Blackwater/Regional Library 
81400-827 HBC Museum 

--MAJOR TOTAL--
81500-831 John Tyler Communicty College 
81500-832 Virginia State University 
81500-833 Southside Virginia Education center 
81500-834 Richard Bland College Foundation 

--MAJOR TOTAL--
81600-840 Sussex Youth & Adult Recreation Ctr 
81600-843 Senior Citizens, Eastern 
81600-844 Southeast 4-H center 
81600-847 Recreation - Unallocated Acct. 
81600-848 Jessica Ann Moore Foundation 

--MAJOR TOTAL--
81800-860 Crater Planning District Commission 
81800-862 Virginia's Gateway Region 
81800-863 Crater Youth Care Commission 
81800-869 Crater Small Bus Dev Cent Longwod U 

--MAJOR TOTAL--

CONTRIBUTIONS TO OUTSIDE AGENCIES 
93100 TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 
93200 EXP ACCOUNT NON DEPARTMENT 

TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 
95000 DEBT SERVICE 

DEBT SERVICE 
99900 NON DEPARTMENTAL 

NON DEPARTMENTAL 
--FUND TOTAL--

7/01/2019 - 8/30/2019 
BUDGET 
AMOUNT 

1,000.00 
71,811.00 

271,128.00 
7,060.00 

64,000.00 
2,000.00 
1,227.00 

56,032.00 
7,264.00 

137,583.00 
11,500 .OD 

176,698.00 
3,500.00 

191,698.00 
995.00 

1,000.00 
1,000.00 
1,500.00 
4,495.00 

10,000.00 
10,000.00 
15,000.00 

5,000.00 
40,000.00 

9,790.00 
42,050.00 

112,061.00 
3,000.00 

166,901.00 

811,805.00 
9,011,174.00 

152,643.00 

9,163,817.00 
1,892,533.00 

1,892,533.00 
6,000.00 

6,000.00 
23,332,919.00 

APPR. 
AMOUNT 

1,000.00 
71,811.00 

271,128.00 
7,060.00 

64,000.00 
2,000.00 
1,227.00 

56,032.00 
7,264.00 

137,583.00 
11,500.00 

176,698.00 
3,500.00 

191,698.00 
995.00 

1,000.00 
1,000.00 
1,500.00 
4,495.00 

10,000.00 
10,000.00 
10,000.00 
11,250.00 

5,000.00 
46,250.00 

9,790.00 
42,050.00 

112,061.00 
3,000.00 

166,901.00 

818,055.00 
11,011,174.00 

152,643.00 

11,163,817.00 
1,892,533.00 

1,892,533.00 
6,000.00 

6,000.00 
27,790,913.00 

CURRENT 
AMOUNT 

49,579.25 

236.47 
7,264.00 
7,500.47 

11,500.00 

11,500.00 

10,000.00 
10,000.00 

20,000.00 

19,839.25 

19,839.25 

108,418.91 
1,005,708.95 

1,005,708.95 

2,466,982.00 

Y-T-0
AMOUNT 

1,000.00 
35,905.50 
86,484.75 

64,000.00 

10,713.82 
7,264.00 

81,977.82 
11,500.00 
44,174.50 

3,500.00 
59,174.50 

1,000.00 
1,000.00 

2,000.00 
10,000.00 
10,000.00 

5,000.00 
25,000.00 

4,895.00 

19,839.25 

24,734.25 

279,371.32 
3,019,375.66 

3,019,375.66 
682,648.75 

682,648.75 
137.03-

137.03-
6,232,941.14 

ENCUMBRANCE 
AMOUNT 

PAGE fl 17 

UNENCUMBERED \ 
BALANCE REMAINING 

35,905.50 
184,643.25 

7,060.00 

2,000.00 
1,227.00 

45,318.18 

55,605.18 

132,523.50 

132,523.50 
995.00 

1,500.00 
2,495.00 

10,000.00 
11,250.00 

21,250.00 
4,895.00 

42,050.00 
92,221.75 

3,000.00 
142,166.75 

538,683.68 
7,991,798.34 

152,643.00 

8,144,441.34 
1,209,884.25 

50.00 
68.10 

100.00 

100.00 
100.00 
80.87 

40.41 

75.00 

69.13 
100.00 

100.00 
55.50 

100.00 
100.00 

45.94 
50.00 

100.00 
82.29 

100.00 
85.18 

65.84 
72.57 

100.00 

72.95 
63. 92

1,209,884.25 63.92 
6,137.03 102.28 

6,137.03 102.28 
21,551,971.86 77.57 

Departmental Reports - 43



OB/ll/19 •GL070• Daste J. Cox, Traaaurar

FUND l·l.0� GENRRAL CAPITAL PROJECTS l!'UND 

ACCOUNT 
NUMBER 

100-0100
100-0101
100-0102

101-0900

200-0200
200-0900

ACCOUNT 
DESCRIPTION 

-------

GENERAL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
ASSETS 

Cash With Treasurer 
�aero� Account - Fire D.£(lt V�h1cle 
Escrow Account - Rescue Vehicles 

ASSETS 
OTHER ASSETS 

Accrued Accounts Receivable 
OTHER ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 
LIABILITIES 

Clearing Account - Accounts Payabl 
Accrued Accounts Payable 

LIABILITIES 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 

FUND BALANCE 
300-0100 Fund Balance 

FUND BALANCE 
TOTAL PRIOR YR FUND BALANCE 
TOTAL REVENUE 
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 
TOTAL CURRENT FUND BALANCE 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

SUSSEX COUNTY 
BALANCE SBBZT 

8/31/2019 
PREVIOUS 
BALANCE 

702,590.60 

702,590.60-
702,590.60-
702,590.60-

702,590.60-

DEBIT 

580,375,00 
300,000.00 

880,375.00 

880,375.00 

227,843.99 

227,843.99 
227,843.99 

394,937.98 

CREDIT 

197,468.99-

197,468.99-

197,468.99-

227,843.99-

227,843.99-
227,843.99-

0so,ooo.oo-
167,o93.99 

1,077,843.99-

PAGE I 18 

ENDING 
BALANCE 

959,246.61 
�,000,00 

66,250.00 
1,385,496.61 

1,385,496.61 

702,590.60-
702,590.60-
702,590.60-
aso,ooo.oo� 

167,093.99 
682,906.01-

1,385,496.61-

Departmental Reports - 44



08/31/2019 *GL060* DEBTE J. COJC, TRKASURER 

l'tJMD l-302 RKVlDmK 

FOND 1-302 REVENUE - CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 

MAJOR 
ACCTII 

999 

10000 
15000 
15010 
16000 

16010 
18030 

20000 

24000 
24040 

40000 

41000 

41040 
41050 

0100 

DESCRIPTION 
-----------

REVENUE - CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 

REVENUE FROM LOCAL SOURCES 

REVENUE FROM USE OF HONEY/PROPERTY 
REVENUE FROM USE OF HONEY 
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 

COURT COSTS 
COURT COSTS 
REVENUE FROM THE COMMONWEALTH 

CATEGORICAL AID - STATE 

CATEGORICAL AID - OTHER 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

NON-REVENUE RECEIPTS 

PROCEEDS FROM INDEBTNESS 

FOND TRANSFERS 
Transfer from General Fund 

FOND TRANSFERS 

NON-REVENUE RECEIPTS 

--FOND TOTAL·-

SUSSEX COUNT'f 

CAPITAL � l!'UHD - DETAIL DVll:NOII: 
7/01/2019 - 8/31/2019 

-

BUDGET 

AMOUNT 

503,223.00 
503,223.00 
----------

503,223.00 

503,223.00 

APPR. 

AMOUNT 

503,223.00 
503,223.00 
----------

503,223.00 

503,223.00 

CURRENT 

AMOUNT 

850,000.00 

850,000.00 
----------

850,000.00 

850,000.00 

Y-T-D 

AMOUNT 

0so,ooo.oo 

850,000.00 
----------

850,000.00 

850,000.00 

PAGE I 19 

BALANCE 
I 

REMAIN. 

346,777.00- 68.91-

346,777.00- 68.91-
----------- ------

346,777.00- 68.91-

346,777.00- 68.91-

Departmental Reports - 45



08/31/2019 *GL060* DBBTI J. COX, TR&ABUll&R BUBUX COUN'l'Y PAC& I 20
1'0ND 1-302 DPKRDITIJUB - C&PI'l'AL PIIOJJ:C'l' VD DnNDl'l'URS &'tJHGRY 

1/01/2019 - 8/31/2019 

FOND 1-302 EXPENDITURES - CAPITAL PROJECT FD 
MAJOR BUDGET APiR. CURRENT Y-T-D ENCUMBRANCE UNENCUMBERED ' 

ACCTI DESCRIPTION AMOONT AMOUNT AHOONT AHOONT AMOUNT BALANCE REMAIN. 
� .............. _. ... ._.._._._. ..-·�---- ------- ------ ------ --·---- ----·--- -------

999 EXPENDITORES - CAPITAL PROJECT FD 
90000 CAPITAL PROJECTS 
91000 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
91100 NEW CONSTRUCTION, ADO. OR RE 
91200 TECHNOLOGY INFRASTROTORE 
91201 REPLACE E911 EQUIPMENT 

1257 Replace CAD System 80,000,00 160,000.00 .00 .00 .00 160,000.00 100.00 
REPLACE E911 EQUIPMENT 00,000.00 160,000.00 .00 .00 .00 160,000.00 100.00 

51li02 Replace AS400 Server 
91203 Replace Voting Machines 
91300 VEHICLES & OTHER RELATED EQUIP. 

0001 Fire Truck 150,000.00 150,000.00 .oo .00 .00 150,000.00 100.00 
0011 Sheriff Patrol Vehicle 110,785.00 184,785.00 68,394.23 68,394.23 .00 116,390.77 62.98 
0015 Building Inspections - Vehicle 11"1,92"1.00 117,927.00 .00 .00 .00 117,927.00 100.00 
001'1 Community Development-'Vehicle .00 .00 27,219.32 27,219.32 .00 27,219.32- 100.00-

VEHICLES & OTHER RELATED EOOIP. 378,712.00 452,712.00 95,613.55 95,613.55 .00 357,098.45 78.87 
91500 MISCELLANEOUS PROJECTS 

------------- ------------- ------------ ------------- ------------- ------.-....... ._ ...... ._ -

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 458,712.00 612,712.00 95,613.55 95,613.55 .oo 517,098.45 84.39 
93100 TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 
94000 CAPITAL PROJECTS 
94000-120 CAPITAL PROJECTS Jarratt Senior Center 

--SOB TOTAL-- .00 .00 .oo .DO .00 .oo +'00 

94100 LANDFILL CLOSORE 
94250 COMMUNICATIONS 
94300 EHERG REPAIR JARRATT SENIOR CTR 
94400 RENOVATION OF COONTY BLDGS 

8212 Renov/Repair Bldg/Phone Sys. Etc. 1,548.00 1,548.00 .oo .oo .00 1,548.00 100.00 
8217 Carpet Replacement - GDC .oo 25,000.00 12,462.44 12,462.44 .00 12,537.56 50.15 
8219 Judicial Complex HVAC-Phase 2 15,963.00 65,963.00 9, 198 .• 00 9,198.00 .00 56,165.00 86.05 
8220 Water Tower Repairs .oo 7,800.00 .00 .oo .00 1,800.00 100.00 
8223 Jail Upgrades .oo 89,000.00 47,500.00 47,500.00 ,00 41,500.00 46.62 

RENOVATION OF COUNTY BLDGS 17,511.00 189,311.00 69,160.44 69,160.44 ,00 120,150.56 63.46 
94500 SCHOOL PROJECTS 

0001 Lease Purchase - School Busses 27,000.00 27,000.00 .oo .oo ,00 27,000.00 100.00 
SCHOOL PROJECTS 21,000.00 21,000.00 .oo .oo ,00 27,000.00 100.00 

94700 ANIMAL POUND BLDG• COMPLEX 
8103 Repairs ar Animal Shelter .00 24,350.00 2,320.00 2,320.00 .00 22,030.00 90.47 

ANIMAL POUND BLDG & COMPLEX .oo 24,350.00 2,320.00 2,320.00 .00 22,030.00 90.4'1 
94800 WASTE SITE PURCHASE 
94900 COMMONWEALTH ATTNY OFFICE BLDG 

Departmental Reports - 46



08/31/2019 *GL060* DESTE J. COX, TRBASURl!:k 
iuiiD' �l-302 _BUDDITURBB - CAPI'l'AL PA03BCT l'tl 

FUND 1-302 EXPENDITURES - CAPITAL PROJECT FD 
MAJOR 

ACCT# 

95300 
96000 

DESCRIPTION 
----------

COMMONWEALTH ATTNY OFFICE BLDG 

CAPITAL PROJECTS 
STONY CREEK SCHOOL SITE 
PUBLIC PARK DEVELOPEMENT 

--FUND TOTAL--

BUDGET 
AMOUNT 

SUSSEX COUNTY 

UPSNDITORS-81HIIUlY 

7/01/2019 - B/31/2019 

APPR. 
AMOUNT 

44,511.00 240,661.00 

CURRENT 
AMOUNT 

11,480.44 

503,223.00 853,373.00 167,093.99 

Y-T-D 
AMOUNT 

11,480.44 

167,093.99 

PAGE I 21 

ENCUMBRANCE 
AMOUNT 

.00 

,00 

UNENCUMBERED % 
BALANCE REMAIN. 

169,180.56 10.29 

686,279.01 80.41 

Departmental Reports - 47



Account Number: 4100 93100 251 
Transfer To School Fund 

Period: 
Time: 1602 

Balance 

Page 1122 
Company No: 001 
Date: 7/09/19 

Budget Amount 
$7,963,759.00 

Year To Date 
$7,661,632.75 

Encumbrances 
$.00 1$ 3 0 2 , 12 6 . 2 5 BALANCE OF LOCAL APPR TO SCHOOLS 

================��====�=============-==================�========:=======---========�-====== :::c: 

Date Source Reference Number PO# Amount Period Description 

10022018 JE 1 0001680 $428,280.70 201809 SEP18 TRF LOC APPR TO SF FR GF 
10312018 JE 1 0001684 $800,318.15 201810 TRF LOC APPR TO SF OCT18 
11302018 JE 1 0001688 $497,625.15 201811 TRF LOC APPR TO SF NOV18 
01072019 JE 1 0001695 $693,222.06 201812 TRF LOC APPR TO SF FR GF 
02042019 JE 1 0001706 $606,963.85 201901 TRF LOC APPR TO SF JAN19 
02042019 JE 1 0001709 $1,862.92-201901 ADJ JAN19 LOCAPR TO COR AMT 
02282019 JE 1 0001713 $649,116.99 201902 FEB19 TRF LOC APPR TO SF 

04022019 JE 1 0001717 $571,670.25 201903 TRF LOC APP TO SF FR GF 3/19 
04302019 JE 1 0001725 $560,928.57 201904 TRF LOC APPR TO SF APR19 
05312019 JE 1 0001730 $585,214.63 201905 TRF LOC APPR TO SF MAY19 
******** G/L Year-To-Date- $5,391,477.43 
******** Encumbrance-
******** A/P Holding File-
******** P/R Holding File-
******** U/T Holding File-
******** A/R Holding File-

06302019 JE 1 0001753 $2,305,566.32 201906 TRF LOC APPR TO SF JUNE19 

06302019 JE 1 0001754 $35,411.00-201906 REV LOC APPR/ADJ FOR 255 TRF 
******** G/L Holding File- $2,270,155.32 
******** S/S Holding File-
******** INV Holding File-

07172018 BA 1 0000105 $7,963,759.00 201807 -APPROPRIATION ENTRY-
******** Budget Amount- $7,963,759.00 

*** At the close of June 2019, there is a balance remaining in the Local Appropriation to School Fund in the 
amount of $302,126.25. The Superintendent of Schools and School !'inane• Director are aware of this remaining 
balance. 

Departmental Reports - 48



Page 1123 

SUSSEX COUNTY 

TEN YEAR LANDFlll REVENUE SUMMARY 

DESTE 1. COX, TREASURER 

FY17-19 
MO. RECD FYE2010 FYE2011 FYE2012 FYE2013 FYE2014 FYE2015 FYE2016 FYE2017 FYE201B FYE2019 FYE2020 3Yr Ave. 

July 558,173 599,541 629,481 471,147 514,503 480,468 501,253 436,313 478,992 513,862 484,545 476,389 

August 577,545 509,002 597,953 445,265 499,297 454,641 429,103 401,017 433,259 527,100 552,838 453,792 

September 475,125 503,372 592,764 479,789 452,803 350,607 324,276 424,719 492 ,106 671,682 529,502 

October 500,954 545,971 514,347 408,069 401,828 399;043 308,871 367,365 417,047 602,719 462,377 

November 481,954 567,260 476,176 430,052 405,430 382,450 334,371 441,841 459,048 771,203 557,364 

December 455,412 541,780 415,797 534,057 322,278 335,460 339 ,298 353,495 475,139 613,451 480,695 

January 449,831 479,350 441,254 488,614 343,461 389,239 390,132 343,788 493,320 689,112 508,740 

February 437,417 484,712 432,349 542,928 377,628 403,443 342,709 375 ,933 458,704 747,024 527,220 

March 419,355 472,753 404,675 403,559 317,919 290,654 341,827 314,512 490,123 667,723 490,786 

April 493,043 586,694 403,647 426,530 338,922 459,688 389,559 393,938 458,270 679,997 510,735 

May 507,140 572,823 441,761 480,225 390,339 544,490 360,063 383,640 373,837 556,306 437,927 

June 571,595 578,670 458,093 473,070 399,471 508,752 400,137 467,027 432,824 536,509 478,787 

Totals 5,927,545 6,441,927 5,808,297 5,583,306 4,763,879 4,998,935 4 ,461,599 4,703,588 5,462,669 7,576,689 1,037,383 4,875,952 

Current Year Budget: 5,700,000 

Departmental Reports - 49



FYE20 LANDFILL TIPPING FEES 

OESTEJ.COX,TREASURER 
Page 1124 

DATE FOR RATEfTON NET/TON CO. USED TOTAL CONSENT FEE CONSENT FEE BASE Ave need 
REC'D MONTH 0.00 0.00 TONS REV. Bud 5.3 mil ESCROW FD BRAMBLES CR RENT & Bal of Bud. 

$5.700,000.00-Budgeted 
$475,000.00 

7/8/2019 May 2019 $4.75 112,949.28 1,473.49 $536,509 08 $430,290.91 
7/25/2019 June 2019 $4.75 102,009.50 1,622.26 $484,545.13 $425,358.71 
8/28/2019 July 2019 $4.75 116,386.98 11,388.91 $552,838.16 $412,610.77 
9/25/2019 Aug 2019 $4.75 $0 .. 00 

10/25/2019 Sept 2019 $4.75 $0.00 
11/25/2019 Oct 2019 $4.75 SO.OD 

12/25/2019 Nov 2019 $4.75 $0.00 
1/25/2020 Dec 2019 $4.75 $0.00 
2/25/2020 Jan 2020 $4.75 $0.00 
3/25/2020 Feb 2020 $4.75 $0 00 
4/25/2020 Mar 2020 $4.75 $0.00 
5/25/2020 Apr 2020 $4.75 $0.00 
6125/2020 May 2020 $4.75 $0.00 

AC TOT FYE 2020 Bud $5,700.000 3311345.76 14.484.66 $1,573,892.36 0.00 o.oo 0.00 rU,12a.101.B4 

GTOTAL PROJ 331 ,345.76 141484.66 1.573.892 36 4,768,264.00 5.192.300.00 5_,480,000.10 

Current Conditions of Agreement and CUP - Per the 5th Amendment to Host Agreement dated May 25, 2017 

1. Beginning 4/1117, rate increases from S4 03/lon to 4.53/ton. Summer 201B- Rate increases from S4.531ton to 4.75/ton on the earlier of 
(1) first delivery of trash by railcar from NY contract or (2) July 1, 201 B. 

2. Adjustment to CPI on 101h anniversary of amendment (202B). not to exceed S5.001ton, but rate shall nol be reduced if CPI is less lhan S4. 75 
3. Minimum Monthly Payments will be 11121h of 50% of previous calendar year's lipping fees, liul not below S2,000,000lyM_r 
4 Beginning June 1, 201B, the County wm be responsible for daily operations. acceptance of waste, & rouline maintenance of Remote Convenience Centers. 
5 lump Sum pml of$150,0DO lo erect mtcen1ry improvements to man & manage operations of Remote Convenience Centers (Received B/23/17) 
4. Inspection & Operations Fee paid by Waste Management lo County for 2017 = $250,000, increasing lo $375,000 January 1, 2018, and adjusted to CPI every 5 years thereafter 

based on the CPI for each of Iha five years, The fee shall nol be reduced based on CPI adJustment and shall not e,cceed $425,000 
5. landfill Current Lease 1.315 Acres 
B. Escrow Agreement Esaow eccounl/bond/letter $5,000/acres with a max of $1,000,000 with Interest earning lo a gross max. of S2,000,000. 

Amendment to Esaow Agreement allows for additions deposits of $5,000/acres over 200 acres of landfill used with no 
maximum accumufalion. 

7 Current County Capacity B00,000 Ions 
Nata: Sup. Rent ended 12/02 

Departmental Reports - 50



TOTAL TONNAGE REC'D 

SUSSEX COUNTY WASTE 

TOTAL ELIGIBLE TONNAGE 

TOTAL TONNAGE REC'D 

SUSSEX COUNTY WASTE 

TOTAL ELIGIBLE TONNAGE 

TOTAL TONNAGE REC'D 

SUSSEX COUNTY WASTE 

TOTAL ELIGIBLE TONNAGE 

JULY 2019 TONNAGE REPORT FROM WASTE MANAGEMENT 

71112019 712/2019 71312019 7/412019 71512019 7/612019 

S817.S3 6355.63 6516.77 0.00 6380.32 694.57 

68.28 87.41 49 0.00 49.91 36.S

5,749.25 6,268.22 6,467.77 0.00 6,330.41 658.07 

7/11/2019 7/12/2019 7/13/2019 7/14/2019 7/1512019 7/1612019 

2630.82 S471.2 2569.1 2797.55 5498.23 3454.1 

61.2 78.08 21.14 0.00 61.92 6634 

2,569.62 5,393.12 2,547.96 2,797.55 S.436.31 3,387.76 

7121/2019 7/2212019 712312019 7/2412019 712612019 7/26/2019 

0.00 5522.91 15700.76 4741.42 2719.73 1929.23 

0.00 71.79 9890.76 41.47 52.24 77.31 

0.00 5,451.12 5,810.00 4,699.95 2,667.49 1,851.92 

Page 1/25 

717/2019 7/812019 7/9/2019 7/10/2019 

0.00 6804.65 4241.22 3678.76 

0.00 71.05 76.64 39.85 

0.00 6,733.60 4,164.58 3,638.91 

7/17/2019 7/18/2019 7/1912019 7/20/2019 

6095.63 5595.87 2023.23 269.56 

74.14 50.8 79.69 37.13 

6,021.49 5,545.07 1,943.54 232.43 

7127/2019 7/28/2019 7129/2019 7/30#2019 

3377.31 0.00 6126.28 5382.98 

35.09 0.00 81.11 66.66 

3,342.22 o.oo 6,045.17 5,316.32 

MONTHLY TOTAL TO DATE 

LESS SUSSEX COUNTY WASTE 

TOTAL ELIGIBLE TONNAGE 

MONTHLY HOST FEE TO DATE 

7 /23/19 Tonnage anomaly resulted from the spoils of leachate lagoons at the landfill that had to be 

pulled. The lagoons had to be removed, and the spoils were deposited in the landfill. Waste 

Management's comptroller, Jim Sanville, listed the spoils in total tonnage and as county waste because 

they are not eligible for host fees. They were generated at the landfill and no fees were collected by 

Waste Management for the spoils. The host fee paid for July in the amount of $552,838.16 is correct, 

for tonnage less these spoils. 

713112019 

5380.53 

63.4 

5,317.13 

127,775.89 

11388.91 

116,386.98 

Departmental Reports - 51



Departmental Reports - 52



7.02

Animal Services 
July & August 2019 

Monthly Reports

Departmental Reports - 53



OFFICE OF PUBLIC SAFETY 
CECIL R STAINBACK 
ANIMAL SERVICES OFFICER 
(434) 246-1044 – FAX (434) 246-6013
EMAIL: STAINBACK@SUSSEXCOUNTYVA.GOV

COUNTY OF SUSSEX, VIRGINIA 
POST OFFICE BOX 1397 
15080 COURTHOUSE ROAD 
SUSSEX, VIRGINIA 23884 

August 6, 2019 

TO: VANDY JONES, COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 

FROM: CECIL R STAINBACK, ANIMAL SERVICES OFFICER 

SUBJECT: JULY 2019 MONTHLY REPORT 

============================================================================== 
Enclosed is the JULY 2019 monthly report.    

Animal Services Monthly Report: Attached is the JULY 2019 Monthly Report. As you can see, 
we are attempting to adopt, rescue and return as many animals as possible. 

This month, three (3) canines were rescued, seven (7) canines was returned to owner and three 
(3) was adopted.  Three (3) canines euthanized for quality of life (paralyzed hip down) and
human/food/leash aggression.

This month, zero (0) feline rescued, four (4) was adopted and five (5) fostered.  One (1) feline 
euthanized for feral/medical reasons.    

Daily Operation Data: Attached in the monthly daily operations data. The data shows the various 
task and functions preforms by the Officers daily.  Please read the description for each category 
for a better understanding and the hours spent each month.   

Administration:  The Administration category is very broad and includes the officer’s paperwork, 
time at the County Administration Office and taking moneys collected to the Treasurer’s Office. 
Each animal that is picked-up and received at the shelter must have a report and paperwork 
throughout it’s time there.  This category also includes coping files, printing photographs for 
cases and court cases and written reports. Total for July (14.5) Hours 

Patrol: Each Officer is required to patrol a designated area of the County each month.  They are 
looking for stray animals, code violations, and animal welfare checks and ensure the citizens have 
their County Licenses and Rabies shots just to mention a few task. Total for July (90) Hours 

Total Number of Calls for Service: A new category will be added to the report each month.  This 
data is needed to understand the call volume within the Division.  This number will be all calls 
received from the County Dispatch Center “# of calls” and, all “In house calls”, those calls received 
at the shelter or direct calls to staffing. Total for July (29) Calls   

Departmental Reports - 54



Complaints: These are calls given to the Officers by the Dispatch Center or received from citizens 
by phone or word of mouth.  Total for July (30) Hours 

Welfare Checks: These are either response from phone calls and/or while on patrol.  These times 
are recorded since we need to understand how many hours are spent on this task. Total for July 
(7) Hours

 Rabies/License Check: While on Patrol or on-duty, if an animal, pen, kennel and/or evidence 
that an animal is present; the Officer will check to ensure the owner of the animals has their 
County License and their Rabies shots are current.  Total for July (7) Hours 

Phone Call/In/Out: During their daily task, the Officers receive and return phone calls throughout 
the day. These could include communications with the staff members, answering questions for 
the citizens and addressing concerns, just to list a few examples.  Total in July (18.5) Hours 

Investigation: While answering complaints and/or on patrol, the Officers may come across 
different situations such as animal cruelty, lack of care for the animals, neglect and lack of medical 
attention, improper care of the animals to list a few examples.  The Officer will investigate the 
case to gather the facts, interview witnesses, communicate with the animal owner or caregiver, 
take photos to record the scene and gather evidence to present to the courts if needed. The 
Officer may have to return multiple times to gather the needed information. Total in July (14.5) 
Hours  

Follow up Visit: While on Patrol or addressing a complaint, if an Officer identifies a code violation 
with an animal, the Officer will attempt to work with the owner/caregiver to resolve the issue 
through education provide the code section information and explain the violation and possible 
way to resolve the problem. The owner will be given 10 days to resolve the issue unless they have 
been cited for the same violation before or it is a safety, health and/or animal Welfare issue. In 
these listed cases, a follow-up visit is required to ensure compliance on the identified issue.  Total 
in July (11.5) Hours 

Summons: Whenever a code can’t be resolved through education, information provided, working 
with the animal owner and other related examples, a summons will be given as a last result.  In 
cases where the animal owner has been warned once before about an issue, cases of animal 
cruelty and neglect, not getting a county licenses/rabies shots and other related examples, a 
summons shall be issued.  Total in July (0) Hours 

After Hour Cases:  Since emergency animal complaints and bites occur all the time, the Officers 
will be required to respond to such emergency after hours and on weekends.  Total in July (23) 
Hours 

Training:  Each Officer is required to attend in-service hour each two (2) years.  Also, the division 
provides training in-house during the month and also during our monthly staff meetings. Total in 
July (0) Hours 

Departmental Reports - 55



Rabies Clinic:  The Officers assist the veterinarian with rabies vaccinations.  Several times a year, 
a local rabies vaccination clinic is held throughout the county to reduce the normal cost to the 
citizens.  Total in July (0) Hours 

Equipment/Shelter Maintenance:  The Officers provide maintenance on the shelter, traps; 
vehicles (wash and disinfect vehicles) and grounds whenever possible.  This reduces the cost of 
operations and down time waiting on an outside vendor to respond to the request.  Total in July 
(15) Hours

Veterinarian: Our Officers from time to time must carry animals from the shelter to our 
veterinarian for medical reasons, injuries, medical treatment and other related issues. Total in 
July (25) Hours 

Landfill: Great strives are being made to reduce the number of Euthanized animals at our shelter. 
However, from time to time an animal may die within the shelter; an animal may have to be 
euthanized due to aggression, deemed dangerous by the courts and other related examples.  In 
such rare cases, the animals must be properly disposed of at the county landfill.  The shelter does 
have a large freezer to store the animals to avoid numerous trips each month.  Total in July (1.5) 
Hour 

Court: In cases where the Officers attempt to resolve the animal code related issues fails, the 
animal owner/caretaker shall be issued a Summons to appear in court.  Total in July (0) Hours 
Kennel Inspections: Each week the Officers make kennel inspections within our shelter.  They are 
looking for cleanliness, missing screws and/or hardware, sharp objects that could cut or injure 
the animals and/or possible safety and/or injury potentials to the staff and animals. Total in July 
(4) Hour

Canine Shots: Whenever needed, the Officers will provide shots to the canines within the shelter. 
This is based on the number of canines in the shelter.  Total in July (2) Hours 

Shelter Related: The Officers provide support to the pound attendants and the Adoption/Rescue 
Coordinator at the shelter.  This includes but not limited to animal transports, animal feed from 
the storage bins to the shelter, transfer cleaning chemicals from the outside building to inside 
the shelter and many other related issues as an example.  Total in July (116) Hours   

Departmental Reports - 56



OFFICE OF PUBLIC SAFETY 
CECIL R STAINBACK 
ANIMAL SERVICES OFFICER 
(434) 246-1044 – FAX (434) 246-6013
EMAIL: STAINBACK@SUSSEXCOUNTYVA.GOV

COUNTY OF SUSSEX, VIRGINIA 
POST OFFICE BOX 1397 
15080 COURTHOUSE ROAD 
SUSSEX, VIRGINIA 23884 

September 6, 2019 

TO: VANDY JONES, COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 

FROM: CECIL R STAINBACK, ANIMAL SERVICES OFFICER 

SUBJECT: AUGUST 2019 MONTHLY REPORT 

============================================================================== 
Enclosed is the AUGUST 2019 monthly report.    

Animal Services Monthly Report: Attached is the AUGUST 2019 Monthly Report. As you can 
see, we are attempting to adopt, rescue and return as many animals as possible. 

This month, seventeen (17) canines were rescued, five (5) canines was returned to owner and 
three (3) was adopted.  One (1) canine euthanized for liability issues, bite case, tension to human 
reactions. 

This month, zero (0) feline rescued, four (4) was adopted and four (4) fostered.  Zero (0) felines 
euthanized.    

Daily Operation Data: Attached in the monthly daily operations data. The data shows the various 
task and functions preforms by the Officers daily.  Please read the description for each category 
for a better understanding and the hours spent each month.  

Administration:  The Administration category is very broad and includes the officer’s paperwork, 
time at the County Administration Office and taking moneys collected to the Treasurer’s Office. 
Each animal that is picked-up and received at the shelter must have a report and paperwork 
throughout it’s time there.  This category also includes coping files, printing photographs for 
cases and court cases and written reports. Total for August (18.5) Hours 

Patrol: Each Officer is required to patrol a designated area of the County each month.  They are 
looking for stray animals, code violations, and animal welfare checks and ensure the citizens have 
their County Licenses and Rabies shots just to mention a few task. Total for August (53) Hours 

Total Number of Calls for Service: A new category will be added to the report each month.  This 
data is needed to understand the call volume within the Division.  This number will be all calls 
received from the County Dispatch Center “# of calls” and, all “In house calls”, those calls received 
at the shelter or direct calls to staffing. Total for August (33) Calls   

Departmental Reports - 57



Complaints: These are calls given to the Officers by the Dispatch Center or received from citizens 
by phone or word of mouth.  Total for August (35) Hours 

Welfare Checks: These are either response from phone calls and/or while on patrol.  These times 
are recorded since we need to understand how many hours are spent on this task. Total for 
August (3.5) Hours 

 Rabies/License Check: While on Patrol or on-duty, if an animal, pen, kennel and/or evidence 
that an animal is present; the Officer will check to ensure the owner of the animals has their 
County License and their Rabies shots are current.  Total for August (3.5) Hours 

Phone Call/In/Out: During their daily task, the Officers receive and return phone calls throughout 
the day. These could include communications with the staff members, answering questions for 
the citizens and addressing concerns, just to list a few examples.  Total in August (15) Hours 

Investigation: While answering complaints and/or on patrol, the Officers may come across 
different situations such as animal cruelty, lack of care for the animals, neglect and lack of medical 
attention, improper care of the animals to list a few examples.  The Officer will investigate the 
case to gather the facts, interview witnesses, communicate with the animal owner or caregiver, 
take photos to record the scene and gather evidence to present to the courts if needed. The 
Officer may have to return multiple times to gather the needed information. Total in August (3) 
Hours  

Follow up Visit: While on Patrol or addressing a complaint, if an Officer identifies a code violation 
with an animal, the Officer will attempt to work with the owner/caregiver to resolve the issue 
through education provide the code section information and explain the violation and possible 
way to resolve the problem. The owner will be given 10 days to resolve the issue unless they have 
been cited for the same violation before or it is a safety, health and/or animal Welfare issue. In 
these listed cases, a follow-up visit is required to ensure compliance on the identified issue.  Total 
in August (5) Hours 

Summons: Whenever a code can’t be resolved through education, information provided, working 
with the animal owner and other related examples, a summons will be given as a last result.  In 
cases where the animal owner has been warned once before about an issue, cases of animal 
cruelty and neglect, not getting a county licenses/rabies shots and other related examples, a 
summons shall be issued.  Total in August (0) Hours 

After Hour Cases:  Since emergency animal complaints and bites occur all the time, the Officers 
will be required to respond to such emergency after hours and on weekends.  Total in August 
(18) Hours

Training:  Each Officer is required to attend in-service hour each two (2) years.  Also, the division 
provides training in-house during the month and also during our monthly staff meetings. Total in 
August (2) Hours 

Departmental Reports - 58



Rabies Clinic:  The Officers assist the veterinarian with rabies vaccinations.  Several times a year, 
a local rabies vaccination clinic is held throughout the county to reduce the normal cost to the 
citizens.  Total in August (0) Hours 

Equipment/Shelter Maintenance:  The Officers provide maintenance on the shelter, traps; 
vehicles (wash and disinfect vehicles) and grounds whenever possible.  This reduces the cost of 
operations and down time waiting on an outside vendor to respond to the request.  Total in 
August (14.5) Hours 

Veterinarian: Our Officers from time to time must carry animals from the shelter to our 
veterinarian for medical reasons, injuries, medical treatment and other related issues. Total in 
August (20.5) Hours 

Landfill: Great strives are being made to reduce the number of Euthanized animals at our shelter. 
However, from time to time an animal may die within the shelter; an animal may have to be 
euthanized due to aggression, deemed dangerous by the courts and other related examples.  In 
such rare cases, the animals must be properly disposed of at the county landfill.  The shelter does 
have a large freezer to store the animals to avoid numerous trips each month.  Total in August 
(1) Hour

Court: In cases where the Officers attempt to resolve the animal code related issues fails, the 
animal owner/caretaker shall be issued a Summons to appear in court.  Total in August (0) Hours 

Kennel Inspections: Each week the Officers make kennel inspections within our shelter.  They are 
looking for cleanliness, missing screws and/or hardware, sharp objects that could cut or injure 
the animals and/or possible safety and/or injury potentials to the staff and animals. Total in 
August (1) Hour 

Canine Shots: Whenever needed, the Officers will provide shots to the canines within the shelter. 
This is based on the number of canines in the shelter.  Total in August (1) Hours 

Shelter Related: The Officers provide support to the pound attendants and act as the 
Adoption/Rescue Supervisors at the shelter.  This includes but not limited to animal transports, 
animal feed from the storage bins to the shelter, transfer cleaning chemicals from the outside 
building to inside the shelter and many other related issues as an example.  Total in August 
(112.5) Hours   

Departmental Reports - 59



-

Carryover Stray Surrender Born @ Pound Xfer in Bite Rescued Adopted Returned Euthanized Escaped Died @ Pound Other Seizure Foster

Avian 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Bovine 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Canine 13 19 3 0 0 0 3 3 7 3 0 0 2 0 0

Ovine 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Equine 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Feline 17 1 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 1 0 3 0 0 5

ACTIVE CASES CANINE 21  FELINE 10   EQUINE 0 Bovine 0 Ovine 0

TOTALS 29 Calls
MILEAGE

UNIT 6 1,994 Diesel
UNIT 7 1,725 Gas
TOTALS 3,719.00

SUMMONS 0

Sussex County Animal Control
Monthly Intake Report

July
2019

0
2
4
6
8

10
12
14
16
18
20

Chart Title

Avian Bovine Canine Ovine Equine Feline

Departmental Reports - 60



-

Carryover Stray Surrender Born @ Pound Xfer in Bite Rescued Adopted Returned Euthanized Escaped Died @ Pound Other Seizure Foster

Avian 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Bovine 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Canine 21 13 13 0 0 0 17 3 5 1 0 1 0 0 0

Ovine 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Equine 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Feline 10 6 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 4 0 4

ACTIVE CASES CANINE 20  FELINE 16   EQUINE 0 Bovine 0 Ovine 0

TOTALS 33 Calls
MILEAGE

UNIT 6 2,018 Diesel
UNIT 7 1,500 Gas
TOTALS 3,518.00

SUMMONS 1

Sussex County Animal Control
Monthly Intake Report

August
2019

0

5

10

15

20

25

Chart Title

Avian Bovine Canine Ovine Equine Feline

Departmental Reports - 61



Canines/Felines Rescued or Transferred

July
Total of 3 Canines
Total of 0  Felines

Intake Number Name Rescue Organization/Animal Shelter
134-19061301 Charlie Beagles to the Rescue, Norfolk, VA
151-19070801 Missy Lab Rescue of LRCP, Damascus Maryland
153-19070901 Abby Beagle Rescue Education & Welfare, Dumfries VA

Departmental Reports - 62



Canines/Felines Rescued or Transferred

August
Total of 17 Canines
Total of 0  Felines

Intake Number Name Rescue Organization/Animal Shelter
145-19062806 Red Lab Rescue of LRCP,  Damascus, MD
155-19071501 Medusa Richmond SPCA
156-19071701 Jimi Richmond SPCA
163-19072601 River Richmond SPCA
171-19080802 MeiLi (Me Lee) Sophia's Grace Foundation
177-19081601 Madre' Homeward Bound Animal Rescue, Camp Hill, PA
178-19081602 Sunnie Lab Rescue of LRCP
183-19082301 Pablo SFC Virginia, Fredericksburg
184-19082302 Bebe SFC Virginia, Fredericksburg
185-19082303 Elsa SFC Virginia, Fredericksburg
186-19082304 Gia SFC Virginia, Fredericksburg
187-19082305 Izzy SFC Virginia, Fredericksburg
188-19082306 Nellie SFC Virginia, Fredericksburg
189-19082307 Sheba SFC Virginia, Fredericksburg
190-19082308 Hope SFC Virginia, Fredericksburg
191-19082309 Penny SFC Virginia, Fredericksburg
192-19082310 Tessa SFC Virginia, Fredericksburg

Departmental Reports - 63



Month:    July 2019 Officers Man Hour Report

Date Admin Patrol # of In House In House Complaints Welfare Rabies/Lic Phone Calls Invest Follow up Summons After Duty Training Rabies Equip/Shelter Vet Landfill Court Kennel Canine Shelter

calls calls Assists Check Check In/Out visit Cases Clinic Maint. Inspect. Shots Related

1 1 5.5 3 3.5 1.5 1.5 4.5

2 3.5 1 3 1 1 1.5 2 0.5 1.5 3

3 1.5 2 1.5 0.5 0.5 2 1.5 2.5 2.5 1.5 1 4.5

4

5 1 3

6

7 1 2.5

8 3 1 1 2 1 1 1 8

9 2.5 4.5 0.5 2 6.5

10 3.5 1 5 1.5 7.5

11 1 1 1 2 2 1 1 2 1 3 1 6

12 1 5.5 1 1 0.5 2.5 1 4.5

13

14 2

15 2 4 1 2 1 1 1 2 3 5

16 4.5 1 1 0.5 2 1 3 1 4

17 6 1 1 2 0.5 0.5 0.5 1 1 4.5

18 2 5 1 1 0.5 1 2 1 5.5

19 6 1 1 1 2.5 8

20

21

22 1 6 2 2 0.5 0.5 2 4

23 4.5 0.5 1.5 1 1.5 2 7

24 1 5.5 2 1 4 1 4.5

25 3 1 2 1 9

26 3.5 1 1 0.5 3.5 1.5 4

27 3 3

28 2 4

29 5 4 4 0.5 0.5 1 2 3

30 2 4.5 1 1.5 2.5 1.5 3

31 1 4.5 1 1 1.5 2 6

Total 14.5 90 18 11 0 30 7 7 18.5 14.5 11.5 0 23 0 0 15 25 1.5 0 4 2 116

Admin will include: Paperwork, County Admin Office, Treasurers Office Training will include Monthly Meetings

Departmental Reports - 64



Month:    August 2019 Officers Man Hour Report

Date Admin Patrol # of In House In House Complaints Welfare Rabies/Lic Phone Calls Invest Follow up Summons After Duty Training Rabies Equip/Shelter Vet Landfill Court Kennel Canine Shelter

calls calls Assists Check Check In/Out visit Cases Clinic Maint. Inspect. Shots Related

1 1 3.5 2 1 0.5 3 1 7

2 2.5 1 1 1 1 1 2 0.5 7

3

4 2

5 1.5 3.5 2 1 3 1 2 5

6 1 4 0.5 0.5 3.5 1 5.5

7 1 5 2 2 1 1 1 1 4

8 1 3 2 2 0.5 1 4 6.5

9 1 5.5 1 1 0.5 0.5 1.5 1 5

10 2

11

12 2.5 1 1 2 1.5 1.5

13 2 4 0.5 1.5 2 1 5

14 1.5 3 3 2 5 1.5 2.5 2 4

15 1.5 1 1 2 1 1.5 5

16 1 1 4 4.5 1.5

17

18 3

19 1 2 2.5 0.5 1 3

20 1 1 1 3 1 6.5

21 1 1 0.5 0.5 3 1 1 2

22 1 1 1 1 5

23 0.5 1 1 2 0.5 4

24 1

25

26 2.5 1.5 1 1 2.5 1 1 2 1.5 4

27 1 2 0.5 2 10.5

28 3 1 2 3 9

29 2 4 1 1 0.5 1.5 1.5 5.5

30 1 1 1 1.5 6

31

Total 18.5 53 19 14 0 35 3.5 3.5 15 3 5 0 18 2 0 14.5 20.5 1 0 1 1 112.5

Admin will include: Paperwork, County Admin Office, Treasurers Office Training will include Monthly Meetings

Departmental Reports - 65



#7.03

Public Safety 

July & August 2019 
Monthly Reports

Departmental Reports - 66



OFFICE OF PUBLIC SAFETY 
G. REID FOSTER, JR.
PUBLIC SAFETY COORDINATOR
(804) 834-1305 EXT. 22 – FAX (434) 246-6013
EMAIL:  RFOSTER@SUSSEXCOUNTYVA.GOV

COUNTY OF SUSSEX, VIRGINIA 
POST OFFICE BOX 1397 
15080 COURTHOUSE ROAD 
SUSSEX, VIRGINIA 23884 

August 30, 2019 

TO: VANDY JONES, COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 

FROM: REID FOSTER, JR., PUBLIC SAFETY COORDINATOR 

SUBJECT: JULY & AUGUST 2019 MONTHLY REPORTS 

Enclosed are the July and August 2019 monthly reports.  

RADIO SYSTEM: Continue to work with HARRIS and R.J. Campbell to resolve issues. Had a server 
fail which automatically switched to back up. Harris has replaced with no loss of service. Mr. 
Campbell has been down several times to reprogram radios for Waverly Police and Sussex Sheriff 
office. 

Still having problems with the Waverly tower site with the A/C failing. Portable units were 
purchased to help until units can be replaced. Will be putting them into upcoming CIP Plan. 

Continue to have problems with the paging system for fire and rescue. Working with Harris and 
looking at different system. Also have contacted Motorola to see what they would have or 
suggest to improve paging. 

Looking at different radio for new fire engine at Wakefield. Looking at a dual band radio so they 
can talk with Surry and Southampton. Waiting on quotes from vendors. 

Have meeting set up on September 5 with VITA on the new 911 system. 

CIP PLAN: This plan is ready to present to the Board. 

GRANTS:   Still applying for grants for Fire, Rescue, and Emergency Management. Have received 
one grant for $3500.00 to update our REPP plan. Have meeting with VDEM on September 17th to 
review this with them; and, then it will be ready to be adopted by Board. Looking to present in 
October 2019. 

Received confirmation from Greensville Memorial to proceed with the application for equipment 
for Stony Creek Rescue. 

Working with Waverly Rescue to apply for grant through the Rescue Squad Association for 
replacement of Stretcher’s. 

Departmental Reports - 67



Have applied to John Randolph Foundation for equipment for both Waverly and Stony Creek. 

FIRE DEPTS: Wakefield’s new engine arrived on September 5th at 6pm. Went with Chief Bowen 
on final inspection. Had very few corrections that had to be addressed. 

All the fire apparatus have had the pump testing done per NFPA and ISO. We had four (4) units 
that failed. In the process of getting estimates for repairs. Two (2) of these are in CIP plan for 
replacement. Once estimates are received will be working with Mr. Jones on funding these 
repairs. 

Have received quotes on doing ladder and hose testing per NFPA. Waiting on vender to give me 
a start date. 

Have had several house fires in last two months.  Also had a plane crash at Wakefield airport.  
There no injuries. Minor damage to the airport fence. State Police and FAA invested. 

Met with Watkins insurance on County policy. Found several vehicles that county no longer had 
still on list. Got the list revised.  County should be getting refund. I would suggest that we put out 
a RFP in January to see if we can get a better insurance policy. 

RESCUE: Working with Stony Creek and Waverly on issues with Lifestar. Looking into more staffing at 
Stony Creek. 
Meet with Jimmy Burch to see what County needed to do to get county EMS license. 

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT:  Attended several classes for their WEB EOC. Waiting for that 
grant to open so that we can apply to upgrade our EOC. 

Will be attending Hurricane training this month. 

Sent contract to County Administrator for review and sign for CODE Red Emergency Notification 
System. 

Departmental Reports - 68



7.04 

CCCooommmmmmuuunnniiitttyyy   DDDeeevvveeelllooopppmmmeeennnttt   

July & August   2019 

Monthly Reports  

Departmental Reports - 69



Community Development Office Monthly July 2019 
Mr. André M. Greene, Director of Community Development 

Economic Development. 

 Staff met with representatives from Coronal Energy regarding a proposed solar and/or renewable energy
project in Sussex County.

Community Development/Special Programs Grant Administration 

 Meeting with County Attorney to discuss several existing and proposed projects.
 Pre-bid meetings were held at the Sussex County Housing Dept regarding the Pocahontas Neighborhood

Improvement project and the UNOS project.
 Management team meetings were held regarding the Waverly Tornado Recovery (UNOS) project and the

Pocahontas Neighborhood project.
 The Office of Community Development attended The Sussex County Housing Department’s Oversight

Board meeting.
 Staff meet with the developer/owner, the site contractor, and the construction contractor for the

Fairfield Inn Project.  The construction plans are ready for submittal and will be under review soon.
 Interviews for the open Building Official’s position were conducted.

Planning & Zoning 

 A Public Hearing was held with the Sussex County Planning Commission on June 3, 2019.
 A Public Hearing was held with the Board of Supervisors on July 18,  2019
 Eleven (11) Zoning Applications were reviewed and approved.
 Two (2) plats were approved.
 One (1) address application was completed.
 One (1) address change was completed.

Erosion & Sediment Control 

 Four (4) E&S projects are active with inspections being made after each rain event.
 Four (4) Agreement in Lieu of an Erosion & Sediment Control Plan Applications were completed.
 Building plan review for the Fairfield Inn project, to be located on Blue Star Highway will be under review

soon and a land disturbance permit for the project has been issued.

Departmental Reports - 70



Community Development Office Monthly August 2019 
Mr. André M. Greene, Director of Community Development 

Economic Development. 

 A conference call was held with representatives from Superb Solutions, Summit Engineering and Design
and DHCD regarding the proposed new business.

Community Development/Special Programs Grant Administration 

 Management team meetings were held regarding the Waverly Tornado Recovery (UNOS) project and the
Pocahontas Neighborhood project.

 The Office of Community Development attended The Sussex County Housing Department’s Oversight
Board meeting.

 The Fairfield Inn site is under construction and the building plans have been submitted and are under
review.

Planning & Zoning 

 One (1) Cup application has been received and processed
 Four (4) Zoning Applications were reviewed and approved.
 One (1) Rezoning application has been received and processed
 Two (2) plats were approved.
 One (1) Amendment to a CUP application has been received and processed

Erosion & Sediment Control 

 Four (4) E&S projects are active with inspections being made after each rain event.
 Five (5) Agreement in Lieu of an Erosion & Sediment Control Plan Applications were completed.
 Two (2) land disturbance permits for the Fairfield Inn project has been issued.

Departmental Reports - 71



Community Development Office    County  Of Sussex, Virginia  
Andre  m. greene        P. O. Box 1397 Sussex, Virginia 23884-0397 
Director Of Community Development         Fax (434) 246-2175 
(434) 246-1043

sussexcounty.govoffice.com 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE:  August 1, 2019 

TO: Vandy Jones, County Administrator  

FROM: Andre M. Greene, Director of Community Development  

SUBJECT: July 2019 - Monthly Report 

Please accept this as the July 2019 update for the Community Development Department.  

BUILDING ACTIVITY  

• July 2019

Building 
Permits 

Electrical 
Permits 

Plumbing & 
Sprinkler 
Permits 

Mechanical 
Permits 

Field 
Inspections 

Improvement 
Value 

Revenue 
Generated 

14 6 3 3 66 $477,019.00  $3,225.44 

• July 2018

Building 
Permits 

Electrical 
Permits 

Plumbing & 
Sprinkler 
Permits 

Mechanical 
Permits 

Field 
Inspections 

Improvement 
Value 

Revenue 
Generated 

11 9 7 6 60 $405,694.00 $4,786.88 

• January 2019 – December 2019 (Yearly totals)

Building 
Permits 

Electrical 
Permits 

Plumbing & 
Sprinkler 
Permits 

Mechanical 
Permits 

Field 
Inspections 

Improvement 
Value 

Revenue 
Generated 

63 60 25 45 446 $3,329,673.00 $22,347.90 

Departmental Reports - 72



Community Development Office    County  Of Sussex, Virginia 
Andre  m. greene        P. O. Box 1397 Sussex, Virginia 23884-0397 
Director Of Community Development         Fax (434) 246-2175 
(434) 246-1043

sussexcounty.govoffice.com 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE:  September 4, 2019 

TO: Vandy Jones, County Administrator  

FROM: Andre M. Greene, Director of Community Development  

SUBJECT: August 2019 - Monthly Report 

Please accept this as the August 2019 update for the Community Development Department.  

BUILDING ACTIVITY  

• August 2019

Building 
Permits 

Electrical 
Permits 

Plumbing & 
Sprinkler 
Permits 

Mechanical 
Permits 

Field 
Inspections 

Improvement 
Value 

Revenue 
Generated 

14 15 5 12 65 $771,993.00  $3,296.41 

• August 2018

Building 
Permits 

Electrical 
Permits 

Plumbing & 
Sprinkler 
Permits 

Mechanical 
Permits 

Field 
Inspections 

Improvement 
Value 

Revenue 
Generated 

7 11 4 10 69 $575,570.00 $3,072.15 

• January 2019 – December 2019 (Yearly totals)

Building 
Permits 

Electrical 
Permits 

Plumbing & 
Sprinkler 
Permits 

Mechanical 
Permits 

Field 
Inspections 

Improvement 
Value 

Revenue 
Generated 

77 75 30 57 511 $4,101,666.00 $25,644.31 

Departmental Reports - 73



7.05 

Environmental 

Inspections 

July & August, 2019 

Monthly Reports 

Departmental Reports - 74



Origin / Material Summary Report

Criteria: 07/01/2019 12:00 AM to 07/31/2019 11:59 PM

Business Unit Name: Atlantic Waste Disposal - S05136 (USA)
Origin Material Tons

DC Special Misc-Tons 762.86

Origin Total 762.86

DE MSWT 267.24

DE Sandblast Grit-Tons 21.62

DE Special Misc-Tons 54.36

Origin Total 343.22

GA MSWT 48.53

Origin Total 48.53

MA MSWT 440.80

Origin Total 440.80

MD MSWT 369.24

MD Sludge Indus-Tons 690.51

MD SludgeIndus-Tons 104.81

MD Special Misc-Tons 85.19

MD Special Misc-Tons 334.41

Origin Total 1,584.16

NC CDTC 129.75

NC MSWT 4,840.11

Origin Total 4,969.86

NJ Auto Fluff RGC-Tons 17,241.42

NJ MSWT 6,200.39

Origin Total 23,441.81

NY MSWT 69,406.33

Origin Total 69,406.33

PA MSWT 58.52

Origin Total 58.52

SUSS BUS MSWT 9,487.38

SUSS BUS Sludge Indus-Tons 882.03

Origin Total 10,369.41

SUSS RES CDTC 22.54

SUSS RES MSWT 996.96

Origin Total 1,019.50

VA C&D-Tons 1.58

VA CDTC 250.36

VA MSWT 13,358.48

VA SWF 0.00

VA SludgeIndus-Tons 182.43

VA Special Misc-Tons 1,538.04

Origin Total 15,330.89

Totals 127,775.89

Departmental Reports - 75



Origin / Material Summary Report

Criteria: 08/01/2019 12:00 AM to 08/31/2019 11:59 PM

Business Unit Name: Atlantic Waste Disposal - S05136 (USA)
Origin Material Tons

DC Special Misc-Tons 881.79

Origin Total 881.79

DE MSWT 38.44

DE Sandblast Grit-Tons 13.59

DE Special Misc-Tons 123.43

Origin Total 175.46

GA MSWT 15.42

Origin Total 15.42

MA MSWT 613.01

Origin Total 613.01

MD MSWT 509.28

MD Sludge Indus-Tons 138.29

MD SludgeIndus-Tons 151.35

MD Special Misc-Tons 104.87

MD Special Misc-Tons 425.75

Origin Total 1,329.54

NC CDTC 120.65

NC MSWT 4,082.66

Origin Total 4,203.31

NJ Auto Fluff RGC-Tons 20,002.64

Origin Total 20,002.64

NY MSWT 61,208.57

Origin Total 61,208.57

PA MSWT 134.81

Origin Total 134.81

SUSS BUS MSWT 133.28

SUSS BUS Sludge Indus-Tons 1,189.95

Origin Total 1,323.23

SUSS RES CDTC 3.56

SUSS RES MSWT 473.94

Origin Total 477.50

VA C&D-Tons 7.05

VA CDTC 113.95

VA MSWT 14,941.33

VA SWF 0.00

VA SludgeIndus-Tons 269.76

VA Special Misc-Tons 276.94

Origin Total 15,609.03

Totals 105,974.31

Departmental Reports - 76



 

 

August 
2019

Brenda 

County of Sussex 

8/6/2019 

Housing Programs - Monthly Report 
7.06

Departmental Reports - 77



2 | P a g e

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Mr. Vandy Jones, County Administrator 

FROM:    Brenda H. Drew, Housing Programs Coordinator 

SUBJECT:       Housing Program Report 

DATE: August 6, 2019  

_____________________________________________________________________ 

As always, we are looking forward to continuing our partnerships and programs which promotes 

family self-sufficiency, home ownership opportunities, housing counseling and home repairs, as 

well as, rental assistance to low to moderate income families in need.   

 During the past month the following general work tasks were performed: 

Activities No. 

Annual Inspections  27 
 Annual Re-certifications 19

 Initial Inspection  02 

Other Certifications 15

 Family Briefings  02 

Executing HCV Contracts 01 

Certificates of Satisfaction 01 

Housing Rehab (PI)projects pending 5 

 Reports Submitted in CAMS  2 

Training Attended 0

Departmental Reports - 78



UPCOMING COMMUNITY EVENT: 

RIBBON CUTTING EVENT 

You are invited to join the Sussex County Housing Oversight Board 

as we celebrate the arrival of the first new homes in the County’s 

Tornado Recovery Grant Program. 

Wednesday, August 21, 2019 at 1 pm 

418 West Main Street, Waverly 

If you are interested in a community tour of other projects underway, 

please call the Housing Office 

Departmental Reports - 79



 

 

September

2019 

Brenda 

County of Sussex 

9/9/2019 

Housing Programs - Monthly Report 
7.06

Departmental Reports - 80



2 | P a g e

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Mr. Vandy Jones, County Administrator 

FROM:    Brenda H. Drew, Housing Programs Coordinator 

SUBJECT:       Housing Program Report 

DATE: September 3, 2019  

_____________________________________________________________________ 

As always, we are looking forward to continuing our partnerships and programs which promotes 

family self-sufficiency, home ownership opportunities, housing counseling and home repairs, as 

well as, rental assistance to low to moderate income families in need.   

 During the past month the following general work tasks were performed: 

Activities No. 

Annual Inspections  14 

 Annual Re-certifications 12

 Initial Inspection  01 

Other Certifications 35

 Family Briefings  01 

Executing HCV Contracts 01 

Certificates of Satisfaction  00 

Housing Rehab (PI)projects pending 5 

 Reports Submitted in CAMS  3 

Training Attended 0

Departmental Reports - 81



UPCOMING COMMUNITY EVENT: 

RIBBON CUTTING EVENT 

You are invited to join the Sussex County Housing Oversight Board 

as we celebrate the arrival of the first new homes in the County’s 

Tornado Recovery Grant Program. 

DATE: TO BE DETERMINED 

418 West Main Street, Waverly 

If you are interested in a community tour of other projects underway, 

please call the Housing Office 

Departmental Reports - 82



7.07 

Sheriff’s Department 

July & August 2019 
Monthly Reports

Departmental Reports - 83



Departmental Reports - 84



Departmental Reports - 85



Departmental Reports - 86



Departmental Reports - 87


	#1 9 19 2019 agenda
	#2.01 7 18 2019 BOS meeting minutes
	#2.02 Warrants and Vouchers
	Warrants  Vouchers for August 2019 BOS Meeting
	July 2019
	AUG 15 2019

	Binder1.pdf
	AP CHECKS
	Scanned from a Xerox Multifunction Printer (008).pdf
	DEDUC CKS
	Scanned from a Xerox Multifunction Printer (008)


	Warrants  Vouchers for September 2019 BOS Meeting
	August 2019.pdf
	SEP 19 2019

	AP CHECKS
	Scanned from a Xerox Multifunction Printer (008).pdf
	DEDUC CKS
	Scanned from a Xerox Multifunction Printer (008)


	#2.03-4 Consent Agenda
	#2.03-1 VW Grant BAF
	#2.03-2 VW Attachment 9 12 19
	#2.03-2 Victim Witness Grant
	#2.03-3 insert pages

	#2.04-1 September as Hunger Action Month
	BOARD ACTION FORM
	MOTION BY:


	#3 Recognition
	#3.01-1 Morgan Thornton BAF
	#3.01-2 RESOLUTION T. Morgan Thornton
	#3.02 UH UCC
	#3.02-1 Union Hill UCC
	#3.02-2 PROCLAMATION UH UCC 150TH ANNV
	#3.02-3 KF Proclamation Request


	#4 Public Hearings
	#4.01-1 PH MOU Historical Society
	#4.01-2 MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
	#4.01-3 PH Notice
	#4.02-1 PH Stony Creek EMS
	#4.02-2 PH Ordinance 2
	#4.02-3 PH Draft Ordinance Amendment Chapter 12
	EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AND EMERGENCY SERVICES*
	Article II. Emergency Management (Reserved)
	ARTICLE I.  IN GENERAL
	Sec. 12-2. Off-duty employment of deputy sheriffs.
	Secs.  12-3—12-22. Reserved.

	#4.02-4 PH Notice
	#4.02-5 PH Notice

	#5 Appointments
	#5.01-1 Appointment - PC
	BOARD ACTION FORM
	MOTION BY:

	#5.01-2 Resignation Letter
	#5.01-3 planning commission members 2019 from lorenzo

	#6 Action Items
	#6.01-1 DoF
	#6.02-1 Public Schools
	#6.03-1 Performance Agreement
	#6.03-2 Three Brother's Distillery AFID Performance Agreement_Draft 7.26.19
	GOVERNOR’S AGRICULTURE & FORESTRY INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT FUND
	PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT
	IF THE LOCALITY’S FUNDS ARE BEING PROVIDED OVER TIME:  If, by the Performance Date, the funds disbursed or committed to be disbursed by the Locality to the Company total less than the $12,500 AFID Grant local match requirement, the Locality, subject ...

	By
	By
	By

	#6.04-1 AFID Grant 3 Bros Distillery
	#6.04-2 Minutes
	#6.05-1 Board Meeting Action Form  - Section 15.2-2232 Review
	#6.05-2 2232 Review Application Instructions Sussex County
	#6.05-3 2232 Review Application Sussex county
	#6.05-4 Section 2232 reveiw app. Land use fee
	#6.06-1 Federal Uniform Guidance Policy (Administration)
	#6.06-2 Uniform Guidance Policy (Administration) - County format (2)
	Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement - General Information
	Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement - Activities Allowed/Unallowed and Allowable Costs/Cost Principles
	Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement - Cash Management
	Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement - Eligibility
	Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement - Equipment and Real Property Management
	Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement - Matching, Level of Effort and Earmarking
	Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement - Period of Performance
	Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement - Procurement, Suspension and Debarment
	Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement - Program Income
	Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement - Reporting
	Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement – Subrecipient Monitoring
	Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement - Special Tests and Provisions

	#6.07-1 Conflict of Interest Policy
	BOARD ACTION FORM
	MOTION BY:

	#6.07-2 Conflict of Interest Policy - updated (2)
	Organizational Conflicts (This section specifically addresses requirements of 2 CFR §200.318)


	#7 Departmental Reports
	#7.01 Treasurer's Report
	#7.02 AC ALL
	#7.02-1 AC Cover Sheet.doc
	#7.02-2 AC Monthly Report
	#7.02-3 AC AUGUST Monthly Report
	#7.02-4 Copy of July 2019 BOS Monthly Intake
	August 2018

	#7.02-5 Copy of Aug 2019 BOS Monthly Intake
	August 2018

	#7.02-6 Copy of July 2019 Monthly Rescues_Transfers (2)
	March 2019

	#7.02-7 Copy of Aug 2019 Monthly Rescues_Transfers
	March 2019

	#7.02-8 Copy of July 2019 Officer Hours Sheet
	Sheet1

	#7.02-9 Copy of Aug 2019 Officer Hours Sheet
	Sheet1


	#7.03 PS all
	#7.03-1 PS Cover Sheet.doc
	#7.03-2 PS July Aug  2019 Monthly Report

	#7.04 Community Development
	#7.04-1 Community Development Cover Sheet_
	#7.04-2 July 2019 CD monthly report for board packet
	#7.04-3 August 2019 CD monthly update for board packet
	#7.04-4 July 2019 Report Bldg Dept
	#7.04-5 August 2019 Report Bldg Dept

	#7.05 Environ Insp
	#7.05-1 Environmental Insp Cover.doc
	#7.05-2 July 2019 Tonnage Report
	#7.05-3 August 2019 Tonnage Report

	#7.06 Housing - All
	#7.06-1 Monthly Housing Report August
	#7.06-2 Monthly Housing Report sEPT 2019

	#7.07 Sheriff
	#7.07-1 Sheriff's Cover Sheet
	#7.07-2 Sheriffs Dept July 2019
	#7.07-3 Sheriffs August 2019





